
 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Thursday, July 2, 2020 

RDOS Boardroom – 101 Martin Street, Penticton 
 

SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 
 

 
 
9:00 am - 9:15 am  Public Hearing – Electoral Area “I” Official 

Community Plan Bylaw and Zoning Bylaw 
Amendments – Apex Mountain Zone Update 
 
Public Hearing – Amendment Bylaw No. 2858, 
2020 – Micro Cannabis Production Facilities 
 

9:15 am - 9:45 am  Protective Services Committee 
 

9:45 am - 10:15 am  Corporate Services Committee 
 

10:15 am - 12:15 pm  RDOS Board 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Advance Notice of Meetings 

July 16  RDOS Board OSRHD Board Committee Meetings 

August 6  RDOS Board  Committee Meetings 

August 20  RDOS Board OSRHD Board Committee Meetings 

September 3  RDOS Board  Committee Meetings 

September 17  RDOS Board OSRHD Board Committee Meetings 

 

“Karla Kozakevich” 

Karla Kozakevich 
RDOS Board Chair 



 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Electoral Area “I” Official Community Plan 

Bylaw and Zoning Bylaw Amendments 
Apex Mountain Zone Update 

Notice is hereby given by the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) that all persons 
who believe that their interest in property is affected by the Electoral Area “I” Official Community 
Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020, or Electoral Area “I” Zoning Amendment Bylaw 
2457.26, 2020, will be afforded a reasonable opportunity to be heard or to present written 
submissions respecting matters contained in the proposed bylaws at a public hearing to be held by 
electronic means on: 

Date:  Thursday, July 2, 2020 

Time:   9:00 a.m.  
Location:    https://rdos.webex.com (Meeting Number: 146 377 8561 / password: RD@S) 

INSTRUCTIONS ON HOW TO PARTICIPATE 

To participate in the electronic public hearing, please enter the text provided under “Location” 
(above) into the address bar of an internet browser (e.g. Chrome, Firefox, Safari, Edge).  The 
“Meeting Number” for the public hearing is: 146 337 8561 / password: RD@S). Interested 
individuals may also participate in the public hearing by calling 250-490-4217 or Toll Free at 1-
877-610-3737.  

The Regional District is utilizing Cisco’s Webex videoconferencing services and individuals 
interested in participating in the public hearing are encouraged to test this service on their 
computer or mobile device prior to the date of the hearing.  Additional instructions on how to 
participate in an electronic public hearing are available on the Regional District’s website: 
www.rdos.bc.ca (Property & Development → Planning, Zoning & Subdivision → Strategic Projects 
→ Apex Zone Update). 

Anyone who considers themselves affected by the amendment bylaws can present written 
information to the Regional District prior to or at the public hearing and may also speak at the 
public hearing.  No letter, report or representation from the public will be received after the 
conclusion of the public hearing. 

PURPOSE OF THE BYLAW(S): 

The purpose of the proposed amendments is to to update a number of residential zones at Apex 
Mountain as part of on-going work related to the preparation of a single zoning bylaw for the 
South Okanagan Valley Electoral Areas.  More specifically: 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020, proposes to amend Schedule ‘A’ (OCP Text) of the 
Electoral Area “I” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016, in order to replace the Residential Mixed Use 
(RMU) land use designation with a new “Village Centre” to be applied to the “Apex Village 
Centre (AVC)” and “Twin Lakes Village Centre (TLVC)”. 

It is further proposed to amend Schedule ‘B’ (OCP Map) of Bylaw No. 2683, 2016, in order to 
replace the RMU land use designation at Apex and to replace it with the AVC, Medium Density 
Residential (MR) or Low Density Residential (LR) land use designations.  At Twin Lakes, the RMU 
designation will be replaced with the TLVC designation. 

Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2020, proposes to amend Schedule ‘1’ (Zoning Text) of the 
Electoral Area “I” Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008, in order to introduce a new Low Density 
Residential Duplex Apex (RD2), Medium Density Residential Apex (RM2), Apex Mountain Village 
(AMV) and Chutes End Comprehensive Development (CD8) zones.  The RD2, RM2, AMV and CD8 
zones contain revised regulations to those found in the zones they are replacing. 

It is further proposed to amend Schedule ‘2’ (Zoning Map) of Bylaw No. 2457, 2008, in order to 
replace the Residential Apex Alpine Site Specific (RS4s), Residential Multiple Unit Three (RM3) 
and Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) with the RD2, RM2, AMV and CD8 zones. 

FURTHER INFORMATION 

For further information about the content of Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020, and 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2020, and the land affected by them, persons are encouraged to 
inspect a copy of the proposed Bylaws at the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen office at 
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, on weekdays (excluding statutory holidays) between the hours of 
8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.   

Please note that the RDOS office is currently closed to the public due to the on-going provincial 
health emergency and this information will be available in the front entry vestibule.  This same 
information is also available at: www.rdos.bc.ca (Property & Development → Planning, Zoning & 
Subdivision → Strategic Projects → Apex Zone Update).   

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND PROTECTION OF PRIVACY ACT 
Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-
Similkameen takes seriously.  Our practices have been designed to ensure compliance with the 
privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) 
(“FIPPA”).  Any personal or proprietary information you provide to us is collected, used and 
disclosed in accordance with FIPPA. 
 

Postal: 101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 | Tel: 250-492-0237 | Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca 

https://rdos.webex.com/
http://www.rdos.bc.ca/
http://www.rdos.bc.ca/
mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2858, 2020 

Micro Cannabis Production Facilities 
Notice is hereby given by the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) that all persons who 
believe that their interest in property is affected by the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
Electoral Area Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2858, 2020, will be afforded a 
reasonable opportunity to be heard or to present written submissions respecting matters contained 
in the proposed bylaws at a delegated public hearing to be held on: 

Date:  Thursday, July 2, 2020 

Time:   9:00 a.m.  
Location:    https://rdos.webex.com (Meeting Number: 146 377 8561; password RD@S) 

INSTRUCTIONS ON HOW TO PARTICIPATE 

To participate in the electronic public hearing, please enter the text provided under “Location” 
(above) into the address bar of an internet browser (e.g. Chrome, Firefox, Safari, Edge).  The 
“Meeting Number” for the public hearing is: 146 377 8561; password RD@S) Interested individuals 
may also participate in the public hearing by calling 250-490-4217 or Toll Free at 1-877-610-3737.  

The Regional District is utilizing Cisco’s Webex videoconferencing services and individuals interested 
in participating in the public hearing are encouraged to test this service on their computer or mobile 
device prior to the date of the hearing.  Additional instructions on how to participate in an electronic 
public hearing are available on the Regional District’s website: www.rdos.bc.ca (Property & 
Development → Planning, Zoning & Subdivision → Strategic Projects → Micro Cannabis Production 
Facilities). 

Anyone who considers themselves affected by the amendment bylaws can present written 
information to the Regional District prior to or at the public hearing and may also speak at the public 
hearing.  No letter, report or representation from the public will be received after the conclusion of 
the public hearing. 

PURPOSE OF THE BYLAW(S): 

The purpose of the proposed amendments is to to introduce new policy statements into the Electoral 
Area Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaws that speak to the criteria the Regional District Board will 
use when considering rezoning applications proposing to allow micro cannabis production facility 
parcel.  This includes:   

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or Medium Density 
Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility will be setback 60.0 metres from that 
zone boundary. 

These amendments will be applied to the following bylaws: 

• Electoral Area “A” OCP Bylaw No. 2450, 2008; 

• Electoral Area “C” OCP Bylaw No. 2452, 2008; 

• Electoral Area “D” OCP Bylaw No. 2603, 2012; 

• Electoral Area “E” OCP Bylaw No. 2458, 2008; 

• Electoral Area “F” OCP Bylaw No. 2790, 2018; 

• Electoral Area “H” OCP Bylaw No. 2497, 2012;  

• Electoral Area “I” OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016. 

FURTHER INFORMATION 

For further information about the content of Amendment Bylaw No. 2858, 2020, and the land 
affected by them, persons are encouraged to inspect a copy of the proposed Bylaws at the Regional 
District of Okanagan-Similkameen office at 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, on weekdays (excluding 
statutory holidays) between the hours of 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.  

Information related to this proposal is also available for viewing at:  www.rdos.bc.ca (Property & 
Development → Planning, Zoning & Subdivision → Strategic Projects → Micro Cannabis Production 

https://rdos.webex.com/
http://www.rdos.bc.ca/
http://www.rdos.bc.ca/


Facilities). 

Anyone who considers themselves affected by Amendment Bylaw No. 2858, 2020, can present 
written information to the Regional District prior to or at the public hearing and may also speak at 
the public hearing.  No letter, report or representation from the public will be received after the 
conclusion of the public hearing. 

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND PROTECTION OF PRIVACY ACT 
Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
takes seriously.  Our practices have been designed to ensure compliance with the privacy provisions 
of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) (“FIPPA”).  Any 
personal or proprietary information you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance 
with FIPPA. 
 

Postal: 101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 | Tel: 250-490-4101 | Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca 

mailto:planning@rdos.bc.ca


 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Protective Services Committee 

Thursday, July 2, 2020 
09:15 am 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
THAT the Agenda for the Protective Services Meeting of July 2, 2020 be adopted. 

 
 

B. DELEGATIONS 
 

1. Christine Walsh, Manager of Police and Community Support Services, Regional District of Central 
Okanagan 
Ms. Walsh will address the Board regarding E-Comm and E9-1-1 Systems. 

 
 
C. ADJOURNMENT 
 



1450 K.L.O. Road
Kelowna, BC, V1W 3Z4
rdco.com

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen Presentation

July 2, 2020



2

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Requisitions:
Kootenay Boundary Regional District (79,827) (54,695) (52,670) (51,775) (52,082) (56,365) (60,246)               
Central Kootenay Regional District (76,266) (51,243) (49,749) (49,832) (48,912) (53,183) (56,077)               
Okanagan Similkameen Regional District (162,969) (112,592) (113,427) (120,525) (127,793) (138,231) (139,549)             
North Okanagan Regional District (154,731) (106,230) (106,947) (108,095) (116,485) (125,965) (129,517)             
East Kootenay Regional District (174,235) (120,292) (120,223) (120,915) (113,588) (118,760) (124,584)             
Columbia Shuswap Regional District (110,778) (76,367) (77,972) (79,463) (82,771) (89,261) (92,749)               
Thompson Nicola Regional District (281,645) (196,761) (192,036) (193,517) (188,963) (197,190) (206,287)             
Squamish Lillooett (5,304) (4,150) (4,103) (4,381) (4,153) (4,493) (4,825)                 
Central Okanagan Regional District (384,613) (278,475) (291,098) (313,663) (334,643) (352,118) (358,753)             
       Total Apportionment (1,430,368) (1,000,805) (1,008,225) (1,042,166) (1,069,389) (1,069,389) (1,172,588)          

Savings compared to 2014 rates (429,563)          (422,143)         (388,202)         (360,979)         (360,979)         (257,780)             

Cumulative savings for the group (2,219,646)          



▪ For the purposes of the Agreement Cost Sharing:  
 Costs are shared on the basis of Assessments for all partners:

 NOTE:  IMPROVEMENTS ONLY
▪ RDCO makes annual requisition to partners during budget cycle.

 Request based on current budgeted amount and apportionments to partners
 Prior year annual “true up” of actual vs budget via the annual surplus/deficit is 

included in calculation (– explained later)
▪ Then each RD has its own bylaw and may calculate and collect taxes 

as per their bylaw, and remits them to RDCO in August each year.

3



4

Apportionment Detail: Improv. Assessments Apportionment 2020 2019 Change

Kootenay Boundary Regional District 610,570,410 60,246                5.138% 4.96% 0.17%

Central Kootenay Regional District 568,315,486 56,077                4.782% 4.68% 0.10%

Okanagan Similkameen Regional District 1,414,271,009 139,549              11.901% 12.17% -0.27%

North Okanagan Regional District 1,312,592,053 129,517              11.045% 11.09% -0.05%

East Kootenay Regional District 1,262,605,433 124,584              10.625% 10.46% 0.17%

Columbia Shuswap Regional District 939,973,065 92,749                7.910% 7.86% 0.05%

Thompson Nicola Regional District 2,090,629,964 206,287              17.592% 17.36% 0.23%

Squamish Lillooett 48,898,484 4,825                 0.411% 0.40% 0.02%

Central Okanagan Regional District 3,635,799,210 358,753              30.595% 31.01% -0.41%

11,883,655,114 1,172,588           100.000% 100.00% (0.000)              



5

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Okanagan Similkameen Regional District (162,969) (112,592) (113,427) (120,525) (127,793) (138,231) (139,549) 
Annual Savings (50,377) (49,542) (42,444) (35,176) (24,738) (23,420)
Total (225,696)



▪ Capital $61k
 Reserve originated prior to 2015 when service was in house for capital replacements
 All partners contributed
 Continue to use $19k annually toward capital improvements in agreement with Ecomm
 Balance forecast at end of 2020 is $43k

▪ Operating $227k
 Contributions have been made to reserve with agreement of partners to pay for Next 

Gen Technology upgrades.  
 This was done so that the tax requisitions would not see a large “bump”
 Balance forecast at end of 2020 after use of $170k is $59.6k

6



▪ 2020 Budget:
 $1.432m

 Note:  Ecomm Contract under negotiation
 Includes $150k for Next Gen Technology upgrade and $50k Contingency

▪ Funded by:
 $170k from Operating Reserve – (as planned, to fund the Next Gen technology 

upgrade)
 $89k prior year surplus carried forward (variance of budget & actual – true up)
 $1.173m tax requisition as per 1st slide.

RECAP:
▪ RDOS Requistion for 2020:  $139,549 (11.9%) (vs. $138,231at 12.17% in 2019)

7



8



 
 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Corporate Services Committee 

Thursday, July 2, 2020 
09:45 am 

AGENDA 
 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
THAT the Agenda for the Corporate Services Meeting of July 2, 2020 be adopted. 

 
 

B. Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Stimulus Projects List – For Information Only 
1. Stimulus Projects List 

 
 

C. 2020 UBCM Convention – For information only 
 

 
D. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 



Proposed New Capital or Consulting Projects 

Rank Service Project Name Rationale Description
Current stage/Required before grant 
application

Matching funds available? 
Where?

 Estimated total 
cost 

 PW 
Priority 

Why a priority? Type of Project

RURAL PROJECTS AREA A - OSOYOOS RURAL

RURAL PROJECTS AREA B - CAWSTON AREA

RURAL PROJECTS AREA C - OLIVER RURAL
Willowbrook Water 
System

New Reservoir
Existing reservoir capacity too small, fire 
protection issue

Replacement of existing reservoir or 
adding a second reservoir

No design currently completed
No reserves or secured 
funding in place

 $1.5-2M               1 
Fire Protection; 
Operational

Capital

RURAL PROJECTS AREA D - OKANAGAN FALLS AREA
OK Falls Sewer and 
WWTP

Solids Processing
Additional funds needed; COVID-19 
increased costs

Installation of a centrifuge in a building 
addition to the WWTP

Full design completed; tendered but not yet 
awarded

$2.0M in Strategic Priorities 
Fund from UBCM

 $3.0M               1 
Critical Infrastructure; 
Operational

Capital

OK Falls Sewer and 
WWTP

Master Plan
Critical to creating a replacement and 
upgrade plan

Create overall capital plan including 
dynamic sewer model, upgrades, 
deficiencies and prioritization

No master plan has been created; basic info 
from AMIP but does not include condition 
assessments or modelling

No reserves or secured 
funding in place

 $75-100k               1 

Operational; Critical 
infrastructure,  
Regulatory Financial 
Planning

Capacity Building; 
Assessment

Sun Valley Water 
System

Water Treatment System
Precipitate from water needs to be 
removed as issues with water quality 
arise during the year

Installation of a treatment system to 
remove the 

No design currently completed
No reserves or secured 
funding in place; Gas tax 
funded (?)

 $25-50k               1 
Health & Safety; 
Operational

Capital

605 Willow (Lake Front Development)  $             140,000 

Year Round Washrooms Renovation Christie Park  $                50,000 

Pickel Ball Courts  $                75,000 

RURAL PROJECTS AREA E - NARAMATA
Naramata Water 
System 

Watermain Upgrade Works
Watermains are at or nearing end of 
useful life; breakages are increasing

Replacement of high priority water mains 
Currently preparing RFP for design 
completion

Possible Capital reserves/user 
fees

 $5-6M+               1 Liability; Operational Capital

RURAL PROJECTS AREA F 
Faulder Water 
System

Mainline Valve Replacement
Issues with aging valves; inability to 
completely turn off 

Replacement of valves along mains 
throughout distribution system

No design completed but will be very 
minimal; mostly construction work

Capital reserves               2 Operational Capital

Mariposa Tennis/Pickle Ball courts  $             130,000 

RURAL PROJECTS AREA G
Olalla Water 
System

Watermain Replacement
Reaching end of useful life; see increase 
breakage

Old watermains on side streets require 
replacement

Design planned for 2020 for all remaining Community Works Gas Tax  $2M+               2 Operational Capital

New Community Pool/ existing pool reno  $          3,100,000 

RURAL PROJECTS AREA H

Missezula Lake 
Water System

Treatment Plant and Intake Improvements Required to meet health standards
Design and Installation of new treatment 
system and revised intake structure

ICIP grant application submitted; if funds 
not received, reapplication will be 
necessary

Borrowing Bylaw in place  $2.5M               1 
Regulatory; Health & 
Safety; Operational

Capital

RURAL PROJECTS AREA I
Kaleden Hotel Project  $          1,000,000 

OTHER PROJECTS - REGIONAL, SUB REGIONAL, MULTIPLE SERVICE AREAS

All Water/Sewer Systems
Water & Sewer System SCADA Master 
Plan - Upgrades - PHASE 2/3

Critical electronic equipment at end of 
useful life

SCADA hardware replacement for multiple 
water & sewer systems

Part of Master Plan - 
preliminary design and cost 
estimates completed

Capital 
Reserves/User 
fees depending 
on specific water 
system

 $250k                                           1 
Health & Safety; 
Critical 
infrastructure

Campbell Mountain Landfill Organics Composting Facility

Biosolids composting must relocate; 
Important waste diversion project; organic 
diversion may be required for using 
biocover

Design and Construction of new facility 
composting collected organics and biosolids 
in two streams

ICIP grant application 
submitted; SWMP supported; 
possible property acquisition 
still required

SWMP 
supported; 
Borrowing bylaw 
would be 
required

 $25M                                           1 
Environment; 
Regulatory 
requirements

Campbell Mountain Landfill Biocover Design and Installation Mitigation of methane produced by landfill
If approval is received from MOE then 
proceed to detailed design and then 
installation of full-scale biocover 

Substituted Application to be 
submitted to MOE in May - 
wait for decision; detailed 
design still required

CML Closure 
Reserve

 $1.5M                                           2 Environment



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200702/Corporate Services/C. UBCM  Report.Docx  
Page 1 of 2 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: July 2, 2020 
  
RE: 2020 UBCM Convention – For Information Only 
 
The Union of BC Municipalities (UBCM) convention will take place September 22 through 24 in a 
Virtual format as a result of COVID-19.  . 
 
The typical process involves the Board identifying issues they would like to discuss with the 
Province. Administration will then submit the list along with the issue/purpose, background and 
expected outcome.  Shortly before the convention, we will be advised of a meeting time if our 
meeting request has been approved.The Deadline to request meetings has not be determined as 
of yet.  
 
For information, the Resolutions that were submitted to SILGA to be brought to the 2020 UBCM 
Convention are as follows: 
 
Hazardous Materials Recycling Regulation 
Whereas non -refillable pressurized tanks and sharps (needles) have been identified across British Columbia 
as creating serious health and safety concerns for the public and workers engaged in garbage and recycling 
collection, processing and landfilling; 
 
And whereas the Province of British Columbia can include these hazardous materials under the Recycling 
Regulation to ensure cost effective and safe disposal under an Extended Producer Responsibility Program; 
 
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request the Province of British Columbia to include non-refillable 
pressurized tanks and sharps (needles) under the Recycling Regulation. 
 
Venting Index Requirement and Efficiency of Burns 
Whereas there is a large amount of smoke created during forest fuel reduction burns and/or agricultural 
burns; 
 
And whereas there are minimal days that the venting index permits burning resulting in a large number of 
burns being undertaken during the permitted times, which results in a tremendous amount of smoke being 
produced, as all burning is taking place within a short period of time; 
 
And whereas forced air curtain burner or trench burner systems greatly reduce the smoke created during 
combustion by improving the efficiency of a fire resulting in clean burns with very little atmospheric 
particulate being produced; 
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200702/Corporate Services/C. UBCM  Report.Docx  
Page 2 of 2 
 

Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request the Province of British Columbia to allow burning outside of 
venting days with the use of forced air systems, such as trench or curtain burners.  
 
Indigenous Peoples’ Representation 
Whereas the Province of British Columbia has enacted Bill 41-2019, the Declaration on the Rights of 
Indigenous Peoples Act to align BC's laws with the United Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous 
Peoples (UNDRIP);  

And whereas UNDRIP includes Article 5: Indigenous peoples have the right to maintain and strengthen their 
distinct political, legal, economic, social and culture institutions while retaining their right to participate fully, 
if they so choose, in the political, economic, social and cultural life of the State;  

And whereas the Local Government Act does not allow for Indigenous peoples' representation at regional 
district tables when the regional district is situated in non-treaty territory: 

Therefore be it resolved that UBCM encourage the Province to, in consultation with BC Indigenous peoples 
and impacted Regional Districts, explore amending the Local Government Act to include self-determined 
participation by BC Indigenous peoples as voting regional district directors.” 

 
The following resolution was sent back to be re-worded. 
 
Restructuring Regional Governance in British Columbia 
Whereas the Province of British Columbia is responsible for delivering all university, school and health 
services (MUSH), and many municipal services throughout the Province; 
 
And whereas the nature of local government is evolving and it may be time for a discussion on streamlining 
structure and powers to facilitate better communication, economies of scale and more transparent 
customer service; 
 
Therefore be it resolved that UBCM request the Province to work with local governments to identify the 
various services and programs offered by governments and agencies within the community, with a goal of 
establishing a public education/awareness program to offer clarity to residents about what services are 
provided by municipalities, regional districts, other orders of government and agencies, so they know who to 
contact when they have questions or concerns; 
 
And be if further resolved that greater coordination and communication take place between orders of 
government and agencies about the services and programs offered, so they can better respond to public 
enquiries. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
“C. Malden” 
  
C. Malden, Manager, Legislative Services  

 

 



 
 

 
0550-03 BD 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Thursday, July 2, 2020 

10:15 am 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 
 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Agenda for the RDOS Board Meeting of July 2, 2020 be adopted. 

 
1. Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues 

 
a. Corporate Services Committee – June 18, 2020 

THAT the Minutes of the June 18, 2020 Corporate Services Committee meeting be received. 
 
THAT the Board of Directors implement the administrative recommendations for the 2021 RDOS 
budget public engagement process as contained in the report of June 18, 2020.  
 
THAT Committee instruct staff to bring forward options for bylaw amendments to allow for the 
ticketing of development permit infractions rather than pursue legislative changes through a 
resolution to UBCM. 

 
b. Environment and Infrastructure Committee – June 18, 2020 

THAT the Minutes of the June 18, 2020 Environment and Infrastructure Committee meeting be 
received. 
 

c. RDOS Regular Board Meeting – June 18, 2020 
THAT the minutes of the June 18, 2020 RDOS Regular Board meeting be adopted. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 2 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT the Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues be adopted. 

 
 

B. DELEGATIONS 
 

1. Dan Albas, Member of Parliament, Central Okanagan-Similkameen-Nicola 
Mr. Albas will address the Board with regards to 5G networks 

 
 

  



RDOS Board Meeting 2 July 2, 2020 
 

 
C. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Rural Land Use Matters 

 
1. Temporary Use Permit Application – 3829 37th Street – Electoral Area “A” 

a. Permit 
b. Representations  
 
RECOMMENDATION 3 (Unweighted Rural – Simple Majority) 
THAT Temporary Use Permit No. A2019.011-TUP be approved, subject to the following 
conditions: 

a) that all deficiencies identified in the health and safety inspection dated January 30, 2020 and 
listed below be corrected by the applicant and inspected by an RDOS Building Official, prior to 
issuance: 

i) smoke alarm for bedroom 4 and master bedroom 

ii) handrail for stairs to master bedroom and to pool 

iii) self closing gates for pool 

iv) posting of layout/exit paths/emergency numbers and occupancy load. 

b) and that a privacy screen/fence be installed by the applicant which aligns with the highest 
portion of the existing fence along the north property line and extends to provide screening for 
the entire deck/pool area, prior to issuance. 

 
 

2. Zoning Bylaw Amendment – 10210 81st Street – Electoral Area “A” 
a. Bylaw No. 2451.30, 2020 
b. Representations  
 
RECOMMENDATION 4 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
THAT Bylaw No. 2451.30, 2020, being a bylaw to amend the Electoral Area “A” Zoning Bylaw to 
alter minimum yard setbacks at 10210 81st St., be read a first and second time; 

AND THAT pursuant to sub-section 464 of the Local Government Act, the Regional District Board 
resolves to waive the holding of a public hearing for Bylaw No. 2451.30, 2020, Electoral Area “A” 
Zoning Amendment Bylaw;  

AND THAT pursuant to sub-section 467 of the Local Government Act, staff give notice of the 
waiving of the public hearing for Bylaw No. 2451.30, 2020, Electoral Area “A” Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw. 

 
 

3. Official Community Plan (OCP) and Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Electoral Area “I” Apex Mountain 
Zone View 
a. Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
b. Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2020  
c. Representations 
 
RECOMMENDATION 5 (Unweighted Rural Vote – 2/3 Majority) 
THAT Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020, Electoral Area “I” Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw and 
Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2020, Electoral Area “I” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a third time and 
adopted. 
 
  



RDOS Board Meeting 3 July 2, 2020 
 

 
4. Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw Amendments – Micro Cannabis Production Facilities  

Electoral Areas “A”, “C”, “D”, “E”, “F”, “G”, “H” & “I” 
a. Bylaw No. 2858, 2019 
b. Representations 
 
RECOMMENDATION 6 (Unweighted Rural Vote – 2/3 Majority) 

THAT Bylaw No. 2858, 2019, a bylaw to amend Electoral Area Official Community Plans to 
introduce criteria against which the Regional District may choose to evaluate an application for a 
“micro cannabis production facility”, be read a third time and adopted. 
 

 
5. Letters of Concurrence (Rogers) – 36030 107th Street, Electoral Area “C” 

 
RECOMMENDATION 7 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 

THAT the Regional District defer the  request for a letter of concurrence to locate a 
Communication Tower at 36030 107th Street (6450 Spartan Street) pending response from 
ratepayers within a Public Notification Area of 150 metres from the subject parcel. 

 
 

D. PUBLIC WORKS  
 
1. Campbell Mountain Landfill Leachate Management Award 

 
RECOMMENDATION 8 (Weighted Corporate Vote – Majority) 

THAT the Campbell Mountain Landfill Leachate Management Planning and Implementation 
contract be sole-sourced to Sperling Hansen Associates in the amount of $94,000 + applicable 
taxes; and 

THAT up to $25,000 be approved as a contingency for this project. 
 

 
2. Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) Project Award 

 
RECOMMENDATION 9 (Weighted Corporate Vote – Majority) 

THAT the “SCADA Migration and Communications Upgrades Project” be awarded to MPE 
Engineering in the amount of $189,690.00; and 

 
THAT $50,000 be approved as a contingency for this project. 

 
 

E. FINANCE  
 
1. Area “D” Community Works Gas Tax Reserve Expenditure 

a. Bylaw No. 2904 
 

RECOMMENDATION 10 (Weighted Corporate Vote – 2/3 Majority) 

THAT Bylaw No.2904, 2020, being a bylaw to authorize an expenditure of $95,000 from the 
Electoral Area “D” Community Works Reserve to fund work at Garnet Family Park be given first, 
second, & third readings and be adopted. 



RDOS Board Meeting 4 July 2, 2020 
 

 
 

2. Area “H” Community Works Gas Tax Reserve Expenditure 
a. Bylaw No. 2906 

 
RECOMMENDATION 11 (Weighted Corporate Vote – 2/3 Majority) 

THAT Bylaw No.2906, 2020, being a bylaw to authorize an expenditure of $85,000 from the 
Electoral Area “H” Community Works Reserve to provide a contribution to the Town of Princeton 
for the expansion of the Liquid Waste Receiving Facility be given first, second, & third readings 
and be adopted. 

 
 

3. Area “D” Community Works Gas Tax Reserve Expenditure 
a. Bylaw No. 2907 

 
RECOMMENDATION 12 (Weighted Corporate Vote – 2/3 Majority) 

THAT Bylaw No.2907, 2020, being a bylaw to authorize an expenditure of $95,000 from the 
Electoral Area “D” Community Works Reserve to provide a contribution to the Okanagan Falls 
Irrigation District to fund the design and construction of a public washroom facility at Centennial 
Park in Okanagan Falls be given first, second, & third readings and be adopted. 

 
 

F. LEGISLATIVE SERVICES 
 
1. Okanagan Falls Sewer 

a. Bylaw No. 1238.08 
 

RECOMMENDATION 13 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 

THAT Bylaw No. 1239.08, 2020 Okanagan Falls Sanitary Sewer Service Area Extension Bylaw be 
adopted. 

 
 
2. Ministerial Order M192/Public Access to Meetings 

 
RECOMMENDATION 14 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 

THAT meetings of the Board of Directors for the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen be 
closed to the public for the duration of the State of Provincial Emergency due to the inability to 
meet physical distancing requirements in the Board Room in accordance with, or 
recommendations under, the Public Health Act; and, 
 
THAT the Regional District meet the requirements of S. 226 of the Local Government Act for 
public participation by inviting the public to attend electronically. 

 
 

G. CAO REPORTS  
 
1. Verbal Update 
 
 



RDOS Board Meeting 5 July 2, 2020 
 

 
H. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
1. Chair’s Report 
 

 
2. Board Members Verbal Update 

 
 
I. ADJOURNMENT 
 



 
 

Minutes are in DRAFT form and are subject to change pending 
approval by the Regional District Board 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Corporate Services Committee 

Thursday, June 18, 2020 
9:00 am 

 

MINUTES 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Vice Chair D. Holmes, District of Summerland 
Director M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos 
Director J. Bloomfield, City of Penticton 
Director T. Boot, District of Summerland 
Director G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 
Director S. Coyne, Town of Princeton 
Director R. Gettens, Electoral Area “F” 
Director J. Kimberley, City of Penticton 

 
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos  
Director S. Monteith, Electoral Area “I” 
Director R. Knodel, Electoral Area “C” 
Director M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director R. Obirek, Electoral Area “D” 
Director F. Regehr, City of Penticton 
Director T. Roberts, Electoral Area “G” 
Director J. Vassilaki, City of Penticton 
Director P. Veintimilla, Town of Oliver 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
 

 
 

STAFF PRESENT:  
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services  

 
 
  

 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Agenda for the Corporate Services Meeting of June 18, 2020 be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 
B. 2021 RDOS BUDGET PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT PROCESS 

1. Report 
2. Engagement Strategy 

 
The Committee was advised of the plan for gathering feedback and sharing information about the 
proposed 2021 RDOS budget. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 2  
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Board of Directors implement the administrative recommendations for the 2021 RDOS budget 
public engagement process as contained in the report of June 18, 2020. - CARRIED 

 
 
  



Corporate Services Committee 2 June 18, 2020 
 
 
C. COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE 

1. Report 
2. CivicReady Notification Options - Mark Up  

The Committee was advised of plans to streamline internal and external RDOS communications through 
electronic notification, information updates and regular meetings and discussions. 

 
 

D. 2020 UBCM PROPOSED RESOLUTION -EFFECTIVE ENFORCEMENT OPTIONS FOR DEVELOPMENT 
PERMITS 

1. Report 
The Committee was advised that there is no authority under the Local Government Act, the Community 
Charter or the Local Government Bylaw Notice Enforcement Act that would allow a local government to 
enforce violations to a development permit requirement.  The only recourse available to a local 
government seeking to enforce a development permit is by way of civil proceeding in B.C. Supreme 
Court, which is costly, administratively onerous and time consuming. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 3  
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Committee instruct staff to bring forward options for bylaw amendments to allow for the ticketing 
of development permit infractions rather than pursue legislative changes through a resolution to UBCM. 
CARRIED 

 
 

E. 2020 UBCM CONVENTION – FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
1. Report 

The Committee was advised that the Union of BC Municipalities (UBCM) convention will take place 
September 22 through 24 in a virtual format, as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.  Exact details of the 
virtual platform will be released in late June. Cabinet Ministers and provincial staff will still be receiving 
resolution requests in an abbreviated format. 

 
 
F. CITIZEN SURVEY 

1. Report 
2. Proposed Survey 
3. Previous Survey Question Sets 

The Committee was advised that The RDOS will use the data from the Citizen Survey to gauge customer 
satisfaction with services and programs, and to determine where improvements and public education 
can be advanced. 

 
 
G. ADJOURNMENT 

It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Corporate Services Committee meeting adjourn at 10:28 a.m. – CARRIED 
 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_________________________ 
K. Kozakevich 
RDOS Board Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT:  
 
 
_________________________ 
B. Newell 
Corporate Officer 

 



 
 

Minutes are in DRAFT form and are subject to change pending 
approval by the Regional District Board 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
Environment and Infrastructure Committee 

Thursday, June 18, 2020 
10:40 am 

 

MINUTES 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Vice Chair R. Gettens, Electoral Area “F” 
Director M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos 
Director J. Bloomfield, City of Penticton 
Director T. Boot, District of Summerland 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 
Director S. Coyne, Town of Princeton  
Director D. Holmes, District of Summerland 
Director J. Kimberley, City of Penticton  
Director R. Knodel, Electoral Area “C” 

 
Director K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos 
Director S. Monteith, Electoral Area “I” 
Director R. Obirek, Electoral Area “D” 
Director M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director F. Regehr, City of Penticton 
Director T. Roberts, Electoral Area “G” 
Director J. Vassilaki, City of Penticton  
Director P. Veintimilla, Town of Oliver 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
 

 
 

STAFF PRESENT:  
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services  

  
 
 

 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1  
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Agenda for the Environment and Infrastructure Committee Meeting of June 18, 2020 be 
adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 

Because the meeting commenced earlier than anticipated, Item C was brought forward to allow the Delegation 
opportunity to join the meeting. 
 
C. RECYCLEBC BANS BLUE BAGS 

1. Presentation 
The Committee was advised of the changes coming to the RecycleBC recycling program. 

 
 

B. DELEGATION 
1. Michael Bezener, ECOmmunity Program Director, En’owkin Centre 
Mr. Bezener addressed the Board regarding the South Okanagan Conservation Fund project and 
proposed collaborative establishment of snpinktn Conservation Land Trust by the En’owkin Centre and 
Penticton Indian Band 
 
 



Environment and Infrastructure Committee 2 January 9, 2020 
 
 
 
C. ADJOURNMENT 

By consensus, the Environment and Infrastructure Committee meeting adjourned at 11:36 a.m. 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
G. Bush 
Committee Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
B. Newell 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 



 
 

Minutes are in DRAFT form and are subject to change pending 
approval by the Regional District Board 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 

Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen (RDOS) Board 
of Directors held at 12:00 p.m. on Thursday, June 18, 2019 in the Boardroom, 101 Martin Street, 
Penticton, British Columbia. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  
Chair K. Kozakevich, Electoral Area “E” 
Vice Chair D. Holmes, District of Summerland 
Director M. Bauer, Village of Keremeos 
Director J. Bloomfield, City of Penticton 
Director T. Boot, District of Summerland 
Director G. Bush, Electoral Area “B” 
Director B. Coyne, Electoral Area “H” 
Director S. Coyne, Town of Princeton 
Director R. Gettens, Electoral Area “F” 
Director J. Kimberley, City of Penticton  

 
Director R. Knodel, Electoral Area “C” 
Director S. McKortoff, Town of Osoyoos 
Director S. Monteith, Electoral Area “I” 
Director R. Obirek, Electoral Area “D” 
Director M. Pendergraft, Electoral Area “A” 
Director F. Regehr, City of Penticton 
Director T. Roberts, Electoral Area “G” 
Director J. Vassilaki, City of Penticton  
Director P. Veintimilla, Town of Oliver 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
 

 
 

STAFF PRESENT:  
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services  
 

  
 

 
A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RECOMMENDATION 1 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Agenda for the RDOS Board Meeting of June 18, 2020 be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
1. Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues 

a. Corporate Services Committee – June 4, 2020 
THAT the Minutes of the June 4, 2020 Corporate Services Committee meeting be received. 
 

b. Environment and Infrastructure Committee – June 4, 2020 
THAT the Minutes of the June 4, 2020 Environment and Infrastructure Committee meeting be 
received. 
 

c. Planning and Development Committee – June 4, 2020 
THAT the Minutes of the June 4, 2020 Planning and Development Committee meeting be 
received. 
 

d. RDOS Regular Board Meeting – June 4, 2020 
THAT the minutes of the June 4, 2020 RDOS Regular Board meeting be adopted. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 2 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Consent Agenda – Corporate Issues be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 



RDOS Board Meeting 2 June 18, 2020 
 

 
2. Consent Agenda – Development Services  

 
a. Electoral Area “D” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) Appointment 

THAT the Board of Directors appoint Bob Pearce as a member of the Electoral Area “D” Advisory 
Planning Commission until October 31, 2022. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 3 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Consent Agenda – Development Services be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 
B. DELEGATIONS 
 

1. Mr. Richard Cannings, Member of Parliament, New Democratic Party of South Okanagan-West 
Kootenay 
Mr. Cannings addressed the Board regarding 5G networks.  
 

 
2. Mr. Leighton McCarthy, South Okanagan Performing Arts Centre Society 

Mr. McCarthy addressed the Board regarding the SOPAC Workshop Results.  
 
 
C. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Rural Land Use Matters 
 

1. Housing Needs Assessment Report – Contract Award 
 
RECOMMENDATION 4 (Weighted Corporate Vote –Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Board of Directors award the Housing Needs Assessment Report contract to EcoPlan in the 
amount of $116,827. - CARRIED 

 
 

  



RDOS Board Meeting 3 June 18, 2020 
 

 
2. Floodplain Exemption Application — 3297 Coalmont Road, Electoral Area “H” 

a. Flood Protection Report 
 
To allow for the construction of a single detached dwelling within the floodplain setback and below 
the flood construction level of Perley Creek. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 5 (Unweighted Rural Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the floodplain exemption application for Lot 2, Plan KAP18873, District Lot 1740, YDYD, in 
order to permit the development of a single detached dwelling within the floodplain setback and 
below the flood construction level of Perley Creek, be approved subject to a statutory covenant 
being registered on title in order to: 
a)  “save harmless” the Regional District against any damages as a result of a flood occurrence; and, 
b)  secure the recommendations contained within the flood hazard assessment report, dated May 

5, 2020, prepared by Alan Bates (P.Eng.), of Streamworks Consulting Inc. 
CARRIED 
 

 
3. Agricultural Land Commission Referral (“non-farm” use) – 7738 Island Road, Electoral Area “C” 

 
The Chair enquired whether the property owner was present to address the Board. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 6 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Board of Directors defers making a decision and directs that the proposal be 
considered by the Electoral Area “C” Advisory Planning Commission (APC). - CARRIED 
 

 
4. Liquor and Cannabis Regulation Branch Referral – Unit 8A, 5350 Highway 97, Electoral Area “D” 

a. Representations 
 
RECOMMENDATION 7 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the matter of the Liquor and Cannabis Regulation Branch Referral for 5350 Highway 97 be 
referred to the Electoral Area “D” Advisory Planning Commission. 
CARRIED 
 

 
D. COMMUNITY SERVICES  

 
1. South Okanagan-Similkameen Community Child Care Planning Project – Contract Award 

 
RECOMMENDATION 8 (Weighted Corporate Vote – Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Board of Directors award the South Okanagan-Similkameen Community Child Care 
Planning Project (the Project) to Social Planning and Research Council of British Columbia (Sparc BC) 
in the amount of $114,520. - CARRIED 

 
 

  



RDOS Board Meeting 4 June 18, 2020 
 

 
E. FINANCE  

 
1. 2019 Audited Financial Statements 

As the delegation was not present when this item was introduced, the item was moved to later in 
the meeting.  Please refer to page 5 of these minutes. 

 
 
F. LEGISLATIVE SERVICES 

 
1. Okanagan Sterile Insect Release Program 

a. Report 
b. Letter 

 
RECOMMENDATION 9 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT the Board of Directors support the Okanagan Kootenay Sterile Insect Release Program Board 
to authorize, by bylaw, a cashflow management program that mirrors the revenue anticipation 
borrowing authority granted to local governments under the Local Government Act s. 404, such that 
borrowed funds may only be used to cover current-year operating expenditures included in OKSIR’s 
Five-Year Financial Plan, to a maximum of the amount owing to the OKSIR from the current-year tax 
requisitions. 
CARRIED 

 
 

2. Board Remuneration Bylaw No. 2903, 2020 
a. Bylaw 2903 
 
RECOMMENDATION 10 (Unweighted Corporate Vote –2/3 Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT Board Remuneration, Expenses and Benefits Bylaw No. 2903, 2020 be given first, second and 
third readings and be adopted. - CARRIED 

 
 

G. CAO REPORTS  
 
1. Verbal Update 
 

 
  



RDOS Board Meeting 5 June 18, 2020 
 

 
E. FINANCE  

1. 2019 Audited Financial Statements 
Mr. Markus Schrott, Engagement Partner of BDO Canada LLP presented the Audited Financial 
Statements to the Board: 
a. Report 
b. Okanagan Similkameen Regional District Audit Final Report 
c. Draft 2019 Financial Statements 
 
RECOMMENDATION 11 (Weighted Corporate Vote –Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
The 2019 Audited Financial Statements of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen as of 
December 31, 2019 be received; and 
 
THAT the RDOS Board adopt all reported 2019 transactions as amendments to the 2019 Final 
Budget. 
CARRIED 

 
 
H. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
1. Chair’s Report 
 

 
2. Board Representation 

a. BC Grape Growers Association and Starling Control – Bush, Monteith (Alternate) 
b. Municipal Finance Authority – Kozakevich (Chair), Holmes (Vice Chair, Alternate) 
c. Municipal Insurance Association – Kozakevich (Chair), Holmes (Vice Chair, Alternate) 
d. Okanagan Basin Water Board - McKortoff, Boot, Knodel, Pendergraft (Alternate to McKortoff), 

Holmes (Alternate to Boot), Monteith (Alternate to Knodel) 
i. Okanagan Basin Water Report – June 2020 

e. Okanagan Film Commission – Gettens, Holmes (Alternate) 
f. Okanagan Regional Library – Kozakevich, Roberts (Alternate) 
g. Okanagan-Kootenay Sterile Insect Release Board – Bush, Knodel (Alternate) 
h. South Okanagan Similkameen Fire Chief Association – Pendergraft, Knodel, Monteith, Obirek, 

Roberts 
i. Okanagan-Similkameen Regional Hospital District – Veintimilla, Boot (Alternate) 
j. South Okanagan Similkameen Rural Healthcare Community Coalition (formerly Developing 

Sustainable Rural Practice Communities) – McKortoff, Bauer (Alternate) 
k. Southern Interior Municipal Employers Association – Knodel, Kozakevich (Alternate)  
 
 

3. Directors Motions – Director B. Coyne 
 

RECOMMENDATION 12 (Unweighted Corporate Vote – Simple Majority) 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT administration be directed to investigate methods of support and funding levels of other 
Regional Districts with respect to Search and Rescue programs in their communities. 
CARRIED 

 
  



RDOS Board Meeting 6 June 18, 2020 
 

 
 

4. Board Members Verbal Update 
 

 
I. ADJOURNMENT 

By consensus, the meeting adjourned at 2:02 p.m..  
 
 

 
 

APPROVED: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
K. Kozakevich 
RDOS Board Chair  

CERTIFIED CORRECT:  
 
 
 
_________________________ 
B. Newell 
Corporate Officer 

 



 
 

                                                         File No: A2019.011-TUP 
Page 1 of 7 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: July 2, 2020 
 
RE: Temporary Use Permit Application – Electoral Area “A” 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  

THAT Temporary Use Permit No. A2019.011-TUP be approved, subject to the following conditions: 

a) that all deficiencies identified in the health and safety inspection dated January 30, 2020 and 
listed below be corrected by the applicant and inspected by an RDOS Building Official, prior to 
issuance: 

i) smoke alarm for bedroom 4 and master bedroom 

ii) handrail for stairs to master bedroom and to pool 

iii) self closing gates for pool 

iv) posting of layout/exit paths/emergency numbers and occupancy load. 

b) and that a privacy screen/fence be installed by the applicant which aligns with the highest 
portion of the existing fence along the north property line and extends to provide screening for 
the entire deck/pool area, prior to issuance. 

 

Purpose:  To allow for a short-term vacation rental use through issuance of a TUP 

Owners:   Richard and Maria Law Agent: John Redenbach Folio: A-01229.000 

Civic:  3829 37th Street  Legal: Lot 11, Plan 9792, District Lot 42, SDYD  

OCP:  Low Density Residential (LR) Zone: Residential Single Family One Zone (RS1) 
 

Proposed Development: 
This application is seeking to a temporary use permit to authorize the operation of a short-term 
vacation rental use of a single detached dwelling, from May 1st to September 30th and which is to be 
comprised of four (4) bedrooms and a maximum occupancy of 8 people within the existing single 
detached dwelling with accommodation for four (4) parking stalls.   

In support of this proposal, the applicant has stated that “operating in this fashion allows this 
property to contribute to the local and provincial economy by bringing groups, mainly families, to 
town to spend money.” 
 
Site Context: 



  

                                                         File No: A2019.011-TUP 
Page 2 of 7 

The subject property is approximately 948 m2 in area and is situated between 37th Street (to the west) 
and 35th Street (to the east).  It is understood that the parcel is comprised of a single detached 
dwelling, garage, carport, and swimming pool. 

The surrounding pattern of development is generally characterised by similarly sized residential 
parcels that have been developed with single detached dwellings, which is surrounded by larger 
agricultural parcels to the north, east and south within Electoral Area “A”.   

The Town of Osoyoos boundary is within 100 m of the subject parcel and includes a range of low to 
high density residential. 
 
Background:  
Parcel Information: 
The current boundaries of the subject property were created by a Plan of Subdivision deposited with 
the Land Titles Office in Kamloops on July 10, 1953, while available Regional District records indicate 
that building permits a garage (1970), pool (1982), and two-car garage (1999) have previously been 
issued for this property. 

The Regional District has received written complaints regarding the operation of a vacation rental and 
this TUP application is an attempt to formalise the use. 

In support of this TUP application, the applicant has provided a Health & Safety Inspection (January 
2020) and a Septic System Review Report (February 2020) and Septic System Inspection Report 
(October 2019). 

BC Assessment has classified the property as “Residential” (Class 01).  

Official Community Plan Bylaw: 
Under the Electoral Area “A” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2450, 2008, the subject 
property is currently designated Low Density Residential (LR). 

Section 17 of the Electoral Area “A” OCP Bylaw contains the objective to consider allowing on-going 
short-term vacation rental uses on properties designated Residential through the issuance of 
Temporary Use Permits. 

This is also supported under Section 8 of the Electoral Area “A” OCP bylaw, which includes vacation 
rental policies that support paid accommodation for visitors through the short-term rental of 
residences provided that community and neighbourhood needs and other land use needs can be 
addressed (Section 8.6.1).   

Evaluation criteria in Section 8.6.2 of the Electoral Area “A” OCP bylaw for assessing applications 
includes: 

a) Capability of accommodating on-site domestic water and sewage disposal; 
b) Mitigating measures such as screening and fencing; 
c) Provision of adequate off-street parking; 
d) Confirmation that the structure proposed complies with the BC Building Code; and  
e) Benefits that such accommodation may provide to the community. 

Zoning Bylaw: 



  

                                                         File No: A2019.011-TUP 
Page 3 of 7 

Under the Electoral Area “A” Zoning Bylaw No. 2451, 2008, the property is currently zoned Residential 
Single Family One Zone (RS1) which permits single detached dwellings as a principal use, with limited 
accommodation for commercial uses in the form of “home occupations” and “bed and breakfast 
operations” as permitted secondary uses.  

COVID-19: 

The Province of British Columbia has declared a state of emergency in response to the COVID-19 
pandemic.  Travel restrictions and precautions are in place for travel across provincial and 
international borders and the Province is encouraging British Columbians not to travel for tourism or 
recreation in an effort to protect vulnerable people in communities from COVID-19. 
 
Public Process: 
In accordance with Section 5.5 of the Development Procedures Bylaw, referral to an Advisory 
Planning Commission and public information meeting requirements are waived during the provincial 
state of emergency declaration in relation to COVID-19.  

As such, this application has not been reviewed by the Electoral Area “A” APC.  However, Electoral 
Area “A” APC members were invited to comment individually on the application.   

On June 8, 2020, an electronic Q&A session was held on Webex and was attended by approximately 
10 members of the public.   

Adjacent property owners received written notice of the upcoming meeting, in addition to written 
notice of the Q&A session. 

All comments received to date in relation to this application are included as a separate item on the 
Board agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
In considering this proposal, Administration notes that the Electoral Area “A” OCP Bylaw includes 
supportive policy for vacation rental uses in residential areas and outlines a number of criteria against 
which the Board will consider such a use.   

In response to the criteria outlined in Section 8.6.2 of the Plan, the applicant has provided the 
following: 

· a septic system inspection, prepared by Jim Ripley, Registered Onsite Wastewater Practitioner 
(ROWP), in support of a four-bedroom vacation rental; 

· on-site domestic water is being provided by the Osoyoos Irrigation District (Note: that the OID 
remains subject to a Boil Water Notice);   

· the provision for adequate parking in the form of a double garage, carport and additional spaces 
in front;  

· a health and safety inspection which identified a number of minor deficiencies; and  

· The provision of screening and fencing along the northern property line (NOTE: this fencing drops 
in height as it approaches the front yard/pool area and it has been noted that this does not 
provide privacy screening between the pool area and the neighbour’s deck – see Attachment No. 
3).  



  

                                                         File No: A2019.011-TUP 
Page 4 of 7 

The applicant has stated that community benefits include contributing to the local and provincial 
economy by bring groups, mainly families, to town to spend money. 

Conversely, unlike other Electoral Areas, Electoral Area “A” does not have a noise bylaw in place so 
there is no mechanism for ensuring that persons in the vicinity will not be disturbed by noise that 
would impair reasonable enjoyment of their property.  

As such, the impact on surrounding homes and the quality of life of existing residents may be unduly 
impacted by loud or unruly behaviour.   

However, the intent of the Regional District’s “Vacation Rental Temporary Use Permit Policy”, and 
supportive OCP policies is to allow for a new vacation rental use to operate for one “season” in order 
to determine if such a use is inappropriate, incompatible or unviable at a particular location and, if so, 
to allow for the permit to lapse or not be renewed within a relatively short period.    

Public Input: 

Many neighbours have noted that this vacation rental has already operated without permit for one 
“season” last summer and has begun to operate this “season” as well, and have expressed concerns 
with operations continuing due to excessive noise, littering, and unruly behavior of guests and large 
groups exceeding an occupancy limit of 8 people. 

Administration notes that an objective of the Board’s approach to vacation rental operations is to 
encouraging permitting so as to ensure compliance with basic health and safety requirements, 
servicing levels (i.e. proper sewage disposal) and to provide an incentive through the renewal process 
for operators to conduct their business responsibly. 

Summary: 

Given the Electoral Area “A” OCP Bylaw generally supports vacation rentals in residential areas, and 
the applicant has or can satisfy criteria requirements, it is recommended that the vacation rental be 
approved, with conditions (see attached permit). 
 
Alternatives:  

1. THAT the Board of Directors deny Temporary Use Permit No. A2019.011-TUP; or 

2. THAT the Board of Directors defer consideration of Temporary Use Permit No. 2019.011-TUP for 
the following reasons: 

i) TBD 
 
Respectfully submitted:  Endorsed By:   

_____________________ _________________  
JoAnn Peachey, Planner I C. Garrish, Planning Manager  
 
Attachments:  No. 1 – Agency Referral List   
 No. 2 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 
 No. 3 – Site Photo (Neighbouring Fence)   



  

                                                         File No: A2019.011-TUP 
Page 5 of 7 

Attachment No. 1 – Agency Referral List 
 
Referrals have been sent to the following agencies as highlighted with a þ, prior to Board 
Consideration of TUP No. A2019.011-TUP: 
 
 
o Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) þ Fortis 

þ Interior Health Authority (IHA) o City of Penticton 

o Ministry of Agriculture o District of Summerland 

o Ministry of Energy, Mines & Petroleum 
Resources 

o Town of Oliver 

o Ministry of Municipal Affairs & Housing o Town of Osoyoos 

o Ministry of Environment  & Climate 
Change Strategy 

o Town of Princeton 

o Ministry of Forest, Lands, Natural 
Resource Operations & Rural 
Development (Archaeology Branch) 

o Village of Keremeos 

o Ministry of Jobs, Trade & Technology o Okanagan Nation Alliance (ONA) 

o Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure 

o Penticton Indian Band (PIB) 

o Integrated Land Management Bureau o Osoyoos Indian Band (OIB) 

o BC Parks o Upper Similkameen Indian Band (USIB) 

o School District  #53 (Areas A, B, C, D & G) o Lower Similkameen Indian Band (LSIB) 

o School District  #58 (Area H) o Environment Canada 

o School District  #67 (Areas D, E, F, I) o Fisheries and Oceans Canada 

o Central Okanagan Regional District o Canadian Wildlife Services 

o Kootenay Boundary Regional District o OK Falls Irrigation District 

o Thompson Nicola Regional District o Kaleden Irrigation District 

o Fraser Valley Regional District þ Osoyoos Irrigation District  

þ Osoyoos Fire Department   

 
     

 
  



  

                                                         File No: A2019.011-TUP 
Page 6 of 7 

Attachment No. 2 – Site Photo (Google Streetview) 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Dwelling Carport Swimming Pool 



  

                                                         File No: A2019.011-TUP 
Page 7 of 7 

Proposed Privacy 
Screening Area 

Attachment No. 3 – Site Photo (Neighbouring Fence)  

View of fence along northern property line 



Temporary Use Permit No. A2019.011-TUP 
  Page 1 of 6 

TEMPORARY 
USE PERMIT 

  

 
 

FILE NO.: A2019.011-TUP 
 

Owner: Richard & Marcia Law 
 3829 37th Street 
 Osoyoos, BC, V0H 1V6 

Agent: John Redenbach 
 7 Alyssum Court 
 Osoyoos, BC, V0H 1V1 

 
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS  

1. This Temporary Use Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the bylaws of the 
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen applicable thereto, except as specifically varied 
or supplemented by this Permit. 

2. The land described shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions 
of this Permit, and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a 
part thereof. 

3. Where there is a conflict between the text of the permit and permit drawings or figures, 
the drawings or figures shall govern the matter. 

4. This Temporary Use Permit is not a Building Permit. 

 

APPLICABILITY 

5. This Temporary Use Permit applies to, and only to, those lands, including any and all 
buildings, structures and other development thereon, within the Regional District as shown 
on Schedules ‘A’, ‘B’, and ‘C’ and described below: 

Legal Description: Lot 11, Plan 9792, District Lot 42, SDYD 

Civic Address: 3829 37th Street, Osoyoos 

Parcel Identifier (PID): 009-635-068  Folio: A-01229.000 

 

TEMPORARY USE 

6. In accordance with Section 17.0 of the Electoral Area “A” Official Community Plan Bylaw 
No. 2450, 2008, the land specified in Section 5 may be used for “vacation rental” use as 
defined in the Electoral Area “A” Zoning Bylaw, being the use of a residential dwelling unit 
for the temporary commercial accommodation of paying guests for a period of less than 30 
days. 



Temporary Use Permit No. A2019.011-TUP 
  Page 2 of 6 

 

CONDITIONS OF TEMPORARY USE 

7. The vacation rental use of the land is subject to the following conditions: 

a) the vacation rental use shall occur only between May 1st and October 31st; 

b) the following information must be posted within the dwelling unit while the vacation 
rental use is occurring: 

i) the location of property lines by way of a map;  

ii) measures to address water conservation;  

iii) instructions on the use of appliances that could cause fires, and for evacuation of 
the building in the event of fire;  

iv) instructions on the storage and management of garbage;  

v) instructions on septic system care;  

vi) instructions on the control of pets (if pets are permitted by the operator) in 
accordance with the Regional District’s Animal Control Bylaw; and 

vii) Boil Water Notice (when in effect) with instructions to boil water for one minute 
prior to drinking, caution on risk of ingesting untreated water (including pool 
water), and contact information for Osoyoos Irrigation District. 

c) the maximum number of bedrooms that may be occupied by paying guests shall be 
four (4); 

d) the number of paying guests that may be accommodated at any time shall not exceed 
eight (8); 

e) a minimum of four (4) on-site vehicle parking spaces shall be provided for paying 
guests; 

f) camping and the use of recreational vehicles, accessory buildings and accessory 
structures on the property for vacation rental occupancy are not permitted;  

g) current telephone contact information for a site manager or the property owner, 
updated from time to time as necessary, as well as a copy of this Temporary Use Permit 
shall be provided to the owner of each property situated within 100 metres of the land 
and to each occupant of such property if the occupier is not the owner. 

h) Vacation rental operation must follow the Ministry of Health’s COVID-19 Guidance for 
the Hotel Sector during the Provincial State of Emergency, including environmental 
cleaning, staff health and communication, and any subsequent provincial health orders 
for hotel operators. 

i) Information shall be posted within the dwelling unit during the Provincial State of 
Emergency for COVID-19 following Provincial recommended communication, signage 
and posters for the Hotel Sector on the following topics: 



Temporary Use Permit No. A2019.011-TUP 
  Page 3 of 6 

i) Symptoms of COVID-19 

ii) B.C.’s COVID-19 Self-Assessment Tool 

iii) Handwashing  

iv) Respiratory/cough etiquette 

v) Self-isolation and self-monitoring 

j) A sign must be posted on the front entrance telling staff not to enter the premises if 
they are feeling ill.   

k) All guests must follow Provincial guidelines during the Provincial State of Emergency 
for COVID-19, including avoiding non-essential travel as a measure to protect 
vulnerable people in communities from COVID-19; and 

l) Pool area shall be screened for privacy along the northern property line, in vertical 
alignment with highest portion of the existing fence. 

 

COVENANT REQUIREMENTS 

8. Not applicable. 

 

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

9. Not applicable. 

 

EXPIRY OF PERMIT 

10. This Permit shall expire on December 31st, 2020. 

 
 
 
Authorising resolution passed by Regional Board on   _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. A2019.011-TUP 
                      Page 4 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  A2019.011-TUP 

Schedule ‘A’ 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

NN
OSOYOOS 

Subject 
Property 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. A2019.011-TUP 
                      Page 5 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  A2019.011-TUP 

Schedule ‘B’ 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

Temporary Use Permit No. A2019.011-TUP 
                      Page 6 of 6 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Temporary Use Permit File No.  A2019.011-TUP 

Schedule ‘C’ 
 
 

 
 





                

               

                

                      

                 

             

                 

               

              

             

              

   

 

                

               

             

               

              

  

                

                  

               

               

                

      

  

                 

              

            

                

                   

            



  

                 

              

                 

                   

                

               

               

                 

               

               

            

             

              

              

       

        

               

                 

              

                

                

                 

                

             

                   

               

                

                     

       

            

    

             

             

             

            

               

                



             

             

                  

                 

               

                

                

                

            

                

              

                  

  

                

               

             

                 

                

                

               

                 

               

                  

 

 

                  

                 

              

               

              

              

            

             

              

                



           

            

                

               

                

               

               

            

                 

            





                  

                  
                

                    

           

                      

     

               

   

                   

                 

                 

    

            

                

                   

              

                     

                 

              

           

                 
               

           

                  

     

                  

                   

            
              

         

                    













 

 
 

    

     

    

     

      

 

 

    

          

    

           

                

 

            

               

               

               

             

             

                

              

                   

                     

                       

                   



 

 

 
    

     

    

     

      

  

 

 
  

    

          

    

           

                

 

             

              

            

      

          

                

             

    

               

  

                   

                     

                       

                   



 

 
 

    
      

    

        

      

 

 

   

       

          

    

           

                
 

             

               

                 

       

               

              

              

          

           

             

             

             

             

           

                   

                     

                       

                   





















 

    

        

 

        

     

               
               

                

                

                  

               
                

                  
                 

                 

              
                

              

               
                    

                
         

                  
                 

                

                

         

        

       

   

        



 

 

   

 

     

 

    

   
   

             

            

           

              

          

           

                 

     

  
   

  

      
    

    



 

   

     
 

     

    
  

      

               
                   

    

           

   

   

               

              

     

     

       

       

                     
   

            

 

   
        

  
 

 

 











                     

        

           

                  
         

                 
                

              

                   
      

            

                    

               

               
               

                   

             

      

   

               
  

             
 

 
          

        

         

    

              
            

                  

      

              

                 
   



 

           

             
                   

                  
   

        

               

               
                       

                

     

              

                    
           

                 

                   

          

              

          
      

             

     

                  
      

              

                  

              

            

              

          
       

          

                 

       

       



               

            
                   

               
      

       

          

                   

             

                       

        
               

      

            

          
           

         

                     
  

                     
          

    

             
           

  

               
              

   

                   

                

      

        

           

                  

     



           

                

               
               

                 
  

                   

           

                

 



 



  

 

   





                 

 

       
     

 

      

              

    
  

      

 

 

   

                 

  

 

             

          

 

    



                 

        

           

          

   

           

        

         

            

            

           

    

           

          

  

              

       

           

           

        

             

           

           

 

          

 



                 

         

          

          

  

             

      

 

            

          

         

               

         

 

 



                 

                  

   

              

            

             

              

     

           

        

           

         

          

  

          

        

         

               

   

            

           

        

            

            

 



                 

           

      

                 

      

               

        

             

         

        

             

        

            

         

              

 

  

           

          

   

           

                

             

 



                 

            

      

            

            

             

             

  

      

 

  



              

     
  
 

    

             

           

      

          

        

         

       

             

          

             

         

             

       

     

        

          

      

         

        

         

         

         

        

           



              

          

          

  

           

         

          

         

         

          

         

  

           

       

       

       

         

            

         

       

        

            

  



           

    

       

       

       

   

       

      

         

         

      

          

        

       

        

       

   

       

        

  

      

        

      

      

        

         

        



            

 

         

       

        

     

      

         

        

      

       

       

        

       

        

 

       

       

      

        

   

          

         

        

       

          

        

 



            

      

 

  

       

      

       

      

      

       

     

      

      

      

       

        

     

       

      

  

 

      

     

       

       

 



            

        

    

      

    

      

      

       

        

     

       

      

       

     

     

   

      

     

        

     

      

        

       

     

      

    

      

     

       

      

       

    

         

      

 



            

       

      

        

      

        

     

       

      

     

      

      

     

           

       

       

       

        

       

   

    

      

    

   

       

      

        

        

       

     

       

        

      

     

        

   

 









                   
    

                
               

                 

               

              

                 

          
    

                  

                   

                 
  

                 

                

     

           
                     

    

                   

                   

          

                  

                    

                    
          

                 

           

               

                  

       



                    

                

          

           

                    
                    

                     

   

                          

                     

                  

            

                    

          

                    

             

               
                 

             

                     

         

                    

  

              
          

 





 



 

 
  

 



 
 

                                                         File No: A2019.025-ZONE 
Page 1 of 9 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: July 2, 2020 
 
RE: Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Electoral Area “A” 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  

THAT Bylaw No. 2451.30, 2020, being a bylaw to amend the Electoral Area “A” Zoning Bylaw to 
alter minimum yard setbacks at 10210 81st St., be read a first and second time; 

AND THAT pursuant to sub-section 464 of the Local Government Act, the Regional District Board 
resolves to waive the holding of a public hearing for Bylaw No. 2451.30, 2020, Electoral Area “A” 
Zoning Amendment Bylaw;  

AND THAT pursuant to sub-section 467 of the Local Government Act, staff give notice of the waiving 
of the public hearing for Bylaw No. 2451.30, 2020, Electoral Area “A” Zoning Amendment Bylaw. 
 

Purpose:  To amend minimum setbacks to expand the building envelope on the subject property. 

Owners:   Lual Orchards Ltd. Agent: Brad Elenko, McElhanney Ltd. Civic: 10210 81st Street 

Legal:  Lot 3, Plan EPP87173, District Lot 2450S, SDYD  Folio: A-06047.060 

OCP:  Low Density Residential (LR) Proposed OCP: Low Density Residential (LR) 

Zone:  Residential Single Family One (RS1) Proposed Zoning:  Residential Single Family One Site Specific   
(RS1s) 

 

Proposed Development: 
This application is seeking to amend the zoning of the subject property in order to expand the building 
envelope. 

In order to accomplish this, the applicant is proposed to amend the zoning of the property under the 
Electoral Area “A” Zoning Bylaw No. 2451, 2008, from Residential Single Family One Zone (RS1) to Site 
Specific Single Family One Zone (RS1s) with the site specific regulation to reduce the rear parcel line 
setback (southern property line) from 7.5 metres to 2.0 metres and to increase the interior parcel line 
setback for the eastern property line from 1.5 metres to 7.5 metres.  

In support of the rezoning, the applicant has stated that “due to the odd shape of the property and 
the resulting setbacks, the owner is requesting that the setbacks be re-adjusted to provide a greater 
spatial separation from the adjacent east property and reduced on the south side of the property 
where there is no real need or purpose for the large 7.5 m setback.”  The applicant has also noted 
that: 



  

                                                         File No: A2019.025-ZONE 
Page 2 of 9 

· the setbacks defined for the property are not based on typical or obvious features or thinking, but 
rather all manifest from the definition of front parcel line, which in this case is very non-typical 
and unconventional. 

· the Streamside Protection Enhancement Area (SPEA) occupies a majority of the large ½ acre 
property and provides protection for riparian values.  However, in doing so, it restricts 
development from a significant portion of the property. 

· the reduction in the setback will not have a negative impact on the use and enjoyment of any 
adjacent or surrounding property owners. 

 
Site Context: 
The subject property is approximately 2,360 m2 in area and is accessible via a pan handle from 81st 
Street, abutting Osoyoos Lake to the North and approximately 600 metres from the Town of Osoyoos 
boundary.  
It is understood that the parcel is vacant land, while the surrounding pattern of development is 
generally characterised by residential along Osoyoos Lake foreshore and a mix of agriculture and 
residential parcels abutting 87th Street.  
 
Background: 
The current boundaries of the subject property were created by a Plan of Subdivision deposited with 
the Land Titles Office in Kamloops on March 22, 2019, while available Regional District records 
indicate that building permits have not previously been issued for this property. 

Under the Electoral Area “A” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2450, 2008, the subject 
property is currently designated Low Density Residential (LR), and is the subject of a Watercourse 
Development Permit (WDP) Area designation and is also partially identified as Important Ecosystem 
along the foreshore.  

Under the Electoral Area “A” Zoning Bylaw No. 2451, 2008 the property is currently zoned Residential 
Single Family One Zone (RS1) which allows for a single detached dwelling as the only principal use. 

Given the shape of this panhandle lot, the minimum setbacks for a principal building are as follows: 

· front parcel line – 7.5 metres - Panhandle portion abutting 81st Street 

· rear parcel line – 7.5 metres – Southern parcel line 

· interior parcel line – 1.5 metres – All remaining parcel lines 

Under Section 8.0 (Floodplain Regulations) of the Zoning Bylaw, the subject property is partially within 
the floodplain associated with Osoyoos Lake.  BC Assessment has classified the property as 
“Residential” (Class 01). 
 
Referrals: 
Approval from the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure (MoTI) is required prior to adoption 
as the proposed amendments involve lands within 800 metres of a controlled access highway (i.e. 
Highway 97).  Preliminary Approval has been granted by MoTI for this rezoning. 



  

                                                         File No: A2019.025-ZONE 
Page 3 of 9 

It should also be noted that in response to comments from FortisBC regarding overhead servicing and 
required Statutory Right-of-Way, the applicant has since provided underground services and a 
reference plan for a 3 m wide SROW to be registered on title.  The proposed rear parcel line setback is 
generally aligned with the SROW, as demonstrated on Attachment 3. 
 
Public Process: 
On February 10, 2020 a Public Information Meeting (PIM) was held at the Sonora Community Centre 
at 8505 68th Avenue in Osoyoos and was attended by approximately 3-4 members of the public. 

This item was referred to the Electoral Area “A” Advisory Planning Commission (APC) in the February 
10, 2020 agenda; however, the meeting was cancelled due to lack of quorum.   

All comments received to date in relation to this application are included as a separate item on the 
Board Agenda. 
 
Analysis: 
In considering this proposal, Administration notes that the “U” shape of the panhandle is an unusual, 
atypical parcel layout, which results in an atypical application of front and rear parcel lines.   

For a typical panhandle lot, the rear parcel line would be opposite where the panhandle meets the 
non-panhandle portion of the lot (as the panhandle would typically be straight).   

As such, the applicant is requesting minimum building setbacks that are no less than what would be 
permitted if the “front” parcel line was aligned with where the panhandle met the buildable area of 
the parcel. 

A reduced “rear” parcel line setback will allow for additional building area that is outside the riparian 
area, which is identified as 30 metres from Osoyoos Lake, and further from identified Important 
Ecosystems on the property along the lakeshore.   

The “rear” parcel line setback reduction is considered to align with Electoral Area “A” OCP Bylaw 
objectives to protect aquatic habitat areas by providing a development scenario that allows 
development to be further from the protected riparian area. 

This proposal has minimal impact to the neighbouring properties to the west and east, as the 
proposed setbacks along abutting parcel lines are equal to or greater than what is currently permitted 
under the RS1 zone. 

It should be noted that this proposal reduces separation distance between residential buildings and 
structures on this RS1 parcel and active farming operations on the agricultural lands immediately to 
the south.   

Although Administration has concerns with reducing separation distances between residential and 
agricultural uses, the southern parcel line immediately abuts a panhandle access driveway which 
provides a further separation of 10.0 metres between the subject property and agriculturally-
designated parcel.   

Conversely, this recently created parcel contains sufficient building area (360 m2) to accommodate a 
single detached dwelling while adhering to riparian area regulation and existing zoning setbacks.   



  

                                                         File No: A2019.025-ZONE 
Page 4 of 9 

The “rear” parcel line setback provides additional separation between residential buildings/structures 
on the subject property and agricultural activities on the agriculturally-designated property to the 
immediate south. 

Further, although the parcel is within a Watercourse Development Permit Area, a Riparian Area 
Assessment conducted by a Qualified Environmental Professional (QEP) has not been provided to 
verify the location of the Streamside Protection and Enhancement Area (SPEA). 

It can also be argued that setback reductions are more appropriately administered by variance, where 
specific development plans are provided.   

In summary, this proposal is considered consistent with the Electoral Area “A” OCP as it would allow 
for building options that are further from the protected riparian area. 
 
 
Alternatives:  
1. THAT Bylaw No. 2451.30, 2020, Electoral Area “A” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a first and 

second time and proceed to public hearing; 
 AND THAT the holding of a public hearing be scheduled for the Regional District Board meeting of 
August 2, 2020;  

AND THAT staff give notice of the public hearing in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act. 

2. THAT Bylaw No. 2451.30, 2020, Electoral Area “A” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a first and 
second time and proceed to public hearing; 

AND THAT the holding of the public hearing be delegated to Director Pendergraft, or their 
delegate; 

AND THAT staff schedule the date, time, and place of the public hearing in consultation with 
Director Pendergraft; 

AND THAT staff give notice of the public hearing in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act. 

3. THAT Bylaw No. 2451.30, 2020, Electoral Area “A” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be deferred; or 

4. THAT Bylaw No. 2451.30, 2020, Electoral Area “A” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be, be denied. 
 
Respectfully submitted:  Endorsed By:  

_____________________ _________________  
JoAnn Peachey, Planner I C. Garrish, Planning Manager  

Attachments:  No. 1 – Applicant’s Site Plan (Proposed Setbacks)  

 No. 2 – Applicant’s Site Plan (Existing Setbacks) 

 No. 3 – Applicant’s Site Plan (Building Envelope and Fortis SRW) 

 No. 4 – Fortis Statutory Right of Way Reference Plan 

 No. 5 – Site Photo (Google Earth)  



  

                                                         File No: A2019.025-ZONE 
Page 5 of 9 

Attachment No. 1 – Applicant’s Site Plan (Proposed Setbacks) 

    

  



  

                                                         File No: A2019.025-ZONE 
Page 6 of 9 

 Attachment No. 2 – Applicant’s Site Plan (Existing Setbacks) 

     

  



  

                                                         File No: A2019.025-ZONE 
Page 7 of 9 

Attachment No. 3 – Applicant’s Site Plan (Building Envelope & Fortis SRW) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   



  

                                                         File No: A2019.025-ZONE 
Page 8 of 9 

Attachment No. 4 –Fortis Statutory Right of Way Reference Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

                                                         File No: A2019.025-ZONE 
Page 9 of 9 

Attachment No. 5 – Site Photo (Google Earth) 

      

Subject Property  
(Approximate) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2451.30, 2020 
  (A2019.025-ZONE) 

  Page 1 of 4 

 _________________ 
 

BYLAW NO. 2451.30 
 _________________ 

 
  

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 

 BYLAW NO.  2451.30, 2020 

 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Electoral Area “A” Zoning Bylaw No. 2451, 2008 
 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS as follows: 
 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Electoral Area “A” Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw No. 2451.30, 2020.” 

 
2. The “Electoral Area “A” Zoning Bylaw No. 2451, 2008” is amended by: 

i) adding a new sub-section .3 under Section 17.8 (Site Specific Residential Single 
Family One (RS1s) Provisions) to read as follows: 

.3 in the case of the land described as Lot 3, Plan EPP87173, District Lot 2450S, 
SDYD (10210 81st Street), and shown shaded yellow on Figure 17.8.3: 

a)  despite Section 11.1.6, the minimum setbacks for buildings and structures 
shall be as follows: 

i) Rear parcel line (southern parcel line)    2.0 metres 

ii) Interior side parcel line, except eastern parcel line 1.5 metres 

iii) All other parcel lines    7.5 metres 

 

 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2451.30, 2020 
  (A2019.025-ZONE) 

  Page 2 of 4 

 
 
 
 
 

3. The Official Zoning Map, being Schedule ‘2’ of the Electoral Area “A” Zoning Bylaw No. 
2451, 2008, is amended by changing the land use designation on the land described Lot 3, 
Plan EPP87173, District Lot 2450S, SDYD, and shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘A’, which 
forms part of this Bylaw, from Residential Single Family One (RS1) to Site Specific 
Residential Single Family One (RS1s). 

 
 
  

Figure 17.8.3 

Site Specific Residential 
Single Family One (RS1s) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 

NN

OSOYOOS 
LAKE 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2451.30, 2020 
  (A2019.025-ZONE) 

  Page 3 of 4 

READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING WAS WAIVED on this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
READ A THIRD TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
I hereby certify the foregoing to be a true and correct copy of the "Electoral Area “A” Zoning 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2451.30” as read a Third time by the Regional Board on this ____ day of 
__________, 2020. 
 
Dated at Penticton, BC this ____ day of __________, 2020. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Corporate Officer 
 
Approved pursuant to Section 52(3) of the Transportation Act this ____ day of __________, 2020. 
 
 
______________________________________ 
For the Minister of Transportation & Infrastructure 
 
ADOPTED this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
 
 
_______________________      _________________________ 
Board Chair Corporate Officer 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2451.30, 2020 
  (A2019.025-ZONE) 

  Page 4 of 4 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Tel: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca 
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2451.30, 2020 File No.  A2019.025-ZONE 

Schedule ‘A’ 
 
 

  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

NN

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2451, 2008: 
from:  Residential Single Family One (RS1) 
to:  Site Specific Residential Single Family One (RS1s) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 

 

Subject 
Parcel 

OSOYOOS 







 

  

   

  

  
   

  

   
   

             
            

           

              

          

           

                

    

  
   

  

   
 

 

  
  

  

 



  
 

 
 

   
  

   

    

 
  

    

     
       

     

            
    

              

 

 
 

 

 

  

  
  

     
   

 



 

    

     
 

  
       

  

                 
               

                

     

              

              

              
                 

            

  

            

                

               

               

              

             

              

             

               

            

              

              

     

   

                

                

              

      

                 

            

 



               

              

                 

             

                

      

                
                     

              
         

              

  

          



 

 

 



  
  

    
      

  
      

  
   

 
    

 

         
  

             
             

            
              

          
            

 

              
             

            
          

                
             
              

               
          

                
                
              

 

             
               

          

 

                
               

              

   



  

           
                

       

  

                
             

                 
            

               
                 

             
          

              
             

          

              
    

 

   

   

        

       

 

   



 

  
  

   
  

      

     

               
                

               
    

               
 

               
               

              

   

            
                
             

            

     
                 

             
               

       
                

               
          

            

    

     

  
 

       

          
      

 

 



 

  

    

      

      

                 
                 

                

               

                

                

                

                 

                

             

           

   

   

               

              

     

     

       

       

                     

   

            

 

   
        

  
   

 

  



 

    
    

 
            

  

 

    

  

   

      

        

              

        

                 

        

        

   

                

                   

            

 
   

 

 
 
    

      
  

  
       

  
   
   

       

            

   

     
  



 

           

   

     
   

     

          

                  

      

        

  

             

        

       







 
 

                                                         File No: D2018.059-ZONE 
Page 1 of 4 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: July 2, 2020 
 
RE: Official Community Plan (OCP) & Zoning Bylaw Amendment – Electoral Area “I” 
 Apex Mountain Zone Review 
 

Administrative Recommendation:  

THAT Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020, Electoral Area “I” Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw and 
Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2020, Electoral Area “I” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be read a third time and 
adopted. 
 

Purpose: 
It is being proposed that the Regional District Board initiate an amendment to the Electoral Area “I” 
Official Community Plan No. 2603, 2013, and Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008, in order to update a 
number of residential zones at Apex Mountain.  The proposed bylaws support the on-going work 
related to the preparation of a single zoning bylaw for the South Okanagan Valley Electoral Areas. 
 
Background:  

At its meeting of April 19, 2018, the Planning and Development Committee (P&D) Committee of the 
Board resolved to initiate amendments to the Electoral Area “I” Official Community Plan (OCP) and 
Zoning Bylaws in order to update the zones at Apex Mountain Resort as a stand-alone review. 

On January 6, 2020, affected property owners (approximately 394) were notified of the proposed 
zoning changes and of a public information meeting. 

On February 4, 2020, a Public Information Meeting (PIM) was held at the RDOS Boardroom (101 
Martin Street, Penticton) and was attended by approximately five (5) members of the public.   

The proposed bylaw amendments were notified on the Regional District’s web-site, social media 
accounts and by inclusion in the “bi-weekly” advertisement in local newspapers. 

At its meeting of March 5, 2020, the Regional District Board resolved to approve first and second 
reading of the amendment bylaws and directed that a public hearing occur at the Board meeting of 
April 2, 2020. 

At its meeting of March 19, 2020, the Board subsequently resolved that all non-regulatory public 
hearings on land use matters be waived, and all regulatory public hearings be postponed until further 
notice in response to the on-going health crisis related to the COVID-19 virus. 

On May 1, 2020, Ministerial Order M139, issued under the Emergency Program Act, enables local 
governments to hold a public hearing by means of electronic or other communication facilities. 

On June 4, 2020, an electronic public hearing was held ahead of the Board meeting that same day and 
approximately two (2) members of the public participated by conference call. 



  

                                                         File No: D2018.059-ZONE 
Page 2 of 4 

At its meeting of June 4, 2020, the Regional District Board resolved to defer consideration of third 
reading and directed that a second public hearing occur at the Board meeting of July 2, 2020, and that 
a public information meeting be scheduled prior to the second public hearing. 
On June 22, 2020, an electronic Public Information Meeting (PIM) was held via Webex and was 
attended by approximately 12 members of the public. 

A second electronic public hearing on the amendment bylaws is scheduled to occur on July 2, 2020, 
ahead of the regular meeting of the Board. 

All comments received to date in relation to this application are included as a separate item on the 
Board Agenda. 

Approval from the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure (MoTI) is not required prior to 
adoption as the proposed amendments involve lands beyond 800 metres of a controlled access 
highway (i.e. Highway 97 & 3). 
 
Analysis: 

OCP Bylaw: 

In support of the Apex Zone Review, it is being proposed to replace the current Residential Mixed use 
(RMU) designation with a new “Village Centre” designation to the Electoral Area “I” OCP Bylaw in 
order to present objectives and policies specific to Apex Mountain.  These policies speak to, amongst 
other things, permitted uses, density, status as a Growth Area, vehicle parking, snow storage and 
potential design standards for the village core area. 

NOTE: due to the Twin Lakes Growth Area similarly being designated RMU, it is being proposed that 
the objectives and policies for this site similarly be transitioned to the new “Twin Lakes Village Centre 
(TLVC)” designation as part of Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03. 

Apex Mountain Village Zone: 

During the 2016 review of the Electoral Area “I” OCP Bylaw, the community expressed a desire to 
“consolidate and improve the village centre as the community’s service centre and social heart”.  
Administration is also aware of the community previously expressing concerns regarding the 
composition of the RMU Zone and the extent to which it contemplates the spread of commercial uses 
into residential areas, and that such a spread would be to the possible detriment of the Village core. 

While the preparation of a Local Area Plan for Apex exceeds the scope of the current work being 
undertaken in support of a single zoning bylaw, Administration considers there to be merit in 
reconsidering the RMU Zone at this time. 

Specifically, and in accordance with the approach previously applied to the Okanagan Falls and 
Naramata town sites, it is being proposed to replace the RMU Zone with a new Apex Mountain Village 
(AMV) Zone, and that the physical area of this zone be reduced to the village core of Apex. 

While the range of uses permitted in the AMV Zone will not differ significantly from the RMU Zone, it 
is proposed to delete allowances for single detached and duplex dwellings as these are not seen to be 
compatible with the character and density of the village core. 



  

                                                         File No: D2018.059-ZONE 
Page 3 of 4 

With regard to densities, Apex is a Rural Growth Area under the Regional Growth Strategy (RGS) 
Bylaw and Administration has determined that a number of buildings previously constructed within 
the village core exceed the current density restriction of 55 units/ha. 

To address this, it is being proposed to delete the units/ha density regulation, to increase the Floor 
Area Ratio (FAR) from 2.0 to 3.0 and to increase the maximum building height from 10-19.0 metres to 
20.0 metres in order to address a number of existing non-conformities and to encourage further 
densification (subject to parking and servicing requirements being met). 

It is further proposed to replace a number of other variable zoning regulations, such as minimum 
parcel size for subdivision (505-1,010 m2), minimum parcel width (15-30 metres) and maximum parcel 
coverage (45-75%) with a single, standard regulations;  1,000 m2 (parcel size), Not less than 25% of 
the parcel depth (parcel width) and 75% (parcel coverage). 

Finally, it is being proposed to introduce regulations for snow storage based upon the number of 
outdoor vehicle parking spaces being provided on a parcel (i.e. when more than 4 are required). 

Medium Density Residential Zone: 

It is being proposed to introduce a new Medium Density Residential Apex (RM2) Zone for existing 
apartment buildings and townhouses at Apex, and to carry forward the vacation rental allowance that 
was introduced into the zoning bylaw in 2014. 

In accordance with the direction contained in Phase 1 of the Residential Zone Review, it is further 
being proposed that single detached duplex dwellings not be carried forward into the RM2 Zone from 
the RMU and RM3 zones. 

The other significant amendment related to the RM2 Zone is to apply it to a large parcel of 
undeveloped Crown land at the south-west part of the community, and which is currently zoned 
RMU. 

Duplex Zone: 

It is being proposed to apply a new Low Density Residential Duplex Apex (RD2) Zone to all existing 
duplexes at Apex as well as a majority of parcels on Clearview Drive. 

When the Clearview Drive subdivision occurred, the RMU Zone stipulated that parcels less than 1,010 
m2 were to be developed to single detached and duplex dwellings only, whereas parcels greater than 
1,010 m2 could also be developed to multi-dwelling units (i.e. more than 3-units).  A majority of the 
parcels on Clearview Drive are less than 1,000 m2 in area. 

“Chutes End” Comprehensive Development Zone:  

The provincial Apex Alpine Resort Area Master Plan (1981) envisioned “seven phases of development” 
at Apex Mountain, five (5) of which had been completed by November of 1981. 

Phase 7 of the Master Plan was to have been completed between 1983-85 and included, amongst 
other things, “60 residential strata lots” as well as “roads and services” to “Chutes End”, which 
comprised an approximately 2.0 ha area near the upper parking lot (by the original “Gunbarrel”). 

While this area of Crown land remains undeveloped and is zoned RMU, the operator of Apex 
Mountain has requested a replacement zoning be introduced to allow for a range of residential 
densities as well as the ability to develop a new hotel near the upper parking lot. 



  

                                                         File No: D2018.059-ZONE 
Page 4 of 4 

In response, Administration is proposing the introduction of a new “Chutes End Comprehensive 
Development (CD8) Zone that would allow for these range of uses and densities.  This CD8 Zone is 
envisioned as a “holding” zone and one that would be replaced with existing low and medium density 
residential and tourist commercial zoning as the area is developed. 

The boundaries of the proposed CD8 Zone have been expanded beyond the current RMU Zone to 
reflect a 2007 provincial approval for expanded development in this area of the resort. 
 
Alternatives:  

1. THAT first and second readings of Bylaw No. 2603.03, 2020, Electoral Area “I” Official Community 
Plan Amendment Bylaw and Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2020, Electoral Area “I” Zoning Amendment 
Bylaw be rescinded and the bylaws abandoned; or 

2. THAT third reading of Bylaw No. 2603.03, 2020, Electoral Area “I” Official Community Plan 
Amendment Bylaw and Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2020, Electoral Area “I” Zoning Amendment Bylaw be 
deferred. 

 
Respectfully submitted:   

__________________________   
C. Garrish, Planning Manager  

   

 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 1 of 33 

 _________________ 
 

 BYLAW NO. 2457.26 
  _________________ 

 
 
 REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 
 BYLAW NO. 2457.26, 2020 
 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Electoral Area “I” Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008 
         
 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled ENACTS as follows: 

 
1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Apex Mountain Commercial and 

Residential Zone Update Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2020.” 
 
2. The Electoral Area “I” Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008, is amended by: 

i) adding a reference to “Low Density Residential Duplex Apex Zone” at Section 5.1 
(Zoning Districts) under Section 5.0 (Creation of Zones) to read as follows: 

Low Density Residential Duplex Apex Zone  RD2 
 

ii) replacing the reference to “Medium Density Residential Zones” found at Section 5.1 
(Zoning Districts) under Section 5.0 (Creation of Zones) with the following: 

Medium Density Residential Zones 

Medium Density Residential One Zone  RM1 

Medium Density Residential Apex Zone  RM2 
 

iii) adding a new reference to “Village Centre Zones” at Section 5.1 (Zoning Districts) 
under Section 5.0 (Creation of Zones) to read as follows: 

Village Centre Zones 

Apex Mountain Village Zone  AMV 
 

iv) adding a new reference to “Chutes End Comprehensive Development Zone CD8” at 
Section 5.1 (Zoning Districts) under Section 5.0 (Creation of Zones). 

 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 2 of 33 

v) replacing Section 7.28.1 (Vacation Rentals) under Section 7.0 (General Regulations) 
in its entirety with the following: 

.1 no more than one (1) vacation rental use is permitted per principal dwelling 
unit. 

 
vi) adding a new Section 11.5 (Low Density Residential Duplex Apex Zone) under Section 

11.0 (Low Density Residential) to read as follows: 

11.5 LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DUPLEX APEX ZONE (RD2) 

11.5.1 Permitted Uses: 

Principal uses:  

a) duplex; 

b) single detached dwelling; 

c) vacation rental, subject to Section 7.28; 

Secondary uses:  

d) bed and breakfast operation, subject to Section 7.19; 

e) home occupations, subject to Section 7.17; 

f) secondary suite, subject to Section 7.12; and 

g) accessory buildings and structures, subject to Section 7.13. 
 

11.5.2 Site Specific Residential Duplex Apex (RD2s) Provisions: 

a) see Section 18.30 

 
11.5.3 Minimum Parcel Size: 

a) 600 m2, subject to servicing requirements; 

b) 300 m2, for the purpose of subdivision of duplexes into their individual 
units, subject to servicing requirements. 

 
11.5.4 Minimum Parcel Width: 

a) Not less than 25% of parcel depth. 
 

11.5.5 Maximum Number of Dwellings Permitted Per Parcel: 

a) two (2) principal dwelling units, provided that both dwellings are located 
in one (1) residential building; and 

b) one (1) secondary suite in a single detached dwelling. 
 

11.5.6 Minimum Setbacks: 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 3 of 33 

a) Principal buildings:  

i)  Front parcel line: 7.5 metres 

ii)  Rear parcel line: 7.5 metres 

iii) Interior side parcel line: 3.0 metres 

iv)  Exterior side parcel line: 4.5 metres 

b) Accessory buildings and structures:  

i)  Front parcel line: 7.5 metres 

ii)  Rear parcel line: 3.0 metres 

iii) Interior side parcel line: 3.0 metres 

iv)  Exterior side parcel line: 4.5 metres 
   

11.5.7 Maximum Height: 

a) No building and structure shall exceed a height of 10.0 metres; 

b) No accessory building or structure shall exceed a height of 5.5 metres. 
 

11.5.8 Maximum Parcel Coverage: 

a) 45% 
 

11.5.9 Minimum Building Width: 

a) Principal Dwelling Unit: 5.0 metres, as originally designed and 
constructed. 
 

11.5.9 Conditions of Use: 

a) For parcels containing four (4) or more outdoor vehicle parking spaces, 
the following regulations shall apply: 

i) an additional area equal to 25% of the required parking area shall 
be provided for snow storage on-site;  

ii) areas required for snow storage shall not be counted towards 
vehicle parking requirements; 

iii) snow storage area shall be located away from public roads and 
other areas so that motorist and pedestrian sight lines are not 
impacted. 

 
vii) replacing Section 12.2 (Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) Zone) under Section 12.0 

(Medium Density Residential) in its entirety with the following: 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 4 of 33 

12.2 deleted. 
 

viii) replacing Section 12.3 (Residential Multiple Unit Three Zone) under Section 12.0 
(Medium Density Residential (MR) in its entirety with the following: 

12.3 MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL APEX ZONE (RM2) 
12.3.1 Permitted Uses: 

Principal uses: 

a)  apartment building; 

b)  townhouse; 

c)  vacation rental, subject to Section 7.28; 

Secondary uses: 

d)  home occupation, subject to Section 7.17; and 

e)  accessory buildings and structures, subject to Section 7.13. 
 

12.3.2 Site Specific Medium Density Residential Apex (RM2s) Provisions: 

a) see Section 18.14 
 

12.3.3 Minimum Parcel Size: 

a)  1,000 m2, subject to servicing requirements. 
 

12.3.4 Minimum Parcel Width:  

a) 30.0 metres  
 

12.3.5 Maximum Density: 

a) 60 dwelling units per ha 
 

12.3.6 Minimum Floor Area: 

a) 40.0 m2 for dwelling units 
 

12.3.7 Minimum Setbacks:  

a) Buildings and Structures: 

i) Front parcel line: 6.0 metres 

ii) Rear parcel line: 3.0 metres 

iii) Interior side parcel line: 3.0 metres 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 5 of 33 

iv) Exterior side parcel line: 5.0 metres 

b) Accessory Buildings or Structures: 

i) Front parcel line: 6.0 metres 

ii) Rear parcel line: 3.0 metres 

iii) Interior side parcel line: 3.0 metres 

iv) Exterior side parcel line: 5.0 metres 
  

12.3.8 Maximum Height:  

a) No building or structure shall exceed a height of 15.0 metres; or 

b) No accessory building or structure shall exceed a height of 5.0 metres. 
 

12.3.9 Maximum Parcel Coverage: 

a) 50% 
 

12.3.10 Amenity Space Requirements:  

a) The following amenity space shall be provided for each dwelling unit: 

i) studio suite:   7.5 m2 

ii) one (1) bedroom:   15.0 m2 

iii) two (2) or more bedrooms:  25.0 m2 

b)  not less than 25% of required amenity space is to be located at grade;  

c) for the purpose of calculating the amenity space requirement, any 
indoor amenity space provided shall be counted as double its actual 
floor area and credited towards this requirement. 
 

12.3.11 Conditions of Use: 

a) For parcels containing four (4) or more outdoor vehicle parking spaces, 
the following regulations shall apply: 

i) an additional area equal to 25% of the required parking area shall 
be provided for snow storage on-site;  

ii) areas required for snow storage shall not be counted towards 
vehicle parking requirements; 

iii) snow storage area shall be located away from public roads and 
other areas so that motorist and pedestrian sight lines are not 
impacted. 

 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 6 of 33 

ix) adding a new Section 13.0 (Town Centre) to read as follows and renumbering all 
subsequent sub-sections: 

13.0  VILLAGE CENTRE 
 
13.1 APEX MOUNTAIN VILLAGE ZONE (AMV) 
13.1.1 Permitted Uses: 

Principal uses: 

a)  apartment building, subject to Section 13.1.10; 

b)  community hall; 

c)  cultural facilities; 

d)  eating and drinking establishment; 

e)  indoor recreational facilities;  

f)  office; 

g)  personal service establishment; 

h)  retail store, general;  

i)  tourist accommodation; 

j)  townhouse; 

k)  vacation rental, subject to Section 7.28; 

Secondary uses: 

l)  home occupation, subject to Section 7.17; and 

m)  accessory buildings and structures, subject to Section 7.13. 
 

13.1.2 Site Specific Apex Mountain Village (AMVs) Provisions: 

a) see Section 18.13 
 

13.1.3 Minimum Parcel Size: 

a)  1,000 m2, subject to servicing requirements. 
 

13.1.4 Minimum Parcel Width:  

a) Not less than 25% of the parcel depth. 
 

13.1.5 Maximum Floor Area Ratio: 

a) 3.0  
 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 7 of 33 

13.1.6 Minimum Setbacks: 

a) Buildings and Structures: 

i) Front parcel line: 3.0 metres 

ii) Rear parcel line: 3.0 metres 

iii) Interior side parcel line: 3.0 metres 

iv) Exterior side parcel line: 4.5 metres 

b) Accessory Buildings or Structures: 

i) Front parcel line: 3.0 metres 

ii) Rear parcel line: 1.5 metres 

iii) Interior side parcel line: 1.5 metres 

iv) Exterior side parcel line: 4.5 metres 
  

13.1.7 Maximum Height:  

a) No building or structure shall exceed a height of 20.0 metres; 

b) No accessory building or structure shall exceed a height of 5.0 metres. 
 

13.1.8 Maximum Parcel Coverage: 

a) 75% 
 

13.1.9 Dwelling Unit Regulations:  

a) Dwelling units located in the same building as a commercial use shall 
have separate entrances from the exterior of the building and shall not 
share a common hallway with a commercial use. 

b) The following amenity space shall be provided for each dwelling unit: 

i) studio suite:   7.5 m2 

ii) one (1) bedroom:   15.0 m2 

iii) two (2) or more bedrooms:  25.0 m2 

c) not less than 25% of required amenity space is to be located at grade;  

d) for the purpose of calculating the amenity space requirement, any 
indoor amenity space provided shall be counted as double its actual 
floor area and credited towards this requirement. 
 

13.1.10 Conditions of Use: 

a) For parcels containing four (4) or more outdoor vehicle parking spaces, 
the following regulations shall apply: 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 8 of 33 

i) an additional area equal to 25% of the required parking area shall 
be provided for snow storage on-site;  

ii) areas required for snow storage shall not be counted towards 
vehicle parking requirements; 

iii) snow storage area shall be located away from public roads and 
other areas so that motorist and pedestrian sight lines are not 
impacted. 

 
x) adding a new Section 17.2 (Chutes End Comprehensive Development (CD8) Zone) 

under Section 17.0 (Comprehensive Development) to read as follows: 

17.2 CHUTES END COMPREHENSIVE DEVELOPMENT (CD8) ZONE 

17.2.1 Purpose 

The purpose of the Chutes End Comprehensive Development Zone is to 
create a transitionary zone that will allow for the subsequent development 
of an approximately 12.5 ha area of predominantly vacant Crown land to a 
range of residents densities and dwelling types.  This area comprises an 
incomplete phase in the development of the Apex Mountain Ski Resort. 

 
17.2.2 Location 

The subject area comprises the Upper Parking Lot and related maintenance 
buildings and extends eastwards to Creekview Road.  The area is bounded 
by Keremeos Creek to the north and existing ski runs associated with Apex 
Mountain to the south. 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 9 of 33 

 
Figure 17.2.1 

 
17.2.3  Background:  

The Apex Alpine Resort Area Master Plan (1981) envisioned “seven phases of 
development” at Apex Mountain, five (5) of which had been completed by 
November of 1981. 

The Plan called “for the ultimate development of 126 single family units, 411 
condominium and 100 hotel units as well as 36, 281 square feet of 
commercial floor space.  Apex Alpine also intends to construct 45 employee 
accommodation units with a total of 106 beds.” 

Phase 7 of the Master Plan was to have been completed between 1983-85 
and included, amongst other things, “60 residential strata lots” as well as 
“roads and services” to “Chutes End”, which is shown as comprising an 
approximately 2.0 ha (5.0 acre) area to be developed to “condo” (i.e. 
townhomes) units (see Figure 17.2.2).  

Subject 
Area 

NN



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 10 of 33 

 
Figure 17.2.2 

 
17.2.4 Permitted Uses: 

Principal uses: 

a)  apartment building, subject to Section 17.2.13; 

b)  duplex; 

c)  single detached dwelling; 

d)  townhouse, subject to Section 17.2.13; 

e)  vacation rental, subject to Section 7.28; 

Secondary uses: 

f)  bed and breakfast operation, subject to Section 7.19; 

g)  home occupation, subject to Section 7.17;  

h)  secondary suite, subject to Section 7.12; and 

i)  accessory buildings and structures, subject to Section 7.13. 
 

17.2.5 Minimum Parcel Size for Subdivision: 

a) 225.0 m2 for the purpose of subdividing a duplex under the Strata Property 
Act, when connected to a community sewer and water system;  

b) 550.0 m2, when connected to a community sewer and water system; 

NN



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 11 of 33 

c) 0.5 ha, when connected to community sewer system and serviced by well; 
or 

d) 1.0 ha, when serviced by well and approved septic system. 
 

17.2.6 Minimum Parcel Width for Subdivision: 

a) Not less than 25% of parcel depth 
 

17.2.7 Maximum Density: 

a) for an apartment building or townhouse: the maximum density shall not 
exceed 60 dwelling units per hectare; 

b) for duplex dwellings: two (2) dwelling units per parcel, provided that both 
dwellings are located in one (1) residential building; or 

c) for single detached dwellings: one (1) principle dwelling unit per parcel 
and one (1) secondary permitted per parcel. 

 

17.2.8 Minimum Setbacks: 

a) Buildings and structures: 

 DWELLING TYPE 

single 
detached 
dwelling 

duplex 
apartment 
building or 
townhouse 

i) Front parcel line: 7.5 metres 7.5 metres 7.5 metres 

ii) Rear parcel line: 7.5 metres 7.5 metres 4.5 metres 

iii) Interior side parcel line: 3.0 metres 3.0 metres 3.0 metres 

iv) Exterior side parcel line: 4.5 metres 4.5 metres 4.5 metres 

b) Accessory buildings and structures: 

i) Front parcel line: 7.5 metres 

ii) Rear parcel line: 1.5 metres 

iii) Interior side parcel line: 1.5 metres 

iv) Exterior side parcel line: 4.5 metres 
  

17.2.9 Maximum Height:  

a) No apartment building or townhouse shall exceed a height of 15.0 metres; 

b) No single detached dwelling or duplex shall exceed a height of 10.0 metres; 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 12 of 33 

c) No accessory building or structure shall exceed a height of 4.5 metres. 
 

17.2.10 Maximum Parcel Coverage: 

a) 50% for apartment buildings, townhouses and accessory buildings 
structures; 

b) 45% duplexes and accessory buildings structures; or 

c) 35% for single detached dwellings and accessory buildings structures. 
 

17.2.11 Minimum Building Width: 

a) Detached Dwelling Units: 5.0 metres, as originally designed and 
constructed.  

 
17.2.12 Minimum Building Width: 

a) The following amenity space shall be provided for each dwelling unit: 

i) studio suite: 7.5 m2 

ii) one (1) bedroom: 15.0 m2 

iii) two (2) or more bedrooms: 25.0 m2 

b) not less than 25% of required amenity space is to be located at grade; 

c) for the purpose of calculating the amenity space requirement, any indoor 
amenity space provided shall be counted as double its actual floor area 
and credited towards this requirement. 

 
17.2.13 Conditions of Use: 

a) the minimum land area required for the development of an apartment 
building or townhouse is 1,000.0 m2. 

b) for parcels containing four (4) or more outdoor vehicle parking spaces, the 
following regulations shall apply: 

i) an additional area equal to 25% of the required parking area shall 
be provided for snow storage on-site;  

ii) areas required for snow storage shall not be counted towards 
vehicle parking requirements; 

iii) snow storage area shall be located away from public roads and 
other areas so that motorist and pedestrian sight lines are not 
impacted. 

 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 13 of 33 

17.2.14 Site Specific Chutes End Comprehensive Development (CD8s) Regulations: 

.1 in the case of an approximately 2.0 ha area of land shown shaded yellow 
on Figure 17.2.14.1: 

a) the following principal use shall be permitted on the land in addition 
to the permitted uses listed in Section 17.2.1: 

i) tourist accommodation. 

b) the minimum parcel line setbacks for a building or structure to be 
used for tourist accommodation purposes shall be in accordance 
with those for an apartment building at Section 17.2.8. 

 c) despite Section 17.2.9, the maximum height for a building or 
structure to be used for tourist accommodation purposes shall not 
exceed 20.0 metres. 

d) despite Section 17.2.10, the maximum parcel coverage for a 
building or structure to be used for tourist accommodation 
purposes shall not exceed 75%. 

 

  
 
 
 

Figure 17.2.14.1 

Chutes End 
Comprehensive 

Development Site 
Specific (CD8s) 
(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 

NN



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 14 of 33 

xi) replacing Section 18.9 (Site Specific Residential Apex Alpine (RS4s) Provisions) 
under Section 18.0 (Site Specific Designations) in its entirety with the following: 

18.9 Site Specific Residential Apex Alpine (RS4s) Provisions: 

.1 deleted. 
 

xii) replacing Section 18.13 (Site Specific Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMUs) Provisions) 
under Section 18.0 (Site Specific Designations) in its entirety with the following: 

18.13 Site Specific Apex Mountain Village (AMVs) Provisions: 

.1 deleted. 

.2 deleted. 

.3 deleted. 
 

xiii) replacing Section 18.14 (Site Specific Multiple Family Three (RM3s) Provisions) under 
Section 18.0 (Site Specific Designations) to read as follows: 

18.14 Site Specific Medium Density Residential Apex (RM2s) Provisions: 

.1 Not applicable 
 

xiv) adding a new Section 18.30 (Site Specific Residential Apex Alpine Duplex (RD2s) 
Provisions) under Section 18.0 (Site Specific Designations) to read as follows: 

18.30 Site Specific Low Density Residential Duplex Apex (RD2s) Provisions: 

.1 in the case of land described as Lots 1 & 2, Plan KAS2465, District Lot 
395S, SDYD (131-133 Whitetail Road, Apex), and shown shaded yellow 
on Figure 18.30.1: 

a) despite Section 4.0 (Definitions), a secondary suite may be located 
within a duplex dwelling. 

b) despite Section 7.12.2, the maximum floor area of a secondary 
suite shall not exceed 120.0 m2. 

c) despite Section 7.28.4, no more than 16 patrons, with an 
aggregate occupancy of eight (8) patrons per dwelling unit 
(principal and secondary suite) shall be accommodated per strata 
parcel. 

d) despite Section 11.5.5 (Maximum Number of Dwellings Permitted 
Per Parcel), the maximum number of dwellings permitted shall be 
two (2) principal dwelling units and 2 secondary suites, provided 
all dwellings are located in one (1) residential building. 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 15 of 33 

 
 

 
3. The Zoning Map, being Schedule ‘2’ of the Electoral Area “I” Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008, 

is amended by: 

i) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule 
‘A’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) to Apex 
Mountain Village (AMU). 

ii) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule 
‘B’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Residential Multiple Unit Three (RM3) to 
Medium Density Residential Apex (RM2). 

iii) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule 
‘C’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Residential Multiple Unit Three (RM3) to 
Low Density Residential Duplex Apex (RD2). 

iv) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded purple on Schedule 
‘C’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Residential Multiple Unit Three (RM3) to 
Residential Apex Alpine (RS4). 

v) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule 
‘D’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Residential Multiple Unit Three (RM3) to 
Medium Density Residential Apex (RM2). 

vi) changing the land use designation of an approximately 11.0 ha area of land shown 
shaded red on Schedule ‘E’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Mixed Use Apex 
Alpine (RMU) to Chutes End Comprehensive Development (CD8). 

Figure 18.30.1 

Low Density Residential Duplex 
Apex Site Specific (RD2s) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 

NN



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 16 of 33 

vii) changing the land use designation of an approximately 2.5 ha area of land shown 
shaded blue on Schedule ‘E’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Mixed Use Apex 
Alpine (RMU) to Chutes End Comprehensive Development Site Specific (CD8s). 

viii) changing the land use designation of an approximately 10.0 ha area of land shown 
shaded yellow on Schedule ‘E’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Resource Area 
(RA) to Chutes End Comprehensive Development (CD8). 

ix) changing the land use designation of the land described as Lot 2, Plan KAP78308, 
District Lot 395S, SDYD, and Lots A & B, Plan KAP92902, District Lot 395S, SDYD, and 
shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘F’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Mixed 
Use Apex Alpine (RMU) to Low Density Residential Duplex Apex (RD2). 

x) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule 
‘G’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) to Medium 
Density Residential Apex (RM2). 

xi) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule 
‘H’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Residential Apex Alpine Site Specific (RS4s) 
to Low Density Residential Duplex Apex (RD2). 

xii) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘I’, 
which forms part of this Bylaw, from Apex Medium Density Residential (RM3) to 
Low Density Residential Duplex Apex (RD2). 

xiii) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘J’, 
which forms part of this Bylaw, from Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) to Medium 
Density Residential Apex (RM2). 

xiv) changing the land use designation of an approximately 4.2 ha area of land shown 
shaded yellow on Schedule ‘K’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Mixed Use Apex 
Alpine (RMU) to Resource Area (RA). 

xv) changing the land use designation of the land shaded blue on Schedule ‘L’, which 
forms part of this Bylaw, from Mixed Use Apex Alpine Site Specific (RMUs) to Low 
Density Residential Duplex Apex (RD2). 

xvi) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘L’, 
which forms part of this Bylaw, from Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) to Low Density 
Residential Duplex Apex (RD2). 

xvii) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule 
‘M’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) to Medium 
Density Residential Apex (RM2). 

xviii) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule 
‘N’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) to Medium 
Density Residential Apex (RM2). 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 17 of 33 

xix) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded blue on Schedule ‘N’, 
which forms part of this Bylaw, from Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) to Low Density 
Residential Duplex Apex (RD2). 

xx) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded purple on Schedule 
‘N’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Mixed Use Apex Alpine Site Specific 
(RMUs) to Low Density Residential Duplex Apex (RD2). 

xxi) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule 
‘O’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) to Medium 
Density Residential Apex (RM2). 

xxii) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule 
‘P’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Residential Apex Alpine Site Specific (RS4s) 
to Low Density Residential Duplex Apex (RD2). 

xxiii) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded blue on Schedule ‘P’, 
which forms part of this Bylaw, from Residential Multiple Family Site Specific 
(RM3s) to Low Density Residential Duplex Apex Site Specific (RD2s). 

 

READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME this 5th day of March, 2020.  

PUBLIC HEARING held on this 4th day of June, 2020. 

A SECOND PUBLIC HEARING held on this 2nd day of July, 2020. 

READ A THIRD TIME this ____ day of ___________, 2020. 

ADOPTED this ____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
 
_______________________      ______________________  
Board Chair Chief Administrative Officer 
 
  



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 18 of 33 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘A’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) 
to:  Apex Mountain Village (AMV) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 19 of 33 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘B’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
  
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Residential Multiple Unit Three (RM3) 
to:  Medium Density Residential Apex (RM2) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 20 of 33 

 Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘C’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Residential Multiple Unit Three (RM3) 
to:  Low Density Residential Duplex Apex (RD2) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Residential Multiple Unit Three (RM3) 
to:  Residential Apex Alpine (RS4) 

(PURPLE SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 21 of 33 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘D’  
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Residential Multiple Unit Three (RM3) 
to:  Medium Density Residential Apex (RM2) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 22 of 33 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘E’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
   

Subject 
Area 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) 
to:  Chutes End Comprehensive Development (CD8) 

(RED SHADED AREA) 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Resource Area (RA) 
to:  Chutes End Comprehensive 

Development (CD8) 
(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) 
to:  Chutes End Comprehensive 

Development Site Specific (CD8s) 
(BLUE SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 23 of 33 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘F’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) 
to:  Low Density Residential Duplex Apex (RD2) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 24 of 33 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘G’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) 
to:  Medium Density Residential Apex (RM2) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 25 of 33 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘H’  
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Residential Apex Alpine Site Specific (RS4s) 
to:  Low Density Residential Duplex Apex (RD2) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 26 of 33 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘I’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Residential Multiple Unit Three (RM3) 
to:  Low Density Residential Duplex Apex (RD2) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 27 of 33 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘J’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) 
to:  Medium Density Residential Apex (RM2) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 28 of 33 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘K’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
  

Subject 
Area 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) 
to:  Resource Area (RA) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 29 of 33 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘L’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 
2457, 2008: 
from:  Mixed Use Apex Alpine 

(RMU) 
to:  Low Density Residential 

Duplex Apex (RD2) 
(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 
2457, 2008: 
from:  Mixed Use Apex Alpine 

Site Specific (RMUs) 
to:  Low Density Residential 

Duplex Apex (RD2) 
(BLUE SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 30 of 33 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘M’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) 
to:  Medium Density Residential Apex (RM2) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 31 of 33 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘N’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) 
to:  Medium Density Residential Apex (RM2) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) 
to:  Low Density Residential Duplex Apex (RD2) 

(BLUE SHADED AREA) 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Mixed Use Apex Alpine Site Specific (RMUs) 
to:  Low Density Residential Duplex Apex (RD2) 

(PURPLE SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 32 of 33 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘O’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
  

Subject 
Parcel 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) 
to:  Medium Density Residential Apex (RM2) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2457.26, 2019 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

   Page 33 of 33 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2788, 2019 Project No: X2017.106-ZONE 

Schedule ‘P’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
 
 

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Residential Apex Alpine Site Specific (RS4s) 
to:  Low Density Residential Duplex Apex (RD2) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 

Amend Zoning Bylaw No. 2457, 2008: 
from:  Residential Multiple Unit Three Site Specific (RM3s) 
to:  Low Density Residential Duplex Apex Site Specific (RD2s) 

(BLUE SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 1 of 19 

 _________________ 
 

 BYLAW NO. 2683.03 
  _________________ 

 
 
 REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 
 BYLAW NO. 2683.03, 2020 
 
 

A Bylaw to amend the Electoral Area “I” Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 
         
 

The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled ENACTS as follows: 

 
1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the “Apex Mountain Commercial and 

Residential Designation Update Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020.” 
 
2. The Electoral Area “I” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2683, 2016, is amended by: 

i) adding a new reference under Section 4.0 (Official Community Plan Designations) to 
read as follows: 

Village Centre Designations 

Apex Village Centre    AVC 

Twin Lakes Village Centre    TLVC 
 

ii) replacing Section 11.1 (Background) under Section 11.0 (Residential) in its entirety 
with the following: 

11.1 Background 

Residential development in the Plan Area has occurred in four primary 
locations -- Kaleden, St. Andrews, Twin Lakes and Apex. Low-density single 
detached dwellings are the predominant housing form throughout the Plan 
Area including these settlement areas. Other forms of low-density residential 
housing include semi-detached, and manufactured homes.  

The Plan Area contains a significant amount of medium density residential 
housing in the Apex area. The Twin Lakes Golf Resort also contains lands 
which are designated Medium Density Residential, but which are not yet 
developed. The St. Andrews Land Use Contract includes ‘rowhouses’ and 
‘semi-detached’ housing. 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 2 of 19 

There are two residential land use designations recognized within this Plan. 
Rural Holdings (i.e., Large Holdings and Small Holdings) are not included as 
residential designations. 

· Low Density Residential (LR): generally includes single detached dwellings, 
mobile homes, duplexes, and complementary secondary uses such as 
daycares, preschools, and small parks which are integral to a low density 
residential neighbourhood.  

· Medium Density Residential (MR): generally includes townhouses, 
duplexes, triplexes, fourplexes, and those complementary secondary uses 
such as daycares, preschools, and small parks, which are integral to a 
medium density area.  

Comprehensive Development (CD) zones have also been applied to lands 
designated LR and MR, generally in order to address legally non-conforming 
‘shared lot’ residential uses that have existing for several decades or to act as a 
transitionary zone pending development to specific residential forms. 

 
iii) adding a new Section 11.5.8 (Policies – Medium Density Residential) under Section 

11.0 (Residential) to read as follows: 

.8 Supports the use of a comprehensive development zone to allow a range of 
Medium Density Residential (MR) and Low Density Residential (LR) densities 
and dwelling types, and a limited range of tourist commercial uses on an 
approximately 12.5 ha parcel land that comprises an unfinished phase 
(“Chutes End”) of the Apex Alpine Resort Area Master Plan (1981).  As this 
land is developed, the comprehensive development zone should be replaced 
with existing zones found in the applicable zoning bylaw. 

 
iv) replacing Section 11.6 (Policies – Residential Mixed Use) under Section 11.0 

(Residential) in its entirety with the following: 

11.6 deleted. 
 
v) adding a new Section 12.0 (Village Centre) to read as follows and renumbering all 

subsequent sub-sections: 

12.0 VILLAGE CENTRE 
 
12.1 Background   

The Village Centre designation generally incorporates mixed medium density 
residential, institutional and commercial lands at Apex Mountain and the 
designated Rural Growth Area in Twin Lakes. The designation also includes a 
range of higher density housing types from row housing to apartments, mixed 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 3 of 19 

use recreation and commercial uses, natural open spaces, and administrative, 
cultural or institutional uses 

The Village Centre designation supports this by focusing medium density 
residential growth which, in turn, will promote a more compact urban form 
and a more complete community.  

To meet these objectives, the Village Centre designation includes a strong 
emphasis on encouraging commercial, tourist commercial, mixed-use 
commercial, and medium density residential development. 

 
12.2 Objectives 

.1 Reinforce the role of lands designated Village Centre as the commercial, 
institutional and social heart of a community. 

.2 Retain existing business and institutional uses, while supporting their 
expansion and attracting additional cultural, entertainment, and 
commercial development to areas designated Village Centre. 

.3 Support mixed-use, commercial/office/residential uses, including 
development that includes medium density residential dwelling types. 

.4 Encourage the integration of medium density residential dwelling types 
above ground floor commercial uses. 

 
12.3 Policies – Apex Village Centre 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Generally supports the use of lands designated Apex Village Centre (AVC) 
identified in Schedule ‘B’ Official Community Plan Map for medium 
density mixed use developments with residential and commercial 
components that fit with the mixed use intent of the designation.  

.2 Supports a maximum Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of 3.0 and a maximum building 
height of 20.0 metres in the Apex Village Centre (AVC) designation. 

.3 Supports a high standard of architectural building design for development 
within the Apex Village Centre (AVC) and may explore the creation of a 
development permit area designation for form and character. 

.4 Encourages the continued intensification and growth of commercial 
activities at Apex on lands designated Apex Village Centre (AVC). 

.5 Directs the development of existing vacant lots (with servicing), or previously 
approved subdivisions, prior to considering more development on non-
residential and non-commercial designations in identified Rural Growth 
Areas. 

.6 Will generally not support designating additional lands Apex Village Centre 
(AVC) that are outside of the Apex Rural Growth Area. 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 4 of 19 

.7 Commercial uses in the Apex Village Centre (AVC) designation are 
encouraged that cater to the local neighbourhood service and retail 
needs or provide tourist accommodation services. 

.8 Encourages the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure (MoTI) to 
provide sufficient snow storage areas for road clearing within the Apex 
Village Centre (AVC) designation 

.9 Supports the preparation of a strategy to address day-use and/or 
overnight parking at Apex Mountain Resort. 

.10 Supports the provision of paid accommodation for visitors through the 
short-term rental of residences in the Apex Village Centre (AVC) 
designation. 

 
12.4 Policies – Twin Lakes Village Centre 

The Regional Board: 

.1 Generally supports the use of lands designated Twin Lakes Village Centre 
(TLVC) identified in Schedule ‘B’ Official Community Plan Map for medium 
density mixed use developments with residential and commercial 
components that fit with the mixed use intent of the designation.  

.2 Considers the maximum density of lands designated Twin Lakes Village 
Centres (TLVC) to be 60 dwelling units (townhouses and apartments) per 
gross hectare, subject to servicing requirements. 

.3 Supports the following types of special housing in areas designated Twin 
Lakes Village Centres (TLVC), subject to the creation of a local service area 
for fire protection:  

a) community care housing; and 

b) seniors and special needs housing 

.4 Will avoid locating Twin Lakes Village Centres (TLVC) development next to 
land designated as Agriculture. Low Density Residential (LR) uses will be 
preferred as a transition between Agriculture and Residential Mixed Use 
(RMU) development. If residential mixed use development is to be 
located near land designated as Agriculture (AG), the following steps must 
be taken:  

a) buffering should be constructed in accordance with Ministry of 
Agriculture guidelines;  

b) the ground floor of the building should be set back far enough from 
the agricultural use to minimize conflicts; and 

c) the building should be designed to step back away from designated 
Agriculture (AG) land as the building increases in height. 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 5 of 19 

.5 Commercial uses in Twin Lakes Village Centres (TLVC) development are 
encouraged that cater to the local neighbourhood service and retail 
needs or provide small scale tourist accommodation services. 

.6 Supports the provision of paid accommodation for visitors through the 
short-term rental of residences in the Twin Lakes Village Centre (TLVC) 
designation. 

 
3. The Official Community Plan Map, being Schedule ‘B’ of the Electoral Area “I” Official 

Community Plan Bylaw No. 2683, 2016, is amended by: 

i) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘A’, 
which forms part of this Bylaw, from Residential Mixed Use (RMU) to Apex Village 
Centre (AVC). 

ii) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘B’, 
which forms part of this Bylaw, from Medium Density Residential (MR) to Low 
Density Residential (LR). 

iii) changing the land use designation of an approximately 12.5 ha area of land shown 
shaded red on Schedule ‘C’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Residential Mixed 
Use (RMU) to Medium Density Residential (MR). 

iv) changing the land use designation of an approximately 11.0 ha area of land shown 
shaded yellow on Schedule ‘C’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Resource Area 
(RA) to Medium Density Residential (MR). 

v) changing the land use designation of the land described as Lot 2, Plan KAP78308, 
District Lot 395S, SDYD, and Lots A & B, Plan KAP92902, District Lot 395S, SDYD, and 
shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘D’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from 
Residential Mixed Use (RMU) to Low Density Residential (LR). 

vi) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘E’, 
which forms part of this Bylaw, from Residential Mixed Use (RMU) to Medium 
Density Residential (MR). 

vii) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘F’, 
which forms part of this Bylaw, from Medium Density Residential (MR) to Low 
Density Residential (LR). 

viii) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘G’, 
which forms part of this Bylaw, from Residential Mixed Use (RMU) to Medium 
Density Residential (MR). 

ix) changing the land use designation of the land described as Lots 1-2, 4, 6-8, 10-11 & 
12-15 Plan KAS1487, District Lot 395S, SDYD, and shown shaded yellow on Schedule 
‘H’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Residential Mixed Use (RMU) to Low Density 
Residential (LR). 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 6 of 19 

x) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘I’, 
which forms part of this Bylaw, from Medium Density Residential (MR) to Low 
Density Residential (LR). 

xi) changing the land use designation of the land described as Lots 1-3, Plan KAS3073, 
District Lot 395S, SDYD, and shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘J’, which forms part 
of this Bylaw, from Medium Density Residential (MR) to Apex Village Centre (AVC). 

xii) changing the land use designation of the land described as Lots 1 & 2, Plan KAP81773, 
District Lot 395S, SDYD, and shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘K’, which forms part 
of this Bylaw, from Residential Mixed Use (RMU) to Low Density Residential (LR). 

xiii) changing the land use designation of the land described as Lots 1 & 2, Plan KAS2465, 
District Lot 395S, SDYD (131-133 Whitetail Road), and shown shaded yellow on 
Schedule ‘L’, which forms part of this Bylaw, from Medium Density Residential (MR) 
to Low Density Residential (LR). 

xiv) changing the land use designation of the land shown shaded yellow on Schedule ‘M’, 
which forms part of this Bylaw, from Residential Mixed Use (RMU) to Twin Lakes 
Village Centre (TLVC). 

 

READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME this 5th day of March, 2020.  

PUBLIC HEARING held on this 4th day of June, 2020. 

A SECOND PUBLIC HEARING held on this 2nd day of July, 2020. 

READ A THIRD TIME this ____ day of _____________, 2020. 

ADOPTED this ____ day of _____________, 2020. 

 
_______________________      ______________________  
Board Chair Chief Administrative Officer 
  



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 7 of 19 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020  Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘A’ 
   

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
 
   

Subject 
Area 

 

NN

Amend OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016: 
from:  Residential Mixed Use (RMU) 
to:  Apex Village Centre (AVC) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 

APEX 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 8 of 19 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘B’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016: 
from:  Medium Density Residential (MR) 
to:  Low Density Residential (LR) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 9 of 19 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘C’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
   

Subject 
Area 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016: 
from:  Residential Mixed Use (RMU) 
to:  Medium Density Residential (MR) 

(RED SHADED AREA) 

Amend OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 
2016: 
from:  Resource Area (RA) 
to:  Medium Density 

Residential (MR) 
(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 10 of 19 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘D’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016: 
from:  Residential Mixed Use (RMU) 
to:  Low Density Residential (LR) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 11 of 19 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘E’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016: 
from:  Residential Mixed Use (RMU) 
to:  Medium Density Residential (MR) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 12 of 19 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘F’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016: 
from:  Medium Density Residential (MR) 
to:  Low Density Residential (LR) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 13 of 19 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘G’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016: 
from:  Residential Mixed Use (RMU) 
to:  Residential Medium Density (MR) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 14 of 19 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘H’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016: 
from:  Mixed Use Apex Alpine (RMU) 
to:  Low Density Residential (LR) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 15 of 19 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘I’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016 
from:  Medium Density Residential (MR) 
to:  Low Density Residential (LR) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 16 of 19 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘J’ 
   

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
  

Subject 
Parcels 

 

NN

APEX 

Amend OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016: 
from:  Medium Density Residential (MR) 
to:  Apex Village Centre (AVC) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 17 of 19 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘K’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
 
  

Subject 
Area 

 

NN

Amend OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016: 
from:  Residential Mixed Use (RMU) 
to:  Low Density Residential (LR) 

 (YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 18 of 19 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘L’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
 
  

Subject 
Area 

 

NN

Amend OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016: 
from:  Medium Density Residential (MR) 
to:  Low Density Residential (LR) 

 (YELLOW SHADED AREA) 



Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 
(D2018.059-ZONE) 

Page 19 of 19 

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
101 Martin St, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 
Telephone: 250-492-0237    Email: info@rdos.bc.ca  
 
Amendment Bylaw No. 2683.03, 2020 Project No: D2018.059-ZONE 

Schedule ‘M’ 
  

 
 
 

  
   
     
   
 
 
 

Subject 
Area 

 

NN

TWIN 
LAKE 
GOLF 

COURSE 

Amend OCP Bylaw No. 2683, 2016: 
from:  Residential Mixed Use (RMU) 
to:  Twin Lakes Village Centre (TLVC) 

(YELLOW SHADED AREA) 





 
      

     
     

        

   

 

 

   

         

       

   

              

                

    

                

          

    

                   
                     

                       
                  



 

  

 
   

  

  

   
   

             
            

           

              

          

          

             

        

  
   

  

      

    
    



  
  

    

  
 

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

  

       

 

 

  
  

                     

              

                   

                
                     

               

               

                 

                   

                  

                  

                 

    

                     

                 

                   

           

                  

                      



    

             

 

 

 



  
  

     
 

  
 

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

 

   

  

        

 

  

  

        

               
                     

                      

                

                

                  

           

                    

                

                

                   

   

                   

                

        
                    

                 



             

            

                

                  

                  

    

                    

                

                 

                   

       

                     

                  

                    

                     

                   

                 

 

 

 



  
  

     

  
 

 

 

  

  

  

 

 

   

 

  

       

 

 

  
  

    

           

                      

                  

               

                  
                  

                  

                  

         

   

 

 
 



                
                

  

                  
              

     

               
                

          

                
                 

                    
               
           

     
  

  

  

     
  

  

                    
               

                  
                

                 
             

      

      

  

        





 
    

     

     

       

    

  

   

   

         

       

   

              

                

    

                

      
        

          

    

                   
                     

                     
                  





 

 Project No. X2019.005-ZONE 
Page 1 of 2 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 

 
DATE:  July 2, 2020 
 
RE:  OCP Bylaw Amendments - Electoral Areas “A”, “C”, “D”, “E”, “F”, “G”, “H” & “I” 
  Micro Cannabis Production Facilities 

 

Administrative Recommendation:  

THAT Bylaw No. 2858, 2019, a bylaw to amend Electoral Area Official Community Plans to introduce 
criteria against which the Regional District may choose to evaluate an application for a “micro 
cannabis production facility”, be read a third time and adopted. 
 

Purpose: 
The purpose of the proposed amendments to the Electoral Area Official Community Plan (OCP) 
Bylaws is to introduce policy statements that indicate the criteria against which the Regional District 
Board may choose to evaluate an amendment bylaw application for a “micro cannabis production 
facility”. 
 
Background: 

Public information meetings were held on July 31, 2019 (Kaleden), August 1, 2019 (Princeton), August 
19, 2019 (Oliver) and August 21, 2019 (Naramata).  Attendance at these meetings consisted of four (4) 
persons in Kaleden, two (2) persons in Princeton, four (4) persons in Oliver and approximately 37 
persons in Naramata. 

At its meeting of October 17, 2019, the P&D Committee considered all representations received in 
relation to this consultation process and resolved that “more information is required.”   

At its meeting of January 23, 2020, the P&D Committee of the Board further considered Bylaw No. 
2858 and resolved that “staff be instructed to explore separate setbacks for agricultural properties 
abutting agricultural and residential land and come back with recommendations as to reasonable 
setbacks for intensive farming operations.” 

At its meeting of February 6, 2020, the P&D Committee of the Board resolved that Bylaw No. 2858 be 
amended prior to proceeding to first reading so that: 

· all amendments to the Electoral Area zoning bylaws be removed; and 

· new policy statements regarding the criteria against which a bylaw amendment application 
proposing a micro cannabis production facility in a Rural zone will be assessed against be 
introduced into the Electoral Area Official Community Plan Bylaws. 

At its meeting of March 19, 2020, the Regional District Board resolved to approve first and second 
reading of the amendment bylaws and directed that a public hearing occur at the Board meeting of 
April 16, 2020. 



  
 

 Project No. X2019.005-ZONE 
Page 2 of 2 

At its meeting of March 19, 2020, the Board subsequently resolved that all non-regulatory public 
hearings on land use matters be waived, and all regulatory public hearings be postponed until further 
notice in response to the on-going health crisis related to the COVID-19 virus. 

On May 1, 2020, Ministerial Order M139, issued under the Emergency Program Act, enables local 
governments to hold a public hearing by means of electronic or other communication facilities. 

An electronic public hearing on the amendment bylaws is scheduled to occur on June 18, 2020, ahead 
of the regular meeting of the Board. 

All representations received to date that are seen to be related to Bylaw No. 2858, including those 
from external agencies, are included as a separate item on the Board agenda. 
 
Analysis:  
Further to the direction provided by the P&D Committee of the Board at its meeting of February 6, 
2020, Bylaw No. 2858 is proposing to introduce OCP policies that speak to the criteria the Board 
would use when considering rezoning applications proposing to allow micro cannabis production 
facility.  Specifically:   

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or Medium Density 
Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone 
boundary. 

Administration supports these amendments as they will provide direction to the public, property 
owners and staff on basic parameters a rezoning application to allow for a micro cannabis production 
facility should be addressing. 
 
Alternatives:  
.1 THAT third reading of Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858, 2019, be deferred. 

.2 THAT third reading of Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858, 2019, be denied. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted:  

 
_________________________________ 
C. Garrish, Planning Manager 



Electoral Area Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858, 2020 
  Page 1 of 10 

 ______________ 
 

BYLAW NO. 2858 
 ______________ 

 
  

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 

 BYLAW NO.  2858, 2020 
 

 
A Bylaw to amend the Electoral Areas “A”, “C”, “D”, “E”, “F”, “H” and “I” 

 Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen Official Community Plan Bylaws 
 
 
 
The REGIONAL BOARD of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open meeting 
assembled, ENACTS as follows: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the "Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen 
Micro Cannabis Production Facilities Amendment Bylaw No. 2858, 2020.” 

 

Electoral Area “A” 

2. The “Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen, Electoral Area “A” Official Community Plan 
Bylaw No. 2450, 2008” is amended by: 

i) adding a new Section 5.3.10 (Policies) under Section 5.0 (Resource Area) to read as 
follows: 

.10 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

ii) adding a new Section 6.3.19 (Policies) under Section 6.0 (Agriculture) to read as follows 
and renumbering all subsequent sections: 



Electoral Area Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858, 2020 
  Page 2 of 10 

.19 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

iii) adding a new Section 7.3.10 (Policies) under Section 7.0 (Rural Holdings) to read as 
follows: 

.10 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

iv) adding a new Section 8.3.13 (Policies - General) under Section 8.0 (Residential) to read 
as follows: 

.13 Does not support the development of “micro cannabis production facilities” on 
land designated Low Density Residential (LR) or Medium Density Residential 
(MR). 

 
Electoral Area “C” 

3. The “Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen, Electoral Area “C” Official Community Plan 
Bylaw No. 2452, 2008” is amended by: 

i) adding a new Section 8.3.10 (Policies) under Section 8.0 (Resource Area) to read as 
follows: 

.10 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 



Electoral Area Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858, 2020 
  Page 3 of 10 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

ii) adding a new Section 9.3.27 (Policies) under Section 9.0 (Agriculture) to read as 
follows: 

.27 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

iii) adding a new Section 10.3.10 (Policies) under Section 10.0 (Rural Holdings) to read as 
follows: 

.10 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

iv) adding a new Section 11.3.13 (Policies - General) under Section 11.0 (Residential) to 
read as follows: 

.13 Does not support the development of “micro cannabis production facilities” on 
land designated Low Density Residential (LR) or Medium Density Residential 
(MR). 

 
Electoral Area “D” 

4. The “Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen, Electoral Area “D” Official Community Plan 
Bylaw No. 2603, 2013” is amended by: 



Electoral Area Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858, 2020 
  Page 4 of 10 

i) adding a new Section 8.2.8 (Policies) under Section 8.0 (Resource Area) to read as 
follows and renumbering all subsequent sections: 

.8 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

ii) adding a new Section 9.2.26 (Policies) under Section 9.0 (Agriculture) to read as follows 
and renumbering all subsequent sections: 

.26 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

iii) adding a new Section 10.3.12 (Policies) under Section 10.0 (Rural Holdings) to read as 
follows: 

.12 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 



Electoral Area Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858, 2020 
  Page 5 of 10 

iv) adding a new Section 11.2.21 (Policies - General) under Section 11.0 (Residential) to 
read as follows: 

.21 Does not support the development of “micro cannabis production facilities” on 
land designated Low Density Residential (LR) or Medium Density Residential 
(MR). 

 
Electoral Area “E” 

5. The “Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen, Electoral Area “E” Official Community Plan 
Bylaw No. 2458, 2008” is amended by: 

i) adding a new Section 8.3.12 (Policies) under Section 8.0 (Resource Area) to read as 
follows: 

.12 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

ii) adding a new Section 9.3.19 (Policies) under Section 9.0 (Agriculture) to read as 
follows: 

.19 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

iii) adding a new Section 10.3.11 (Policies - General) under Section 10.0 (Rural Holdings) 
to read as follows: 

.11 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 



Electoral Area Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858, 2020 
  Page 6 of 10 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

iv) adding a new Section 8.3.13 (Policies - General) under Section 8.0 (Residential) to read 
as follows: 

.10 Does not support the development of “micro cannabis production facilities” on 
land designated Low Density Residential (LR) or Medium Density Residential 
(MR). 

 
Electoral Area “F” 

6. The “Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen, Electoral Area “F” Official Community Plan 
Bylaw No. 2790, 2018” is amended by: 

i) adding a new Section 8.3.16 (Policies) under Section 8.0 (Resource Area) to read as 
follows: 

.16 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

ii) adding a new Section 9.3.20 (Policies) under Section 9.0 (Agriculture) to read as 
follows: 

.20 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 



Electoral Area Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858, 2020 
  Page 7 of 10 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

iii) adding a new Section 10.3.10 (Policies - General) under Section 10.0 (Rural Holdings) 
to read as follows: 

.10 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

iv) adding a new Section 11.3.13 (Policies – General Residential) under Section 11.0 
(Residential) to read as follows: 

.13 Does not support the development of “micro cannabis production facilities” on 
land designated Low Density Residential (LR) or Medium Density Residential 
(MR). 

 
Electoral Area “H” 

7. The “Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen, Electoral Area “H” Official Community Plan 
Bylaw No. 2497, 2012” is amended by: 

i) adding a new Section 9.3.13 (Policies) under Section 9.0 (Resource Area) to read as 
follows and renumber all subsequent sections: 

.13 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

ii) adding a new Section 10.3.19 (Policies) under Section 10.0 (Agriculture) to read as 
follows: 



Electoral Area Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858, 2020 
  Page 8 of 10 

.19 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

iii) adding a new Section 11.3.11 (Policies) under Section 11.0 (Rural Holdings) to read as 
follows: 

.11 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

iv) adding a new Section 12.3.9 (General Residential Policies) under Section 12.0 
(Residential) to read as follows: 

.9 Does not support the development of “micro cannabis production facilities” on 
land designated Low Density Residential (LR) or Medium Density Residential 
(MR). 

 
Electoral Area “I” 

8. The “Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen, Electoral Area “I” Official Community Plan 
Bylaw No. 2683, 2016” is amended by: 

i) adding a new Section 8.3.10 (Policies) under Section 8.0 (Resource Area) to read as 
follows: 

.10 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 



Electoral Area Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858, 2020 
  Page 9 of 10 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

ii) adding a new Section 9.3.17 (Policies) under Section 9.0 (Agriculture) to read as follows 
and renumbering all subsequent sections: 

.17 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

iii) adding a new Section 10.3.12 (Policies - General) under Section 10.0 (Rural Holdings) 
to read as follows: 

.12 Will consider “micro cannabis production facility” proposals on a case-by-case 
basis through a site specific zoning amendment process, and may use the 
following criteria to assess an application: 

i) the parcel under application has an area not less than 2.0 hectares; 

ii) the maximum size of the plant surface cultivation area is 200.0 m2; 

iii) confirmation is provided that adequate water and servicing is available to 
the site; and 

iv) if the parcel of land that is the subject of an application adjoins a Low or 
Medium Density Residential zone, the micro cannabis production facility 
will be setback 60.0 metres from that zone boundary. 

iv) adding a new Section 11.3.13 (Policies - General) under Section 11.0 (Residential) to 
read as follows: 

.13 Does not support the development of “micro cannabis production facilities” on 
land designated Low Density Residential (LR) or Medium Density Residential 
(MR). 

 
 
 
 
 



Electoral Area Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858, 2020 
  Page 10 of 10 

READ A FIRST AND SECOND TIME this 19th day of March, 2020. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING held on this 2nd day of July, 2020. 
 
READ A THIRD TIME this _____ day of ___________, 2020. 
 
ADOPTED this __ day of ___, 2020. 
 
 
 
_______________________        ______________________   
Board Chair      Corporate Officer 



Lauri Feindell

Subject: FW: Bylaw No. 2858 (Micro Cannabis Production Facilities)

Subject: FW: Bylaw No. 2858 (Micro Cannabis Production Facilities)

From: Coral Brown <

Sent: June 17, 2020 3:51 PM

To: Planning <planning@rdos.bc.ca>

Subject: Re: Bylaw No. 2858 (Micro Cannabis Production Facilities)

I am writing to you on behalf of the man, Mr. Colin Gibson, right next door to the Green Mt. Health Facility
Marijuana Facility.

Do you have a clause in the bylaw about the bright night lights which can cause sleep disturbances for

neighbours.

These facilities must add black out measures to their Green Houses in order to be tolerated.

Coral Brown

Virus-free. www.ayastcom





_BKIT[SH
COLUMBIA.

February 18,2020

File No: X2019.005-ZONE

Regional District ofOkanagan-Similkameen
101 Martin Street
Penticton,B.CV2A5J9
Via E-mail: plannms®.rdos.bc.ca

Re: Bylaw Refenal - FUe No. X2019.005-ZONE (Cannabis)

Dear Christopher Garrish,

Thank you for providing the B.C. Mimstry ofAgricultm-e the opportunity to comment on the OCP
bylaw amendment No.2858. We have reviewed the documentation you have provided. From an

agricultural perspective we csn. offer the foUowmg comments:

• Ministry staff note that with this proposal:
o a required site-spedfic rezomag for a micro cannabis producdon facility may place

an additional burden on a potential agricultural operator, unlike for other agricultural
sectors;

o if any proposed micro processing cannabis facilities in the ALR through site-specific

rezonmg procedures as described are not approved by the Board, this may lead to a
potential inconsistency with ALR Use Regtdation section 8, -which identifies certain
conditions ofcaanabis production as a farm use in which local governments can not

proliibit, and any accompanying issues.

• RDOS may wish to further consider allowing micro processing carmabis facilities on the
ALR, through their zoning bylaw, and consistent with the ALCAcl, to provide a lesser

burden for the interested ALR agricultaral operator.

If you have any questions, please contact me directly at christina.forbes(S).gov.bc.ca or(250) 861-
7201.

Sincerely,

Christina Forbes, PAg Gregory Barde
Regional Agrologist Land Use Planner
B.C. Ministry of Agriculture - Kelowna B.C. Ministiy of Agriculture
Office: (250) 861-7201 Phone: (778) 974-3836
E-mail: christina.iorbes0.govj3C.ca Email: Gresorv.BartlefSteov.bc.ca

Email copy: SaraHuber, ALC Regional Planner, SaTa.HuberfSi.sov.bc.ca

Mblisby of Agriculture Sector Development Branch Mailing Address: Tdeptone: 250861-7201
Ste.2001690Pomd(Road WebAddress hSp-JIgwJoc.calagtS
KetownaBC V1X765



Interior Health
maSeWk

Feburary 28, 2020

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen

101 Martin Street,

Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

RE: File No. X2019.005-ZONE; Bylaw: 28S8

Thank you for the opportunity to provide a health perspective regarding the above referenced application. It is our

understanding that the proposed OCP amendments identify site specific rezoning criteria for micro cannabis

production facilities. We have reviewed the application with a Healthy Communities Development lens. The
following comments are noted and should be given consideration regarding the amendments:

Drinking Water Supply:
The water supply system that services the facility may be subject to the approval and permitting requirements of

the BC Drinking Water Protection Act and Regulation.

Waste Water Disposal:

Domestic Sewage includes washroom, food preparation, dishwashing and showering waste. This falls under the BC
Sewerage System Regulation and is enforced by interior Health. Waste water generated by these facilities may not
be considered "domestic sewage." Industrial Waste is managed by the Ministry of Environment, under the

Environmental Waste Management Act, Municipal Sewage Regulation.

Location:

Industrial operations are expected to follow best practices for protecting the environment and public health. Best
practices, however, may not be adequate to contain all odors from the operation. As such, proximity and impact

on adjacent land uses need to be considered:

. • proximity to residences and schools;

• the size and configuration of the property, including access to the property;

• proposed scale of the production facility and accessory usage;

• potential noise, glare and vibration issues;

• air quality - prevailing winds, ventilation, odors.

Agricultural Land:

Consider food security when cannabis production is a proposed use for agricultural land. Cannabis production does

not support food security. While soil based cannabis production does not contribute to food security, the land is
available for when food production will be needed in the future (should the cannabis production not render the
land incapable of food production). Construction of indoor cannabis growing facilities contributes to the loss of

agriculture land for future food production.

Farmland preservation helps to maintain a level of food production that contributes to food self-sufficiency, and
food self-sufficiency supports healthy eating.

Bus: 250-469-7070 x12287 POPULATION HEALTH
tanva.osbome@interiorhealth.ca 505 Doyle Avenue

www.interiorhealth.ca Kelowna BC V1Y OC5



RDOS Page 2 of 2
Feburarv 28. 2020

Food self-sufficiency in BC is increasingly important as extreme weather will affect production in Calrfomia; which
is currently where 40%-50% of BC's suppiy of fruits and vegetables comes from.

The legalization ofcannabis presents both an opportunity and challenge for local governments in the development

of healthy, vibrant communities. Interior Health - Healthy Communities welcomes the opportunity to collaborate

with the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen around education and awareness efforts-

Thank you forthe opportunity to comment on this application. If you have any questions or concerns, please feel
free to contact me at 250-469-7070 xl2287.

Sincerely,

Tanya Osborne, BAHS
Communrty Health Facilitator
Healthy Communities

Interior Health Authority



flCOtO»*At. CHSTfttCT

^^s
Feedback Form
Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

SI'MILKAMEEN Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: ptanning@irdos.bc.ca

TO:

FROM:

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen

[\|3^g; Adam Sexsnrith

FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

Street Address:

•ase print)

RE: Proposed Electoral Area Official Community Plan Amendment Bylaw No. 2858

Micro Cannabis Production Facility Policies

My comments / concerns are:

F~| I do support the proposed textual amendments to the OCP bylaws.

|x I I do support the proposed textual amendments to the OCP bylaws, subject to the comments

listed below.

I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the OCP bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the

Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No.2858.

I support the amendments for micro cultivation and processing for ALR land. Although I agree

that post-Tian/est'acti vines like Drying, cunng,
C-^-rvrnnci na/-l/amnn ?*n^ ovfr-yn-nftn hf -i n*; -t <-I<a jq f-ill-i^l^'l-ltlft nr- ^ I r-nr turn T ilri. •r-FnlT

like to strongly suggest that outdoor cultivation or temporary structures be used for
^Tl~l n-n re"—hoop huul;6s(1n a l>t±Lui'(id dctici^io be dblti —co unl l^e —Lhe narural —iiun and be
able to keen costs of operations down. The LPs are making deals at SOcent per gram and m-icro

cult-ivatorsust be able to produce for approximately lOcents per gram to be able ro compete.

To combat imminent commodinzation of raw product materials, please strongly consider not
forcing these into bunkers or warehouse type operations.

successful model.

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than March 6, 2020

Proiecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okansgan-Similkamsen takes seriously. Our practices hsve been designed 10
ensure compliance with :he privacy provisions cf the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or
proprietary information you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FlpPA. Should you have any questions about the collection, use
or disdosura of this information please contact: Manager of Legislath/eSeruices, RODS, 101 Manin Street, Pentlcton. BCV2ASJ9, 250-492-0237.



Lauri Feindell

Subject: R/V: Amendment Bylaw (No. 2858) Health Canada under the federal "micro cultivation"

license

Attachments: Understanding Cannabis Micro-cultivation copy.pdf; ATTOOOOI.htm; RDOS BYLAW

2858,2019.pdf; ATTOOOOZ.htm

From: Chris Couzelis <
Sent: January 29,2020 8:31 AM
To: Info <info(S)rdos.bc.ca>

Subject: Amendment Bylaw (No. 2858) Health Canada under the federal "micro cultivation" license

Attention: Planning & Development committee

I am submitting the attached document for your review and information regarding my input to the
Draft Zoning Amendment of ByLaw No 2858. 1 was not aware of the prior meetings, and had I
known, would have been very interested to attend.

One observation in the Bylaw amendment, [at 2.ii)7.27]) proposes to limit the building facility to
not exceed 400.0 m2.

In this vein, I would state by limiting the building size, it runs counter-productive to multf-
purposing the building, with other than Cannabis crops. In our case and at our farm, we are in the
early stages of developing a seasonal garlic crop. This crop is planted in late fall and harvested in
mid-July, each year. Currently, we do not have sufficient processing buildings on the property for
the current hardest and if approved to seek a Micro Cultivation License,, the option of constructing
a building used for processing our food crop, would be economical and efficient.

Health Canada (in our opinion) has well thought out the restricted canopy growing area for Micro
Cultivation @ 200.0 m2. With Health Canada not specifying building size, demonstrates forward
thinking, as it recognizes a new farm building constructed, could have multiple uses. By limiting
farm building size increases the risk of square peg and round hole, misfits. I am certain, there
will be other RDOS applications for Micro Cultivation and those with existing farm building is in
excess of 400m2, are disqualified misfits.

Overall, the Micro Cultivation license is a good thing for small farmers like ourselves and m time

we will be contributing to a premium craft industry. And with growth, could reduce the ilHdt
production of cannabi's.

My request fs to not limit the building size, although if ft fs an imperative part of the amendment,
to take into consideration a size of at least 4 times the canopy growing area, as defined in the
Health Canada regulations.

I am confident the RDOS 'in its progressive thinking will recognize the positive impacts and benefits
of having many mlcro-cultivation operations legally operating, within the RODS.



PASHA^"^ 1BRANDS

Understanding Cannabis
Micro-cultivation for

Municipalities

Susan Chapelle, MBA Director Government Relations and Affairs
Patrick Mulholland, R.P. Bio. Government Relations Strategist

2019



the passing of the Cannabis Act in

)ber 2018; Canada became the second

country in the world to legalize the

)roduction and use ofcannabis for the

recreational market. The introductioB of

this legislation comes with the growini
0 ../"t "'1 -!.» . "313

pains ot understanding, ena&lmg ana

regulating this new industry, and

the iiistitutional infrastmctureo

Is work will fall to the

municipalities who are responsible

i-use zoning, bylaw and law

Understanding the impacts and benefits of cannabis

micro-cultivation for municipalities opens new doors

for tax revenue, local economic development and land

use planning. The benefits of a vertically integrated

economy and the many ancillary businesses that are

being created can be a powerful economic driver for

small communities, a



Existing Small Cannabis Growers
are an Integral Part of the

BC Economy
03

Cannabis cultivation in British Columbia is not new.

Cannabis has been important to communities in British

Columbia. In the Kootenays, it is estimated that up to

30% of the local economy has been driven bycannabis

cultivation (Paris, 2018). Small communities in B.C.

that have had downturns in the resource sector have

quietly relied on the craft cannabis industry.

Craft growers have been operating in our communities for many years

and have built an industry with a global reputation. Generally, people

are unaware of the micro-cultivation facilities that exist all around them.

These small growers are your friends and neighbours who care about their

communities and want to contribute by entering the new, legal framework.

It wasn't the large corporations that built the cannabis industry in BC, it

was craft growers and advocates for access to medicinal cannabis. It is

time to recognize their achievements and allow these craft producers to

enter this burgeoning market. Failing to acknowledge these craft growers

with appropriate land use could lead to rural BC communities taking a

financial hit. B

Understanding Cannabis
Micro-cultivation for

Municipalities



Purposes of the Cannabis Act

The Cannabis Act was established by the Government

of Canada with several purposes in mincL

1. Prptectrng young persons by restricQng access to cannabis

2. Protecfing young persons from inducements to use cannabis

3. Provide for the ticrt productjon of cannabis to reduce Mat activ'rijes

4. Deter rflPcrt activrEres en retstion to cannabis

5. Reduce the burden on the criminal Justice system

6. Provide access to a quadty-controfled supply of cannabts

7. Enhance public awareness of the health risks associated with cannabrs use

Safety & Awareness
Are Key







Classes of Licences Established in
the Cannabis Act

07

Cultivation Licences

Standard Cultivation Licence

• There is no limit on the size of the

growing area

• Facilities range in size from 2000m2

(20000 ft2) to 200000m2 (2,000,000 ft2)

Micro-Cultivation Licence

• Limited to 200 m2 (2100 ft2) of growing area

Nursery Licence

• No limit on the size of the growing area for

vegetative growth

• Limited to 50m2 (~500 ft2) of growing area

for flowering growth

Processing Licences

Standard Processing Licence

• No limit on the amount of cannabis that

can be processed

Micro Processing Licences

• Limited to possession of 600kg of

cannabis in a year

Analytical Testing Licence

Research Licence

Understanding Cannabis
Micro-cultivation for

Municipalities



Micro-cultivation Licences
are Different

00000000

08

Micro-cultivation licences were created by Health

Canada at the request of the B.C. government as a

way of allowing the EXISTING craft cannabis growers a

route to join the legal framework of the Cannabis Act.

The goals of the Micro-cultivation licence are:

• Prevent monopolization of the cannabis industry by large corporations by

allowing individuals and small businesses who built the cannabis industry

into the regulated framework

• Provide for the licit production of cannabis to reduce illicit activities by

allowing existing small growers to join the legal framework

A Micro-cultivation licence is very different than a standard cultivation

licence. Growers utilize a very small footprint The canopy area of a micro-

cultivation is only 200 m2 which is about the size illustrated below. 9

26m Standard size NHL rink

Understanding Cannsbis
Micro-cultivation for

Municipalities



In contrast a Standard Giiltivation licence

could have a growing area up to 200,000^

m2 or 20 Ha.An entire mlcro-curtivafion

facility inctuding fencing and parking will

only be about 1000 m2 or 0.1 Ha.

wwmm
••••

//////////

lilill.

20Qm2 (2100 ft.2) growing area of a
nwero-euttivation licence with "400 ptents

2,000m2 {21,000 ft.2 )srowmg area of
a smatt standard cutUvatton Ucence

with "4,000 plants

26,000m3 <210,000 ft2)
growing area of a medium sized standard

cutfivat'ion liceneewith ~ 40,000 plants

A very^ large standard cuttivation licence

could be Up 2QO,OOOmz C 2,100,0.00 ft2 J ^,.;
with 400,000 plants :; . , ; ^.^

y*W^
i^' --•-.- ~'~^'

.^•-^'•^
'>-»•' ,<-.

-/-.y-^

•fr^'^7,
^-••'^



Economic Benefits of

Micro-cultivation

10

Every community has dozens and, in some cases

hundreds of micro-cultivators operating within their

community. These growers want to move out of the

shadows and become part of the new legal framework

and be accepted as local small businesses that

contribute to the social fabric of their communities.

As these facilities upgrade to meet the standards required by the Cannabis

Act, they will have to engage with a large number of local contractors such as:

• Building contractors

• Electricians, HVAC Specialists, Plumbers

• Computer programmers

• Security companies

• Laboratory testing companies

Understanding Cannabis
Micro-cuttivation for

Municipalities



Economic Benefits of

Micro-cultivation
oooooooo

Continued — 11

In B.C. it is estimated that there are as many as 6000 of these micro-

cultivators operating under the Federal program (Shore, 2019). If we look

at the cumulative effects of licensing, just 10% or 600 of these existing

micro-cultivators, we can see how small rural communities that are suffering

from a downturn in the resource sector can benefit:

Each Micro-cultivator i 600 Micro-cultivators

Amount of land used 8 0.1 Ha 8 60 Ha

Direct Full Time Jobs § 4 I 2400
JL

Local Wages1 g $200,000 | $120M

Gross Revenue to Growers 2 j $2.4M j $1.4B

1. Assuming a S25/hr. wage

2. Assumes 400kg/yr./mlcro of production and a retail price of $12/g which is the mid-price for premium flower as listed
on the BCLDB website for premium cannabis. Wholesale price to growers is assumed to be 50% of retail

Municipalities will also benefit from:

• Increased municipal revenue to communities through permits and fees

• Reduced bylaw enforcement and policing costs

• Reduced fire and life safety risks

Understanding Cannabis
Micro-cultivation for

Municipalities



in the ALR
oooocooo

12

On Feb.22, 2019, the Agricultural Land Commission

clarified that all forms of cannabis production are a

'farm-use', and that application to the ALC was not

required for growing cannabis. The ALC does allow

local governments to limit cannabis production in

certain forms through local zoning bylaws.

The ALC specified that local government may not prohibit cannabis

production if it is produced:

® Outdoors in a field

• Inside a structure that has a base entirely consisting of soil

• Inside a structure built before July 13, 2018 for the purpose of

growing crops

Due to concerns that large cannabis companies are accessing farmland

to build huge industrial scale greenhouses for cannabis production, some

municipalities have taken the path of prohibiting all forms of cannabis

production in the ALR except for that which the ALC allows.

Understanding Cannabis
Micro-cultivstion for

Municipalities



Cannabis Micro-cultivation

in the ALR

Continued — 13

•wneiaR'sisSl

This does not acknowledge the difference in scale of

operations between Micro-cultivation licences and

Standard cultivation licences

Limiting cannabis production to soil based within the ALR effectively prohibits

micro-cultivation for the following reasons:

• Micro-cultivators are craft growers who tend to each plant by hand to

grow the high-quality flower that B.C. has become world famous for.

• Most cannabis grown outdoors or in greenhouses with a soil base

is only suitable for extraction

• Health Canada has strict limits for microbial and pesticide

contamination for flower, which are difficult to achieve with a soil base

• Outdoor cannabis may be subject to contamination from

neighbouring crops

• Health Canada requires licencees to use Good Production

Practices (GPP) which include stringent sanitation practices that are

extremely difficult to achieve with a soil base

Understanding Cannabis
Micro-cultivation for

Municipalities



ffi

^

!l^M^^^^^M^^!;!^?^^N^;^^^Mst^^^^^



Micro-cultivators are getting caught in

the crossfire of the ALR debate. In reality,

micro-cultivators are already in many

outbuildings on ALR land. Allowing micro-

cultivators to operate legally wilt have no

effect on the availability of farmland for

agricultural use. The additional income

that this year-round crop provides to

traditional food farmers enhances the

viability of these farmers and allows them

to continue to produce other crops that are

becoming economically marginal due to

cheaper production internationally.



Infrastructure

16

Municipalities have expressed concern regarding

the burden that cannabis production places on local

infrastructure. Micro-cultivators, due to their small

size, do not place the same burden on municipal

infrastructure that large corporate standard cultivators

do. Micro-cultivators are focused on sustainable

cannabis cultivation.

Water

Cannabis plants need 15-20 litres of water per

day for each plant. For a micro-cultivatorwith 500

plants, this amounts to 7500-10000 litres per day.

This is a fraction of what standard cultivators are

using. Micro-cultivation facilities are developing

effective water conservation strategies such as

rain water collection, and reusing water from

fertigation systems and dehumidifiers.

Electricity

This is the number one input for micro-cultivation

facilities. A micro-cuitivation facility will use

only 1% of the energy used by a medium sized

20,000 m2 facility. New developments in LED

technology and the use of hybrid greenhouse

facilities that still utilize sunlight are all helping

to reduce this cost.

Understanding Cannabis
Micro-cultivation for

Municipalities



Cannabis Production and

Infrastructure

Continued — 17

ssytaB-??.'-'-.^;

Wastewater
Organic
Waste

Micro-cultivation facilities are striving to reduce Composting is the preferred method of disposal

the discharge of waste waterthrough the use of for the organic waste that is produced by

recirculating hyctroponic systems, which recycle cultivation operations. Almost all communities

fertigation water, in B.C. have access to a commercial composting

operation. It does not need to be disposed of

in landfills.

Micro-cultivators are

focused on sustainable

cannabis cultivation

Understanding Cannabls
Micro-cultivation for

Municipalities



Cannabis Production and Odours

18

Some municipalities have been having problems with

odour complaints due to large standard cultivation

operations. Cannabis odours are created by the plant's

essential oils (terpenes) that are produced during the

flowering phase. There are over 200 compounds that

have been identified as terpenes that can create smells

ranging from pine and citrus to earthy and skunky.

The problem is many large cultivators with 100's of thousands of plants

ignored this problem. Micro-cuitivators may only have a few hundred plants,

and the reality is that they are already controlling their odours, because

no one realizes they already exist in neighbourhoods, or industrial areas.

Public Health Ontario completed a literature search that found no studies

associating health effects with these odours. However, odours can still be

perceived as unpleasant even ifthey don't have any health effects associated

with them, and this can be a source of irritation to nearby residents.

Understanding Cannabis
Micro-cultivation for

Municipalities



^fss^^^l'^^^t^^^^^'s

^rffr:--h^^^S^, ^^•f* ^-- . :v'^^^
.^«.^,.;t r"^

'.^3^-''--M-^^^'^ "'

Many hxtustries have to control odours, so this is not

something new. There are a watfety of effective odour

Non-lheonalptaisma technotogy. Wkffnc^alfties cawsecfaae

i(fa-the&lj^l^Uui^irf^^i^dai^?na^^ plan

be in place in order to prevent this from being a problem.



Municipal Role in Implementing
Cannabis Act

20

Municipalities have a shared responsibility in the

implementation of the institutional infrastructure that

supports the implementation of the Cannabis Act.

Municipalities, ProvindaB and Federal governments

all have the same desire; to reduce crime and the

costs associated with illegal cannabis activities. It

is only through enabling micro-curtivatjon licences

that we can reduce illegal activities associated with

cannabis production. IVIunicipalities need to work with

the Federal government to help achieve the goals of:

ig Illicit
i> a 3 3

•r~'':t"S~S7~S "9~'3 jd'T- H"3

tlie

systeriL

Understanding Cannabis
Micro-cultivation for

Municipalities



The Municipal Role in Implementing
the Cannabis Act

Continued — 21

Prohibition has not worked in reducing the illegal activities associated with

cannabis. If the response is; "we don't want production in any form in our

communities", then the underground economy will continue unabated.

Municipalities can affect a positive change without the negative side

effects by:

• Allowing indoor Micro-cultivation licences on ALR land up to

1000m2 total facility size which aligns with ALC regulations

regarding fill. This will allow Micro-cultivators to operate, while still

protecting agricultural land and food production

• Specifying micro-cultivation and processing as an allowed use in

current commercial (C) and industrial (I) zones

• Allowing micro-cultivation in Rural Residential (RR) areas with lot

sizes greater than 2 Ha

• Developing Comprehensive Development (CD) zones that would

allow for technology hubs to be created. This would allow for micro-

cultivation, processing, extraction, packaging and lab services to

support the entire vertical cannabis economy.

Understanding Cannabis
Micro-cultivation for

Municipalities



€anad.a?s cannabis industrY exists

t3€cause of ttie liard work of local craft

cannabis cultivators, B,€. has a history of

supporting local agriculture and "craft"

culture, through its support of local

wineries and beer producers.

If you do not allow local micro-cultivators to enter

the legal framework, then you are encouraging the

consolidation of the cannabis industry in the hands of a

few large corporations, not unlike the alcohol industry

after prohibition ended. There will be few benefits to

smafl communities across B.C. in this scenario, and

the craft growers will be marginalized and pushed to

the sidelines or choose to remain in the illicit market.

By supporting your local growers through policy and

regulations, you are building a safe and sustainable

new industry.



References

Health Canada, 2018. Cannabfs Regulations SOR 2018-144 (2018). Ottawa.,

Health Canada, 2018 Cannabis Act S.C. 2018 c.18. Ottawa

Government of B.C, 2019. Agricultural Land Reserve Use Regulation, B.C. Reg. 30/2019. Victoria

Haupert, Laura. Sep.6, 2018, Smell Science: Addressing Odor Issues in Cannabis Production. Grow. Grow Opportunity retrieved from
-!i-;os://>wiv',';.2r3./'/20GCi^uni'!V.;2/3rnel!-sclsnce-sddressir!G-odo!-;f-issLies-;n-3fGWinQ-c3nRabis-32422/

Ontario Agency for Hearth Protection and Promotion (Public Health Ontario). Evidence brief: Odours from cannabis production. Toronto, ON:
Queen's Printer for Ontario; 2018.

Airphaser Environmental n:i?:^/3[ronasescom/t=i;nn9ios;i:'

Paris, Max. Jun 6, 2018. This is what buoys this town: B.C.'s small pot farmers fight for space in legal market Retrieved from
^^G^^-f^^'-^ ^c; C5/n^^^Ga^ti^£/^opT3na^s-c:^ft-CGnn^2-9row^£-^^

Shore, Randy. June 26, 2019. Freeing craft cannabis from 'grey market' worth $3billion to B.C.:reporL Retrieved from

Q^£y/y=QCO»:\f£-:ayn,cpn^/^nn3_&i3/C2H|^bJ^^^^

Freshwater Alliance, Mar.17, 2017. Of water and Beer. Retrieved from nttos://'/.;iiVvv.f;'s5hwaters!!'ance-;a/oT' v/acer 3nd_besj-

Kwan, Braela, July 15, 2019. Cucumbers or Cannabis? The Battle Over Pot Crops on BC's Farmland. The Tyee retrieved from

?E9^t^5L^;^yews/2 919/0 7rt5/^3Sie-0"=c3o'!:S£°o^

BCLDB Average Wholesale Pricing far Retailers. Retrieved from r!ttps://'?uw-&=L!:ibcannaoiSLipci3tes.com/oaoortunitje3/!-etai;efs

ALC, 2019. Annual Report 2018-2019. Agricultural Land Commission Retrieved from n^si/lwww.aic,gqy^c^a/asse'ia/^c/3aS^Wt:roT^
commit a! o;''-re2or';s/3pr;^a!_reDoi-E_301S-.:20''9.aci'?



Presented by

PASHA BRANDS

CSI: CRFT





Representations Received at

QctoberlZ 2019-

Planning and Development Committee





J3RITISH
COLUMBIA

Ministry of Tjansporiarioa
and Iufi'astmctuie

DEVELOPMENT APPROVALS
PRELIMINARY BYLAW

COMMUNICATION

Your File #: X2019.005-
ZONE
(Amendment
Bylaw No. 2849)

eDASFile#: 2019-01666
Date: April 2, 2019

Regional District Okanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street
Penticton, BC V2A 5J9

Attention: Lauri Feindell, Planning Secretary

Re: Proposed Text Amendment Bylaw 2849, 2019 for:
Electoral Areas, A. C. D. E. F. G. H. and I

Preliminary Approval is granted for the rezoning for one year pursuant to section
52 (3) (a) of the Transportation Act.

If you have any questions please feel free to call Rob Bitte at (250) 490-2280.

Yours truly,

Rob Bitte
District Development Technician

H1183P-eDAS (2009/02)

Local District Address

Penticfon Area Office
102 Industrial Place

Penticton,BCV2A7C8
Canada

Phone: (250) 712-3660 Fax: (250) 490-2231

"/

^

Page 1 of 1



April 29,

File No:

2019

X2019 .005-Zone

^—-^
;< ' .A

_BRITISH
COLUMBIA

Regional District of Okanagan-SimiIkameen
101 Martin Street
Penticton, B.C. V2A 5J9
Via E-mail: Dlanning(a),rdos.bc.ca

Re: Bylaw Referral - File No. X2019.005-ZONE

Dear Christopher Garrish,

Thank you for providmg the B.C. Ministry of Agriculture the opportunity to comment on the bylaw
referral X2019.005-ZONE (Home Occupation Industry & Cannabis Zoning) regarding Bylaw No.
2849,2918 for Electoral Areas A, C, D, E, F, G, H and I. I have reviewed the documentation you
have provided. From an agricukural perspective I can offer the followmg comments:

• Part 2 of the ALR Use Regulation lists farm uses that local governments may not prohibit;
including cannabis production criteria in Section 8.

• Ministry staff recognise that the proposed zoning bylaw text on 'Prohibited Uses of Land,
Buildings and Structure' specifically excludes cannabis production as described in the old
ALRUSP Regulation.

• For clarity and consistency Ministry staff encourage keeping cannabis production in the
definition of agriculture with reference that it must be done in accordance with Section 8 of
the new ALR Land Use Regtdations.

• It appears that the only zoning bylaw provisions that will permit cannabis production on the
ALR will be as a 'home industry' . While Ministry staff acknowledge a local government's

authority to regulate use on the ALR, there are concerns that this zoning bylaw doesn't

clearly identify where on the ALR caimabis production as described m section 8 of the ALR
Use Regulation is pennitted.

• For example, as currently drafted, the proposed Electoral Area A zoning bylaw section

7.18.3 (for home industry) appears to not permit the growmg ofcannabis outdoors in a field.
This would appear to be inconsistent with the ALR Use Regulation.

• Ministry staff also suggest confirming with Health Canada that if the intent is to provide a
path forward for micro cultivation licenses, the provisions as described for 'home industry'
allow for this type ofcannabis production at the federal level.

• Ministry staff support the proposed inclusion of caimabis production as a permitted use in
the Regional District's Electoral Area General Industrial Zones.

If you have any questions please contact me directly at cb-istma.forbes(%gov.bc.ca or 25 0-861 -7201.

^J
\-^

Ministry of Agriculture Sector Development Branch Mailing Address: Telephone: 250 861-7201 •'""',/
Ste. 2001690 Powick Road Web Address: http://gov.bc.ca/agri/
KekiwnaBC V1X7G5



-2-

Siucerely,

Christina Forbes, P.Ag., Regional Agrologist Gregory Bartle, Land Use Planner
B.C. Ministry of Agriculture - Kelowna B.C. Ministry of Agriculture

Office: (250) 861-7201 Phone: (778) 974-3836
E-mail: christina.forbes(2),gov.bc.ca Email: Gi-egorv.BartIef%gov.bc.ca

Email copy: Sara Huber, ALC Regional Planner, Sara.Huber(S),sov.bc.ca

^



From: Collins, Martin J ALC-.EX <Martin.Cotlins@gov.bc.ca>

Sent: March 25, 2019 11:17 AM
To: Planning <planning@rdos.bc.ca>

Subject: FW: Bylaw Referral X2019.005-ZONE

Lauri

Thank you for the referral.

The ALC has no objection to the proposed bylaw as noted on the attached.

Regards

Martin Collins
Director of Policy and Planning
Agricultural Land Commission
#201, 4940 Canada Way, Burnaby, BC V5G 4K6
Phone: 604-660-2554
martin.collins@aov.bc.ca

i^



RESPONSE SUMMARY

AMENDMENT BYLAW NO. 2849

D Approval Recommended for Reasons

Outlined Below
InInterests Unaffected by Bylaw

D Approval Recommended Subject to D Approval Not Recommended Due
Conditions Below to Reasons Outlined Below

Signature: ±w^
^ C-t^^cm fe^Agency:

Date: ^-}f ^// ^ '
/

Signed By: G^W^ CTJ/WT-

Title: ^i^M^^_

Bylaw Referral Sheet-X2019.005-ZONE Page 2 of 2

•w
.•^p^



Agricultural Land Commission
201-4940 Canada Way

Burnaby, British Columbia V5G 4K6
Tel: 604 660-7000 ] Fax: 604 660-7033

www.alc.gov.bc.ca

July 4,2019
Reply to the attention of Sara Huber

ALC Planning Review: 46671
Local Government File: X2019.005-ZONE

Christopher Garrish
Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen
cgarrish@rdos. be. ca

Delivered Electronically

Re: RDOS Electoral Area Official Community Plan and Zoning Amendment Bylaw
Nos, 2840 and2858 [Home-Industry Occupation and Cannabis Production)

Thank you for forwarding a draft copy of Regional District ofOkanagan Similkameen (RDOS)
Electoral Area Official Community Plan (OCP) and Zoning Amendment Bylaw Nos. 2840 and
2858 (the "Bylaws") for review and comment by the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC). The
following comments are provided to help ensure that the Bylaws is consistent with the purposes
of the Agricultural Land Commission Act (ALCA), the Agricultural Land Reserve General
Regulation, (the "General Regulation"), the Agricultural Land Reserve Use Regulation (the "Use
Regulation"), and any decisions of the ALC.

The Bylaws seek to update the regulations related to "home industry" and "home occupation"
uses as well as those related to the production of cannabis, specifically:

Bylaw No. 2849

• Introduces policies into the Electoral Area OCP Bylaws that support the development of
large-scale cannabis production facilities on lands designated Industrial (1), and not in
other land use designations;

• Introduces new definitions of "cannabis production, indoor" and permit this as a use in
the General Industrial (11) and Heavy Industrial (12) zones;

• Introduces a new regulation prohibiting "cannabis production, indoor" in all other zones
unless occurring outside in a field or in a structure in the ALR with a base consisting
entirely of soil (with certain exceptions for columns or posts supported by a concrete

footing);

• Clarifies that the setbacks for greenhouses and cannabis production facilities from a
parcel line are to be 15.0 metres;

• Introduces a new definition of "cannabis production, outdoor" and amend the definition of
"agriculture" to include this use as a form of "agriculture";

• Amends the definitions of "home industry" and "home occupation" to make these
consistent across Electoral Area zoning bylaws;

Page 1 of 3



ALC File: 46671

If you have any questions about the above comments, please contact the undersigned at 604-
660-7019 or by e-mail CSara.Huber@gov.bc.ca).

Yours truly,

PROVINCIAL AGRICULTURAL LAND COMMISSION

Sara Huber, Regional Planner

Enclosure: Bylaw Referral Sheet (Home Occupation Industry Cannabis)

CC: Ministry of Agriculture - Attention: Christina Forbes

46671 m1

Page 3 of 3



JBRITISH
COLUMBIA

June 25,2019

File No: X2019.005-ZONE

Regional District ofOkanagan-Similkameen
101 Martm Sb-eet
Penticton, B.C. V2A 5J9
Via E-mail: pIanning(S),rdos.bc.ca

Re: Bylaw Referral - File No. X2019.005-ZONE

Dear Christopher Garrish,

Thank you for providing the B.C. Ministry of Agriculture the opportunity to comment on the
bylaw referral X2019.005-ZONE (Home Occupation Industry & Cannabis Zoning) regarding
Bylaw No. 2849 and 2858 for the South Okanagan Electoral Areas. I have reviewed the
documentation you have provided. From an agricultural perspective I can offer the following
comments:

• Ministry staff note that as per our previous recommendation that "cannabis production,

outdoor" has been added to the definition of agriculture.

• The Strengthening Farming team has identified the definition of agriculture to be
problematic with respect to processing as it prohibits processing of farm products in the
Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR). As per Section 11(2) of the ALR Use Regulation,
processing is a permitted farm use in the ALR if at least 50% of the farm product is
produced on the agricultural land on which the farm product is produced.

• Ministry staff support Ac proposed inclusion of cannabis production as a permitted use in
the Regional District's Electoral Area General Industrial Zones.

• It appears the proposed changes with respect to cannabis are partially consistent with the
ALR Use Regulations. The proposed changes are consistent with Section 8(1) but by
banning the indoor cannabis production in the ALR (notably, the concrete bottomed
industrial style) the RDOS may have also inadvertently banned the production methods as
listed in Section 8(2) of the ALR Regulations with respect to grandfathering of existing
structures.

• The Ministry's Guide for Bylaw Development in Farming Areas provides a maximum
setback for greenhouses as 4.5m from interior side and rear lot lines and 7.5m from front
and exterior side lot lines. The proposed bylaw has a 15.0m setback to lot lines. Given
that this bylaw appears to be driven towards cannabis production these setbacks may be
overly restrictive to greenhouses used in production of other crops that may not have the

same odour concerns.

Ministry of Agriculture Sector Devetopment Branch Mailing Address: Telephone: 250 861-7201 "~ -j
Ste. 2001690 Powidc Road Web Address http://gov.bc.ca/agri/ -^ ^
KetownaBC V1X7G5 1,-A



RESPONSE SUMMARY

AMENDMENT BYLAW NOS. 2849 & 2858

D Approval Recommended for Reasons ET Interests Unaffected by Bylaw

Outlined Below

D Approval Recommended Subject to D Approval Not Recommended Due

Conditions Below to Reasons Outlined Below

Signature: I -.] C^'^-aw^ '»

Agency: ?>A) ^3

Date: A ^JA/(< X°l

Signed By: .^^ '[ft-L-TAf^

Title: ^<Wr»q-&4 [C^A^Q^^L

Bylaw Referral Sheet-X2019.005-ZONE Page 3 of 3

^•:L-
>\t



Interior Health
maSEeWk

June 18,2019

Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen

101 Martin Street
Penticton, BC, V2A 5J9

RE: File No. X2019.005-ZONE; Bylaw: 2849 & 2858

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments for consideration regarding the above referenced application.

It is our understanding that amendments are to be made to the Electoral Area Official Community Plan and Zoning

Bylaw, to allow for the production of cannabis within specific areas. We have reviewed the application with a

Healthy Communities Development and Healthy Food Systems lens. The following comments are noted and should

be given consideration regarding cannabis production facilities:

Healthy Communities Development

1. Location:

Industrial operations are expected to follow best practices for protecting the environment and public

health. Best practices, however, may not be adequate to contain all odors from the operation. As such,

proximity and impact on adjacent land uses need to be considered:

• proximity to residences and schools

• The size and configuration of the property, including access to the property

• Proposed scale of the production facility and accessory usage

• Potential noise, glare and vibration issues

• Air quality-prevailing winds, ventilation, odors

If development is NOT on a Community Drinking Water System and/or Community Waste Water Disposal (Sewer):

2. Drinking Water Supply:

The water supply system that services the facility may be subject to the approval and permitting

requirements of the BC Drinking Water Protection Act and Regulation.

3. Waste Water Disposal:

Waste water generated by these operations is not considered "domestic sewage." Domestic Sewage

wouid include washroom, food preparation, dishwashing and showering waste. Interior Health enforces

the BC Sewerage System Regulation.

Industrial Waste is managed by the Ministry of Environment, under the Environmental Waste

Management Act, Municipal Sewage Regulation.

Healthy Food System

Interior Health has an interest in protecting agricultural land for food production and increasing the capacity of
local food systems to support food security. Food security is vital to the health and well-being of a community and

is the foundation for healthy eating. Farmland preservation helps to maintain a level of food production that

Bus: 250-469-7070x12287 POPULATION HEALTH

tanva.osbome(Sinteriorhealth.ca 505 Doyle Avenue

www.interiorhealth.ca Kelowna BC V1Y OC5 i

Jv^A



Regional District ofOkanagan-Similkameen
jwe 18. 2019

Page 2 of 2

contributes to food self-sufficiency, and food self-sufficiency supports healthy eating. Food self-sufficiency in BC is

increasingly important as extreme weather will affect production in California, which is currently where 40%-50%

of EC'S supply of fruits and vegetables comes from.

The proposed amendment to bylaw No.2849 appears to support food security and has the potential to preserve

agriculture land forfuturefood production by:

• prohibiting large-scale and indoor cannabis production facilities in all zones other than industrial

• not supporting the use of lands designated Agriculture (A6) for indoor cannabis production

• prohibiting indoor cannabis production in the ALR, unless the structure has a base consisting

entirely of soil

The proposed amendment to Bylaw No. 2858 introducing "micro cannabis production facilities" as a permitted use

in AG1,AG2 and AG3 zones does not appear to support preservation of agriculture land as per the specification

that "a micro cannabis production facility shall be conducted within an enclosed building or structure". Therefore,

it appears this amendment does not support capacity for future local food production nor food security.

Considerfood security in cannabis production on Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) lands. See the Agricultural Land

Commission website for further information on regulatory requirements.

The legalization of cannabis presents both an opportunity and challenge for local governments in the development

of healthy, vibrant communities. Interior Health - Healthy Communities welcomes the opportunity to collaborate

with the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen around education and awareness efforts.

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this application. If you have any questions or concerns, please feel

free to contact me at 250-469-7070 xl2287.

Sincerely,

Tanya Osborne, BAHS

Community Health Facilitator
Healthy Communities

Interior Health Authority

Kristi Estergaard, RD

Public Health Dietitian
Healthy Communities

Interior Health Authority



Lauri Feindell

From: Judy Morris <ofid@telus.net>

Sent: June 13, 2019 1:57 PM
To: Planning
Subject: Bylaw Referral - X2019.005-ZONE - Bylaw 2849&2858

Good afternoon, the Board of Trustees have reviewed the Bylaw Referral and offer the following comments.

I/ The RDOS provide a map to the Okanagan Falls Irrigation District outlining the potential properties that could be
effected by this bylaw

2, Anyone requiring a water service/or change in existing water service be directed to our office

Thank you.

[»3 Okanagan Faiis
Irrigation District

Judy Morris
Office Administrator
OKANAGAN FALLS IRRIGATION DISTRICT
PO Box 110-1109 Willow Street
Okanagan Falls,BC
VOH 1RO
Phone: 250.497.8541
Fax: 250.497.5817

Email: oficl@telus.net
www.okanaQanfallsirriaationdistrict.ca

^



RESPONSE SUMMARY

AMENDMENT BYLAW NOS. 2849 & 2858

Approval Recommended for Reasons

Outlined Below

IniInterests Unaffected by Bylaw

D Approval Recommended Subject to D Approval Not Recommended Due
Conditions Below to Reasons Outlined Below

Signature:
)M

Agency: ^.0^ (^^Wi^ Qs^icr-

^ /, 9^^ .Date:

T^ /

Signed By;: ^L?j^r_
Title: J^^^ ^^^S^f--

Bylaw Referral Sheet-X2019.005-ZONE Page 3 of 3

^



•sSSBtESESttial

^ss&
Feedback Form
Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

SIMILKAMEEN Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca

TO:

FROM:

Regional District ofOkanagan Similkameen

Name: L^7>A <5^/

FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

(please print)

Street Address:

RE: Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858
Micro Cannabis Production Fadiities

My comments / concerns are:

n I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

[_1 I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the
comments tisted below.

I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the

Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No. 2858.

1^ ^A4\0(A ^^i-h^ k^.^ b^^ \^Mi^tL ^ ^DM^f
AA ^ ^^ ^IAU; ^^, OUL. 1<7

y^k -&r ^£a___(Dww^ii_^^^, ~sw^

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than Septembers, 2019

Protecting your peisonal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-SimiIkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to
ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of InformaU'on and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or

proprietary information you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FIPPA. Sftouid you ftsve STTfCfsasttovs afcoutthe coltectioR, use
or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Services, RODS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BCV2A5J9,250-492-0237.



^wv,,-v,.I Feedback Form
-J^D.^5

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC/ V2A-5J9

SIM'ILKAMEEN Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca

TO: Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

FROM: Name: &^QfO ^-C^A}^^ ^A^^l^^S/^

Street Address:

RE: Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No.2858

Micro Cannabia Production Facilities

My comments/ concerns are:

II I jcb support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

II I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the
comments h'sted beiow.

[3 1 do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the
Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No. 2858.

L<J>.r- ^1^ C<=>,^C&^/U6^4> t^lT/^ ^/^/-/T^ /^^^t

^^l£L-L ^>^ A ^i^ft-0 ^'/e^>LJ <^^.

!'{+0^.. ^-oss^ -Tn ^t c.-^scfc^' A/^h <3/4<4 A'CL-'RJ' /A/ PC-f^c.iE

-Tc? kPs^P Ttf-S A-^)-/^ AT ^e^n/^/MLE C-e^£'^s- T^-AA ^ (,/^-^

"T^ EfJ^)^-^ TH€r><

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than Septembers, 2019

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-SimHkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to
ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or

proprietary nrformsti'or, you provide to us feccitectsd, ased snd-disdosed in accsrdanca-wfth fiPPA. Shouldyou have snytiasstions about the cottectscn, use
or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Services, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Perrticton, BC V2A 5J9,250-492-0237.



isaasaases

•P.D^S
3 Feedback Form

Regional District ofOkanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

OKANAGAN- _ , ___ .^_ ____ ,_
SI'nTLKAMEEN Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca

TO:

FROM:

Regional District ofOkanagan Similkameen FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

Name:

Street Address:

A Z)^^xJ5^L<^

RE: Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858

Micro Cannabis PFuduetiun Facilities

My comments / concerns are:

iI I d£ support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

VK| I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws/ subject to the
comments iisted beiow.

Q I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the
Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No.2858.

/vu^^ffvn/r?-' \}A.W\^MA _ C_l
9 ^Mky^- l^/t'(-f 0(^^T (p^iiA^-^

(/dheM. )

^ ^y}\L^ IIVYU^" ^\^i^il ^i^^M^hem
OAfpl'
j^h.^v-W^r ^r^iQ^ OL^L S^^r^yv^MJL_t^
r<p c,id.6ApMfnt hhshA, €IA^A
.M^JL^WbO^^ \/^AA^Jn^f^> O^-A
^/ hAA^^i^dbn ^/[AM^UL h^ ^Ms.'fD/^o^ ^ ^

!^<A^UT<> _AJIL^to^
i^-Uv/^

~v

y Lu /^ .L^A ~^AS> A-U^ h/^/l^uM^ ^£^^A;.S ^k

Jlcu^

-%^. ^7^ ^U.^V. ^ _/.

. ff^JLO. lA^JL^'^-t^'^'^ ^ ^^-^
:eedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than September 6, 2019

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to
ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any peisonal or
propriststy mfomstion you provide to us is co!!e=tsd, used and disctesed ir, sccordancs v/ith E1PPA. Shsuld you have any questions about ths ccllection, use
or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislath/e Services, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5J9,250-492-0237.



•:)<gT.E>.i-iB,,.;h«

-moB
Feedback Form
Regional District ofOkanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

OKANAGAN-
SIMILKAMEEN Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca

TO:

FROM:

Regional District of Ok^gan Similkameen

m~) 6^
FILE NO.:

Name:

Street Address:

X2019.005-ZONE

RE: Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858

Micro Cannabis Production Facilities

My comments / concerns are:

D I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

^ I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the
comments listed below.

D I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the
Regional District Board prior.to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No. 2858.

--- Hp^^Sphp rr^Qu k ^^5> ^pr?/y)'K<St A> 7y?}cro-^^T^^
^^?^ ^h^/,^€^ :~.

^d '^5' Jfp fiu^f^/~& JYT!^ n^W.. ^/^/yA-y. ^/y^^/c^-^
cJi^j^ s^ffu^ AiP^. ^/^r-e^ ^/'•^w^^'/e-

^ / ,^/ ^ <? ^ ^ Q^/'^0^ /.-.'- ..- /^/-l^L^/^> ^

/<? (\)^IJ^^f/^ ^ ^v^ty^ C^AJL ^7^^^^^- ^/- c^-^.
^ C/ }£>{n^^l /P ^o ^^f/^^' i/"y r

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than September 6,2019

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similtomeen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to
ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) (TIPPA*). Any personal or
proprietary information you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FIPPA. Should you have any questions about the collecbon, use
or disclosure of this information please contact Manager of Legislative Services, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Pento'cton, BC V2A 5J9,250-492-0237.

"••^



( r!..-...:r"i.-Hi:;'-ir I

•PDOCj
Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

f£ALliS§^N Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: Dtannine@rdos.bc.ca

TO:

FROM:

RE:

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen FILE NO. X2019.005-ZONE

C^STft-L co^nteName:

Street Address:

Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858
Micro Cannabis Production Facilities

(please print)

My comrpents / concerns are:

KJ^ I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

1 do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the

comments listed below.

Q 1 do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the

Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No.2858.

t \K\\-^r< \f\^^ ^V'Cro rj+',^^ ip r- ^^ ^.r^j ^,(41
7^.s>^-// (j-fr?,^'(^ iiv4d^r-^- ^' 1-e^ c/-^

*.&r\ <rc?<-/Ll^-} ^ r\7ro<\ C^r^N'i^n .'"+*> er

^ r&r-<. ^

Feedback Form$ must be completed and returned to the Regional District
no later than September 6,2019

.T^Z^^WO-Tton-fcan,^^^ Okanagan-SImilkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to
^^ptn^^epjs.pwyore,^^^^^^^^
STJ,Sul^^ttorelM"^ediu^^^^^^
or disdosure of this infomatton please contaa: Manager of l^islati^^^^^^^



f i^.,'Wt-^,fST I

-^DD5
Regional District ofOkanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

S'MH'K^MiEN Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: plannme@rdos.bc.ca

TO:

FROM:

Regional District ofOkanagan Similkameen

Name: OO^TD>J -^A^SOf)

FILE NO. X2019.005-ZONE

Street Address:

RE: Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858
Micro Cannabis Production Facilities

My corprnents / concerns are:

I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the

comments listed below.

[__] I do not support the proposed textual-amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the

Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No. 2858.

-Z 8ELXEl/£ XA/DOO^ miC.R.D CULTj.\jA~rXQr^ S//^t-£> B£ .4l(.Pt/EH_2A/

L^ I yOHT^&j %R ft /\WP1fi£(? <5F ftfASo/l-5 Z-Z-S—EA SSLOU.

~~ LESS OF /)/v fy^'SOffE To THE ^OfnMi'Wiry.

- THE 5mELt CAN <B£ WORE e4'6XL^ ^OnrWLLE^

~ ,-2:r& <v?OR£ "DISCREET €0 CRTMTA(4L<; ^o/)'T S'EE ^)///<r /^'/?E- &&r^A,

- IT CAN RF /yjoRE eA^iy 5ECi/ReQ . OPPOSE^ To AN OP£-A< FJ:ELT)

At^ 2WD09R E'w.roR^/vienT s? S^STL/ ^ODTROLLG^ JA/ ^B^K-C.S ro

Te/VP^. Pvtvjx^-ry ^//a f>E£.T/7:w^ff^ CCWTRQL

~ T/ttS UQUI.S ftLLou PEOpt.f (J/Jo '&? A/OT ^/^^ /wr( i TO/J ? or OPU ,9 PS

To PRov-rpEf Snzqu SATC-// , Ato&^ Q.VftL3-T/_ PwO^UcT^

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District
no later than September 6,2019

Protecting your peisonal information is an obligation the Regional Distritt of Okanagan-SImiIkameen takes seriously. Our practtces have been designed to

ensure corapKance with the prhacy provfcions of the Freedom oflnfonnaSon and Protection cfPnvacyAct (BritBh Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any peisonal or
proprietary infoimaUon you prow'de to us is collected, used and disclosed m accordance with HPPA. Should you have any questtons about the coliectton, use
or disdosureofth's information please contact: ManagerofLegidathreSennces, KD05, VO. Martin Street, Peiitlcton, BCV2A 519,250492-0237.



Feedback Form
Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

SIM'ILKAMEEN Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca

TO:

FROM:

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen

Name: Bob Parsons

FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

(please print)

Street Address:

RE: Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858
Micro Cannabis Production Facilities

My comments / concerns are:

D
D

I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the
comments listed below.

I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the
Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No.2858.

1 .Inadequate Setbacks. In fact those don't appear to be written in the Draft legislation. Other communities

have adopted a 60 metre setback to residential properties.

2. No protection of surrounding neighbours on residential land from odour, lights, noise is written into the By-law

although it is written into the Home Occupation By-law.

3.Security has not been addressed in the By-law.

4. Highly volatile chemicals are used in the processing. Have the RDOS Board considered the implications

of this in terms of a high risk fire area.

5. Public consulation. This is important legislation. Other communities have sent feedback forms to each household

These forms could go out with other infromation which RDOS mails regularly about garbage, Bears etc.

Take the time to get this legislation right from the outset!

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than September 6, 2019

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to

ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Inforination and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or
proprietary information you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FIPPA. Should you have any questions about the collection, use

or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Services, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5J9, 250-492-0237.

Ar
^



I Feedback Form™-l«l[.™1.1(.-ffi][.Ti
fwvwyvi'^/'w^"v,yy-"r;

•R'Ji^.t^'i,^'''
' UF,j3Ji:-<f)^-.J^S-
^^m^ Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen

101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

SIMILKAMEEN Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca

TO: Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

FROM: Name: Libby Parsons

(please print)

Street Address:

RE: Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No.2858
Micro Cannabis Production Facilities

My comments / concerns are:

]] I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

[~~\ I dp support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws/ subject to the

comments listed below.

I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the

Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No. 2858.

1.Inadequate Setbacks. In fact those don't appear to be written in the Draft legislation. Other communities

have adopted a 60 metre setback to residential properties.

2. No protection of surrounding neighbours on residential land from odour, lights, noise is written into the By-law

although it is written into the Home Occupation By-law.

S.Security has not been addressed in the By-law.

4. Highly volatile chemicals are used in the processing. Have the RDOS Board considered the implications

of this in terms of a high risk fire area.

5. Public consulation. This is important legislation. Other communities have sent feedback forms to each household

These forms could go out with other infromation which RDOS mails regularly about garbage, Bears etc.

Take the time to get this legislation right from the outset!

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than September 6,2019

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to
ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or
proprietary information you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FIPPA. Should you have any questions about the collection, use

or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Sen/ices, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5J9, 250-492-0237.

\^

^



•m'Win'iiaiiiiai

•J^D^S
S Feedback Form

:"i 'v-i Jwl V i!"
1 ^SU "Hrf^ A*»t - ^' h<m

:'?^:O-P' '"'istric:

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen . isa; :T 8tree
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9 -^r'Tic.:^ ?,C •2A c^;0

flKH^S^N Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: Dlannine@rdos.bc.ca

TO: Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

FROM: Name: J. a, Mr. Michael Colon

(please print)

Street Address:

RE: Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No.2858

Micro Cannabis Production Facilities

My comments / concerns are:

n I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

n I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the

comments listed below.

I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the

Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No.2858.

^'CL4A.CLbLo fn^5-<Lu<-cX<-0-t^J n/LLL^ILX C-IAJ^< OC-C^^A. cn\- i^i/LcLu^

L£LXL/U^XcA/ri ( dL^-dbd^sA \ NJoT —L^- A^^XjcLL^CCLsU^

-^.e^kbo-u^J/v.&-acL'S' . M^ k<^ju^ --^LG.&-O '^xs-o A(L^

i^ Q-^UJL COL^tcJxLo I^^S^Lu-CCtLO^ '~+twAjZ- ^CA

•tetaJ^^ u-^A^LCjp.ntaJb^-, •

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than September 6, 2019

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to

ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or ^/;

proprietary information you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with F1PPA. Should you have any questions about the collection, use ^. -^)

or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Services, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5J9,250-492-0237.

J



September 5, 2019

Members of RODS,

I cannot and will not support any amendment to this bylaw that does not include wording to protect

neighbors from harmful and unwanted light, noise, and odours.

On your draft amendment for bylaw 2848 under section 7.18.7 you use the wording "No nuisance from

noise, vibration, smoke, dust, odours, heat, glare, disturbance, shall be produced by the home industry,

and, at all times, the privacy and enjoyment of adjacent dwellings shall be preserved and the home

industry shall not adversely affect the character of the area." It is disturbing and irresponsible for you to

not have similar protections for neighbours of potential cannabis micro grow ops listed within bylaw

2858.

There is some opportunity to restrict Cannabis production, even on ALR land, as evidenced in the

attached ALR Bulletin (May 2019 revision). With small parcels ofALR land scattered throughout the

Okanagan Similkameen it is incumbent upon RDOS to look for every opportunity to prohibit Cannabis

production in residential neighborhoods and where they cannot do this then they must protect all
residents and wildlife from the negative impact any Cannabis production will have on all of us by

enacting rigorous bylaw protections.

Sincere thanks for your consideration of the above,



Mark & Angela Verigin

August 20,2019

To Whom it May Concern,

We are writing in regard to the bylaw regarding Home Industry/Occupation & Cannabis Production
in Naramata, BC. We would like to have our opinion heard on this matter as we are the owners of a property at

|in Naramata

With this writing, we hereby advise that we oppose the construction and operation of cannabis production

facitities/greenhouses in any residential neighborhood, regardless of the size or zoning of these properties.

That said, should RDOS permit the construction of some micro cannabis facilities within residential
neighborhoods we feel that the bylaw MUST be strictly regulated and monitored to ensure that neighboring
properties are protected from the potentially damaging effects of this industry. These concerns include but are
not limited to the following:

• Regulations surrounding safety and trespassing as these facilities are often targeted by criminals

and/or criminal behavior

• Regulations to protect from fire risk-especially from butane which isa common source of fuel used

for these facilities.

• Regulations to eliminate noise, smell and pollution from diesel generators that are a common power

source for this type of facility

• Regulations to eliminate the impact that light pollution from the greenhouse will have on the
quality of life of nearby residents, local wildlife, especially nocturnal wildlife, and the
environment in general.

• Regulations to eliminate the smell and odorous emissions given off as a biproduct of cannabis

production.

• Regulations to ensure air "freshening" products are not used as the solution to address the

smell and odorous emissions ofcannabis production facilities.

• Regulations against noisy air scrubbers which can be used to try and mitigate the odour

resulting from cannabis production facilities.

If cannabis facilities are approved in residential neighborhoods, they could have a significantly negative impact

to the surrounding properties. The approval of such facilities may create safety concerns such as air pollution

and increased green house gases, toxic exhaust from diesel generators, potential fire hazards, and the lure of

criminals and criminal behaviour. RDOS must ensure that these facilities do not create unwanted light pollution,

odour and noise that will adversely affect humans, the environment and other the creatures that inhabit

Naramata.

Thank-you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Mark & Angela Verigin

>\:



From:

To:

CC:

Subject:

Date:

Stefanie Sale
Planning

StefanieJSale

Rle No: X2019.005-Zone
September 6, 2019 2:03:54 PM

Re: Feedback regarding the proposed Zoning Amendments on Cannabis Micro
Production Facilities in Naramata.

Given that the federal government allows for cannabis production, and assuming
as a result, that the RDOS cannot prevent cannabis production in Area "E", I am
in strongly in favour of amending the RDOS bylaws so as to provide clear
parameters for cannabis production in Area "E", subject to the comments listed
below:

A. I do not see any language addressing:

1. odour/air quality
2. light pollution
3. affluent pollutants

There have been many complaints and concerns voiced by
residents/communities in other jurisdictions regarding the above.

B. New research has documented various environmental concerns with
cannabis production that the RDOS should consider:
(www.sciencedaily.com/refeases/2017/02/170221081736.htm; https://daily.jstor.org/the-
environmental-downside-of-cannabis-cultivation/)

For example:

1. cannabis plants are 'water-hungry'; they need double the water required by
grapevines.
2. cannabis facilities require excessive energy to run:
"Controlling the indoor growing environment requires considerable energy with
power requirements estimated to be similar to that of Google's massive data
centers": www.sciencedai1y.com/releases/2017/02/170221081736.litmT would suggest

the minimum setback distance be 200 meters or more.

C. I would like to see the amended bylaws
include a minimum distance between any cannabis production and residential

homes. I would suggest that the minimum distance be 200 meters.

D. I was concerned to see the request for feedback occur over such a short
timeframe (August 21 - Sept. 6);during a busy holiday/retum to school time for
many residents, and; that the request was not sent out to every mailbox as is
often the case with messages from the RDOS. This is an important issue which
has been raising significant concern over the past few months.

Sincerely,

'-^-

^y



INFORMATION BULLETIN 04

CANNAB1S PRODUCTION IN THE ALR

Revised: May 8,2019
Issued: August 15, 2018

1. SCOPE OF THIS INFORMATION BULLETIN

This information bulletin provides guidance to assist in interpreting the Agricultural Land
Commission Act, S.B.C. 2002, c. 36 (ALCA) and regulations in relation to cannabis production
in the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR). The ALCA and regulations will govern if inconsistent
with this bulletin.

This information bulletin is directed only to interpretation of the ALCA and regulations.
Compliance with the ALCA and regulations in relation to cannabis does not relieve persons from
the need to comply with all other applicable laws, regulations and bylaws at the federal,
provincial and local government levels.

2. RECENT CHANGES TO STATUTE AND REGULATIONS

Effective February 22, 2019, the ALCA and the Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdivision and
Procedure Regulation (now the ALR General Regulation) were amended and the Agricultural
Land Reserve Use Regulation (the ALR Use Regulation) was created. Though many concepts
contained in the ALCA and regulations remain unchanged, there have been changes related to
the use of ALR land for cannabis production. All references in this information bulletin to the
ALCA and regulations are as of February 22, 2019, unless otherwise stated.

3. WHETHER CANNABIS PRODUCTION IS A FARM USE

In the past, certain forms of cannabis production, but not others, had been "designated" as farm
use by regulation. This was the practice followed when s. 2(2.5) of the former regulation was
introduced in July 2018. The fact that certain production required "designation" to be a farm use
suggested that non-designated forms of cannabis production:

° were not a farm use;and

° as such, could only be engaged in if the Agricultural Land Commission (the
Commission) approved a non-farm use application specific to that use.

On February 22, 2019, s. 2(2.5) of the former regulation was repealed and the ALR Use
Regulation was created. The ALR Use Regulation addresses cannabis production in s. 8, in a
part of the ALR Use Regulation that is entitled "Farm Uses", and no longer "designates" a

^ I/



subset of cannabis production as farm use. This regulatory change clarifies that all forms of
cannabis production are a "farm use".

Because all forms of cannabis production are a "farm use", cannabis production in the ALR
does not contravene the ALCA even if engaged in without the Commission's approval.

However:

o the ALR Use Regulation specifically allows local governments to prohibit cannabis
production in certain forms (see section A of this bulletin); AND

o certain other activities associated with cannabis production, such as fill placement or soil
removal, may still require proponents to engage with the Commission (see section B of
this bulletin).

A. Local Government Aufhori'tv To Prohibit

Local governments play a significant role in determining what kind of cannabis
production occurs in their community.

Local governments may regulate or prohibit certain kinds ofcannabis production, though
may not prohibit all forms of cannabis production.

Section 8 of the ALR Use Regulation provides:

(1) The use of agricultural land for producing cannabis lawfully may not be
prohibited as described in section 4 if the cannabis is produced

(a) outdoors in a field, or

(b) inside a structure that, subject to subsection (2), has a base
consisting entirely of soil.

(2) The use of agricultural land for producing cannabis lawfully may not be
prohibited as described in section 4 if the cannabis is produced inside a
structure that meets both of the following conditions:

(a) the structure was, before July 13, 2018,

(i) . constructed for the purpose of growing crops inside
it, including but not limited to producing cannabis lawfully,
or

(ii) under construction for the purpose referred to in
subparagraph (i), if that construction

(A) was being conducted in accordance with all
applicable authorizations and enactments, and

Page 2 of 4



(B) continues without interruption from the date it
began until the date the structure is completed,
other than work stoppages considered
reasonable in the building industry;

(b) the structure has not been altered since July 13, 2018 to increase
the size of its base or to change the material used as its base.

Section 4 of the ALR Use Regulation provides:

The farm uses referred to in this Part [which includes s. 8] may not be
prohibited

(a) by a local government enactment except a bylaw under section
552 [farming area bylaws] of the Local Government Act, or

(b) by a first nation government law, if the activity is conducted on
settlement lands.

B. Placina Fill In, And Removinq Soil From, The ALR

There are strict rules regarding placement of fill in the ALR and removal of soil from the
ALR, even when necessary for a farm use, unless limited exceptions are met.

Q. Do the rules on placement of fill in the ALR and removal of soil from
the ALR apply to the construction of structures intended to be used
for the production of cannabis?

A. Yes. These rules are found in ss. 35-36 of the ALR Use Regulation
and apply generally, to the construction of structures for the
production ofcannabis, subject only to the limited exceptions
summarized below.

Typically even where the fill placement or soil removal is for cannabis production,
successful completion of a notice of intent and/or use application process is required
before the activity can proceed. This is so unless aN of the following conditions are met:

° the fill placement or soil removal are for the purpose of constructing a structure for
farm use; AND

° the total area from which the soil is removed or on which fill is placed is 1,000 m or
less; AND

° if the area from which the soil is removed or on which the fill is placed is in a
floodplain, the resulting elevation level is consistent with the minimum elevation level
established under all applicable local government enactments and first nation
government laws, if any, respecting flood protection in the floodplain; AND

» the fill is not, and does not contain, construction or demolition waste (including
masonry rubble, concrete, cement, rebar, drywall and wood waste), asphalt, glass,

Page 3 of 4 •'.^/

^.-^



synthetic polymers, treated wood, or unchipped lumber, as none of these may be
used as fill in the ALR: ALR Use Regulation, ss. 35-36.

See the Commission's Information Bulletin #7 - Soil or Fill Use in the ALR for more
information.

4. CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION OF STRUCTURES
NECESSARY FOR FARM USE

Subject to any limits and conditions set out in Part 2 of the ALR Use Regulation, the use of land
in the ALR to construct, maintain or operate a structure (including a greenhouse), driveway or
utility that is necessary for a farm use is designated as a farm use: ALR Use Regulation, s. 5. A
designated farm use may be undertaken without making a use application to the Commission.

Q. What does "subject to any limits and conditions set out in Part 2 of
the ALR Use Regulation" mean for the construction of structures
intended to be used for cannabis production?

A. The construction of structures for cannabis production are limited by
the specific limitations for cannabis production set out at s. 8 of the
ALR Use Regulation.

In determining whether an activity is "necessary" for a farm use, consideration must be given to
whether the nature and size of the activity is proportionate to the farm use. If a landowner claims
that an activity is "necessary" for a farm use that has not yet commenced, issues may arise in
respect of whether the proposed use is in fact going to occur, and whether the nature and size
of activity characterized as "necessary" will in fact be necessary to that use.

5. STORING, PACKING, PREPARING AND PROCESSING FARfVi PRODUCTS

The ALR Use Regulation refers to certain other activities potentially related to cannabis that
local governments may not prohibit, but may regulate, as described in s. 4 of the ALR Use
Regulation, such as certain storing, packing, preparing and processing uses set out in s. 11.

The use of land in the ALR for storing, packing, preparing and processing farm products is
designated as a farm use, and as such may be undertaken without application to the
Commission, if at least 50% of the farm product is (a) produced either on that agricultural land
or by an association (as that term is used in the Cooperative Association Act) to which the
owner of the agricultural land belongs, or (b) feed required for farm use on that agricultural land:

ALR Use Regulation, s. 11(2).

Page 4 of 4



REGIONAL DISTRICT Feedback Form
Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

SIMTbKAMEEN Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: Dlannine@)rdos.bc.ca

TO:

FROM:

RE:

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen

L.MARKVERIGIN
Name:

FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

Street Address:

Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858
Micro Cannabis Production Facilities

My comments / concerns are:

II I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

II I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the
comments listed below.

[XJ I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the
Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No. 2858.

I cannot support these bylaws without attention to the items listed in the attached letter.

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than September 6,2019

Protecting your personal information Is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to
ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or
proprietary Information you provide to us Is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FIPPA. Should you have any questions about the collection, use
or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Sen/ices, RD05,101 Martin Street, Penticton, BCV2A5J9,250-492-0237.

/'-'Y



September 6,2019

Attention: Members of the RDOS

I do not support the proposed textual amendments to Bylaw No. 2858 as they are currently written.

Bylaw No. 2858 has not addressed any of the issues that have been brought to the attention of the

RDOS by concerned neighbors and the residents of Naramata, namely:

o Odours, light pollution and noise emitted from the facility operation

o Security and/or crime prevention measures

o Limitations/restrictions/safety measures relating to fuels used to power the facility

As currently written. Bylaw No. 2858 contains no meaningful and/or measurable guidelines governing

the operation of this facility nor are there any mechanisms in place that can be utilized to reduce and/or

mitigate nuisance concerns relating to cannabis production facilities.

Bylaw No. 2858 is precedent setting. With essentially zero guidelines governing the actual operation of

the proposed facility, and no mechanisms in place to hold facility owners accountable, how does the

RDOS intend to mitigate not only the concerns raised previously and highlighted above, but also the

potential for new issues going forward?

Thank you for considering the above commentary and feedback.



Lauri Feindell

From: elizabeth rushton

Sent: September 6, 201<

To: Planning
Cc: Matthew Stephenson

Subject: Draft zoning amendment byelaw no.2849

RE: FUe No: X2019.005-Zone. Canaabis Micro Production Facilities

We have been unable to add any text to the feedback form so please consider this our official feedback form.

We are not in favour of the amendments allowing a micro cannabis production plant in area E as we do not see

any impact assessment report that would address concerns re odour, excessive water requirements and airborne
pollutants or water/soil contamination, nor is there anything in the byelaw amendment to ensure safety around

air and water issues. There have been concerns re these issues raised m scientific journals.
eg httDS://www.sciencedailv.com/releases/2017/02/170221081736-htm.

In an area that suffers from regular water restrictions, any responsible planner should consider the impact on
the current water supply as we understand that cannabis cultivation and production requires high water usage, at
least double that of grapes for example.

We also would note that the main and significant attraction in the area is the vineyards and associated wineries.

It is a unique characteristic of the region, akin to heritage stahis. IfRDOS allows this to be replaced
by processing plants, micro or not, this will destroy that characteristic and the revenue it brings to the whole

area. We would suggest that manufach.iring is not appropriate in this region.

Finally, we note that communities with micro production facilities have made a number of complaints re the

strong and unpleasant odour emitting from these industrial sites. Although the minimum size of the land and
maximum size of the facility seems appropriate (if the above concerns have been addressed) we are concerned
that no byelaw has been made for setbacks from residential properties which seems an oversight by
RDOS. We would suggest a setback of at least 200 metres to mitigate the issue of odour to nearby properties.

yours faithfully

Elizabeth Rushton

^~
^



n.wini'.pi'iraiiiiin

^^>g
i Feedback Form

Regional District ofOkanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

OKANAGAN-
SIM1LKAMEEN Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: plannine@rdos.bc.ca

TO: Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

FROM: Name: ^f^S- ^.-S/^^Ay

Street Address:

RE: Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No.2858
Micro Cannabis Production Facilities

My comments / concerns are:

I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

n I do support the proposed textual amendments to-the zoning bylaws, subject to the

comments listed below.

I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the

Regional District Board prior to 1st read ing of Amendment Bylaw No.2858.

/ ifisu/d lik -h> <^^ iv^^ re^a^je>-is uT^- W^ra^
4-R. /%5-^<yy///q-^ /5>-/n<^^- i/<;o^L'^<3^ ^A^ ^^S'yJ^^Cr .

/71/iz<~/>u^ ^-r'^'-'z-^ ^•Asrz^s/ ^><a t/ ^d.-hsAr'^' /^/7t^

.^^>^^ a-F ^~T) ^.^-r^-^s •

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than September 6, 2019

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to
ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or
proprietary information you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FIPPA. Should you have any questions about the collection, use
or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Services, RDOS, 101 Manin Street, Penticton, BCV2A5J9,250-492-0237. [/

•\^f
_\



"'""'""TWI Feedback Form
Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

SIMILKAMEEN Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: planninB@rdos.bc.ca

TO:

FROM:

RE:

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

LffYvub 1?n^i^ / k^.(^^ Q^
(please ^rint) Yj^

Name:

Street Address:

Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858

Micro Cannabis Production Facilities

My comments / concerns are:

]I I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the

comments listed below.

(^ I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

:,.€S^BIsSSSIi^
written

/^]^ /^/) /n^^' A)M^2^L/U^~ '-^ff ^1^7C^t^?C^<J^ Z^^6<2^L
^01-^^C^-^~^- ^/i^^-^/r-^ ^^ '^QA^U^-^^eL^ ,ya^2^^Z^4^-^^

^^^jL^r^^/? t/ A^^/.rfc:
Q C^.^^^ ^'^f^. ^-^ y^y/^ y^^/X^^^^^A^^.^/^^
/^ ^^e.^~"J ~ ~ '"""/."^'"^ '""'"""^ i/.

^2£3S^c:-o^.

.AM;^-'
^ ^^^^^^ ^^/7 y^yV^ ^Tr^^^-'^L^^L^

^L. /r^^ n //jS^r^y^r^ryyLji-^t^ ^r^^ ^^^KL^=^£-

^^G^^^.^jC ^y/^/f/^ ^^^3/ ^> ^^j^^i> ^/^/A^9^.
^j^^ ^^/-/ ^^/^•y'^L/^. /?^&^<^^y-z;^-^<^ ^

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than September 6, 2019

fiV&K-)

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Simllkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to

ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or
proprietary informatian you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accontonce with FIPPA. Shoukl you have any questions about the collection, use

or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of tegldative Senfees, RDOS. 101 »4artin Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5J9,250-492-0237.

<ŵ



n(

'?
^ ^" .^ ^s ^ Nl^ ^

^ ^
? ^ ^

^ ^
^J-lMr^ ^r ^'" _ . 's. nJ '\

.^ ^' \^

^H^
'^.

^

'^A

^ ^
^

^ ^
^̂^
s^-

i^ ^ s? ;?
HH €.
^.;€ ^

is:
^

^ ^ ^
•^

^
^
^.

-<

>• ^ ^ ^
^ ^ ^ ^IT^ -n

i ^ ^ s^JS



cssEEsaaesiSM Feedback Form
|:@!l§)tj
! .^^vvvy^^t Regional District ofOkanagan Similkameen
J.,/..,./. . !, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

*

SI'MILKAMEEN Tek 250-492-0237 / Email: planning@rclos.bc.ca

TO: Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

FROM: Name: //< ^0 ^J H [LL f 6-^HU

Street Address:

RE: Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2849 ^ 2- •

Update of Home Occupatiqn/lndustry Regulations and Cannabis Production Facilities
4- /^c.^vo Gwv^i^ir /J^c^^f^. /S/^/^y-^-

My comments / concerns are:

[_] I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

jj I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the

comments listed below.

I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

- ^ ^W/.^iy-G- T^-e- /via^ifttcii^. /^7^5^2-e- .f^e%-/^-^e- '9/^/•<c/<s^^~-^

C^'bff^C^ -fy-l ©%< ^T-e-^ t '<^j^. ^/w/ iQfiQ/^^1 ^/-^S S^i ert^^. ^-^- ^-1

/.<^_s/-_^o ^-c^c^s r •T^-^-G ^^l^ iz^_ ^>©^-^-/^Sc<>/ ^<. 7^a- ^y/^j

ft^'^T'^J /' {~l!^ •S— O^Q-ii^ ^//Li.7(Q^\ . c^-c^ yi^[s'-a- ^7^7S,' ,0 ^^,

-7^i<- -f-^c.U.\. fr-^S _(./io^.fJ^ /^/^o '0^2- ^LB^i^i^e-J^ -^5 ^cuj-<- ^-t/ ^

^&*» Y^iTS-t-^ <SX/<&<^E-^C €V^/;:<^<^-<' Wi7^ ^^-C^>i c^/(-^ ^iC^<i'-^li(S2__C ,
7' ' " r

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than September 6, 2019

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to
ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British ColumbiaJ ("RPPA"). Any personal or
proprietary information you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FtPPA. Should you have any questions about the collection, use
or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Services, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5J9,250-492-0237.

/•-..V



REGIONAL DISTRICT
-VSrSt^ssswiiSltanytaI^IRiS

Feedback Form
Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

SIMILKAMEEN Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: planninK@rdos.bc.ca

TO:

FROM:

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen FILE NO.:

Janie Crm.geVi & Dave Watson.

X2019.005-ZONE

Name:

Street Address:

(please print)

RE: Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858

Micro Cannabis Production Facilities

My comments / concerns are:

D I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the
comments listed below.

I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the

Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No. 2858.
I haVe r^dt (:drt<:6rn aboUt th6 inipddt dll d ^i<l6tttiAl H.&i^hbau.fh^d. A.ye.id. that ifALR. thfi la.nd. shi)tdd usid. bs fw

productive use - however cannabis production is indoor not outdoor (armineand more akin to manufacturing'

production than agriculture as envissiged. when the ALR was created. I feel there k neeil for the bylaw changes to move

with the times and protect the interests of residents in the light of a. shift in type of agriculture.

My sp&clhi £i>Hcern> sve.
T^x-4-i *» /•/» • j-* ^/»*-t*-^ /'L- ^**/a«** —/U-* /4^»i-<-*«^ I ><•*/» *^/»i•pFtfpl I ->*//•*.>U tltt/^ <-t>/-«l».Tt>*- ;*-£^/tltl/< tu* -»+_l^-ac*L'?dn

b) Odour - this should be continuattv monitored and. reported. not wst set at construction or checked, annuallv

c) One of the touristtc appeals ofNaramata t$ its rural quality and. the (act visitors can see the stars without light

pollution. Nor should homeowners be subjected to intrusive light throughout the ni^hfc

d) Noise - we know (rom living close to a winery that cooling and other mechanical noise can be Z4 hours. »otfi this

—"•'—-'-" *-^ >••-<- (/ **-.*—. ,...•*-,>. >/^ .^-^-*. „»/ >»/.. »~-r^.

e) 1?i.<Ic of explosion with residential property damaye and ftre on an already tinder-dry hill<;i<ie in summer montlis.

It is again disippointingthat as with Kettle Rid^-e and Outlook Development impacts on the community, the ROOS has

'ith its tax payers and citizens.. We plect.and emplov V<»u and we exp.ect more consultation.
Feedback ForfnS'must be completed and return'ed<t6 the Regiondl District

no later than September 6, 2019

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to
ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or

proprietary information you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FIPPA. Should you have any questions about the collection, use
or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Services, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5J9, 250-492-0237.



Lauri Feindell

From: Stefanie Gale |
Sent: September 6, 2019 2:04 PM
To: Planning

Cc: Stefanie Gale

Subject: File No: X2019.005-Zone

Re: Feedback regarding the proposed Zoning Amendments on Cannabis Micro
Production Facilities in Naramata.

Given that the federal government allows for cannabis production, and assuming as a
result, that the RDOS cannot prevent cannabis production in Area "E", I am in strongly
in favour of amending the RDOS bylaws so as to provide clear parameters for cannabis
production in Area "E", subject to the comments listed below:

A. I do not see any language addressing:

1. odour/air quality
2. light pollution
3. effluent pollutants

There have been many complaints and concerns voiced by residents/communities in
other jurisdictions regarding the above.

B. New research has documented various environmental concerns with cannabis
production that the RDOS should consider:
(www.sciencedailv.com/reteases/2017/02/170221081736.htm: httDS://dailv.istor.ora/the-
environmental-downside-of-cannabis-cuitivation/)

For example:

1. cannabis plants are 'water-hungry'; they need double the water required by
grapevines.
2. cannabis facilities require excessive energy to run:
"Controlling the indoor growing environment requires considerable energy with power
requirements estimated to be similar to that of Googte's massive data
centers": www.sciencedailv.com/releases/2017/02/170221081736.html would suggest the

minimum setback distance be 200 meters or more.

C. I would like to see the amended bylaws
include a minimum distance between any cannabis production and residential homes. I

would suggest that the minimum distance be 200 meters.

D. I was concerned to see the request for feedback occur over such a short timeframe
(August 21 - Sept. 6);during a busy holiday/return to school time for many residents,
and; that the request was not sent out to every mailbox as is often the case with
messages from the RDOS. This is an important issue which has been raising
significant concern over the past few months.

Sincerely,
1 ^

.^. >-



Lauri Feindell

From:
Sent:

To:

Subject:

Renee Chamberlandl
September 5, 2019 7:35 PM
Planning
FileNo:X2019.005-Zone

To whom it may concern,

Following the public information meeting here is our feedback regarding the proposed Zoning Amendments on

Cajtmabis Micro Production Facilities in Naramata.

I am in favour of amending the bylaws to limit the size/location of new Cannabis 'plantations". However I am

asking you to make sure to protect the quality environment (air, noise, smell, etc.) of our prestme region which

makes money with wine production.

If being FireSmart is a real concern, Cannabis plaxitations add numerous risks to oiu- already vulnerable

environment. Ref.: article in February 2015 of the Fire Engeeniring magazine.

Do we want our area to be known for its Cannabis plantations (instead of its fiuits and wine busmess)in 5/10
years from now?

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to provide you some feedbacks.

Renee Chamberiand

w-^^

^



Lauri Feindell

From: Roger Mutimer

Sent: September 6, 2019 10:34 PM
To: Planning
Subject: Draft Zoning Amendment ByLaw #2858 - Microcannabis Production Facilities

Arleigh Andersqn_and Roger Mutimer

We DO NOT support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws

While we appreciate that the RDOS has to act expeditiously following the legalization ofcannabis in Canada
and that its powers are limited given the policies of Health Canada and the Agricultural Land Commission, we

do not believe that the Bylaws as laid out for Electoral Area E are appropriate given the extraordinary
circumstances that exist in the Arawana/Debeck/Juniper area ofNaramata.

We are one of the 19 residences that directly border the proposed plant at 2860 Arawana Road. Our concerns

centre around setbacks from boundaries with other properties and the allowable size of the size of the
processing facilities. Our view is that they should be 60 metres and 200 square metres respectively.

Given the concerns raised at the public meeting in Naramata and the subsequent feedback you have received,
our hope uis that you will reconsider the proposed bylaw and reopen the amendment process.

Kindest regards,

Arleigh Anderson and Roger Mutimer

w"Aj



IS91sSSSSIS313^EB^t

^)£}S)B.
Feedback Form
Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

OKANAGAN'
SIMILKAMEEN ^el: 250-492-0237 / Email: Dtanning@rdos.bc.ca

TO:

FROM:

RE:

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen

Name:

FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

g/?^/D4 \^0~WsJc - ])OUJL c\ LbSCH^
^ (please print) u

Street Address:

Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858
Micro Cannabis Production Facilities

My comments / concerns are:

n I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

II I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the
comments listed below.

I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the
Regional District Board^prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No-2858.

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than September 6,2019

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to
ensure compliance with the privacy provisioru of the Freedom oflnformaSon and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"}. Any personal or
proprietary information you prcnride to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FIPPA. Should you have any questions about the collection, use
or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Services, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Pentirton, BC V2A 5J9.250-492-0237.

''"^

^
J



0
RE610HAL DISTRICT

rnsQ^-
Feedback Form Q6
Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Pentidon, BC/ V2A-5J9

•^

SIM'ILKAMEEN Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: Dlanning(a)rdos.bc.ca

TO:

FROM:

RE:

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen

J^9^ ^V^
FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

Name:

Street Address:

Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858

Micro Cannabis Production Facilities

My comments / concerns are:

I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

II I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the

comments listed below.

I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the

Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No. 2858.

WCESVED
^eaiona; District

iiUi;

c.'i ".lanir. .^xreet;

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional Disl(jgt p g^ \/g^ gjg
no later than September 6,2019

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to
ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or

proprietary information you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FIPPA. Should you have any questions about the collection, use

or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Services, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5J9, 250-492-0237.

^



BEOIOHAL OISTEBCT

•^ D 05
Feedback Form
Regional District ofOkanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

SI'MILKAMEEN Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca

TO:

FROM:

RE:

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

Name: N "ichblas T^^FML 6r2t.mi4A&r

Street Address:

Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858
Micro Cannabis Production Faciittres

My comments / concerns are:

n I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

II 1 do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the

^
comTnents listed below.

I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the

Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No. 2858.

^~e.^ nL^rpLr^^ U i^V)e>ia^ +- f>e/^. br^iM M^^Lchm (re ^

H£CEIVED
Regional District

oi Martin Street
-enticton BC V2A5^S

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than September 6, 2019

Protecting your persona] information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to

ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or
proprietary information you provide to us is coiiected, used anc! dscicsed m accordar.cs v.ith OPPA. Shaiid you have any questions about the •cdtectron, use

or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Services, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A5J9,250-492-0237.

-^r



!
Mic.he>lAS ^/ber^ &zimm^</"^ti-Achi^<?/ri~

RDOS Feedback Form -Zoning Amendment Bylaw No.2858,

Micro Cannabis Production Facilities

We do not support the proposed textual amendments to the

zoning bylaws.

Written Submission

In broad terms we are opposed to the proposed textual

amendments because they are inadequate and not nearly as

stringent as they should be given the gravity of the Josey

application and the negative impact it is likely to have on our
neighbourhood and community. We are entering uncharted

waters and the proposed bylaw amendments do not take into

account the complexity and long-term impact of the Josey

application.

In more specific terms:

- There is little protection for neighbours.

- More substantial setbacks are required (far more than 15

meters) given the serious problems with odours and bright

lights (already experienced in other jurisdictions.) More
research needs to be done to better establish proper and

effective setbacks.

- 2-4 hectare requirements are not adequate to protect our

neighbourhood. The minimum requirement should be at

^••^



^

least 5 hectares which many other jurisdictions have

adopted.

The other weakness of the amendment is that it the RDOS

amendment has increased the 200 square meter

maximum of the production facility to 400 square meters.

Where is the empirical data that supports and allows such

an expansion? One would think that given that the RDOS

is entering the uncharted waters of micro processing

cannabis production, it would err on the side of caution to

better protect the community and strengthen its

regulatory effectiveness, especially in the event of yet

unforeseen problems associated with the Josey application

and others like it.

The Federal Government's "Municipal Guide to Cannabis

Legislation - A Roadmap for Local Governments" highlights

some of my concerns when it notes:

As focal governments anticipate an increase in nuisance complaints with legalized cannabis, odour
/ssues rank among their top concerns—and these are notoriously difficult to regulate and
remediate. Because odours are hard to quantify objectively in terms of strength or character, setting
regulatory standards is challenging. While some odour testing labs exist in Canada, their usefulness
for regulatory purposes is questionable, and testing can be onerous and expensive. Even if
and when the quantification of odour can be satisfactorily addressed, an odour's source can be
challenging to prove to the standard needed in court. Proactive approaches to cannabis-related
odour and nuisance abatement are therefore preferable.
For example, odour impact assessments and control plans might be included in
requirements for rezoning applications or development approvals in circumstances
where these are authorized and warranted. Zoning setbacks, landscaping, buffer or
similar requirements may be considered for certain types of facilities that are
anticipated to cause odour or other nuisances. This is in addition to the basic
locational criteria that have traditionally restricted problem activities to their own special
zones. Municipalities may also want to set business
licence conditions that could reduce nuisance concerns around cannabis production
and retail facilities.

"^



We live in a quiet residential neighbourhood that is highly

prized for its serenity and beauty. Should Mr. Jose/s

production facility be allowed to go ahead it will mean a

significant reduction in our property values upon which we

depend.

I believe the RDOS is capable and obligated to do a better job of

strengthening its bylaws to safeguard the integrity of our

community and others like it.

Thank you.

^y1^



REGIONAL Dtsracr

•J^D^S
Feedback Form
Regional District ofQkanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

OKANAGAN-
SIM'ILKAMEEN Te!: 250-492-0237 / Email: planning(5)rdos.bc.ca

TO:

FROM:

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen FILE NO.: X2019.T305-ZONE

Name: C^^^- ^W^/^^tT 2) / 07-

(please print

RE:

Street Address:

Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858
Micro Cannabis Productron Farii'hies

DECEIVED
=?sgiona; District

Ip ", •'.' "ll

.-..."J .;U ilJ';

o'' .vssrtin Street

^entiaonBC V2A5JSMy comments / concerns are:

n I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

D I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the

comments listed below.

I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the

Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No. 2858.

^7_ J^-,ci^iy?a^f j^^s^yJ fi/ia£<2^ ,7 dr/' /7i^<^u/}/U c

V-»^(/ /l<S<^t^<Syy^f^^f.^ ^^^^7 ^^.^^-^^J&t^3-7:Z^ j/s^^^c^^^VK/^^

/ ^CYl/^'^/ ^"^7 /t^'^'^'^77^1/ ^Ss^?<
^ ^

'CK^

7
't-^y <3^^'^ty ^^^/ ^^&^^,^ ^/^7.^-6^'Q^if6^ ^Z^-y-Z?^^ _-^^/^^---<^4^^^^'=9?<?/

»^ ^Z^lY'/s/^-n^&'^f i^Lfifu' . ^y^y7/v/^ /^^ ^>?A-- ^^>j^' >/2^ iSJ^i'^'^ ^fs^ ^i^v-i^f^^ _^^s^3-n-

^('IA^'^'Z-|'%S<^«'?IZ ^'^^i^^t^'v ^i^> /en/~^i/ /-%^?^<<_^s^.^7^6 ^^^'. ^/-?>^-^-i^-'-^-^
-^L^T^y^c-^' - ^z^-' _^--^ ^^.^-r'?^-^3-z^ ^<^'^2Z/•* ^2^-isSi<V^^- ^e^

x3>^z•̂> >^>/ .'^^rzy^y? .«^.--.<3y- ^-^?7/'/ ^i> d/^ ^f ^f^T^y ^/!^'^^i^^^>i^3-iy ^^v^^-^l^^t^ ^t-'Z. /<?'

^fSL^^.^i.y'if „

'^

7<3^ T̂>^fTW ^L/.'^^^ ^.<y ^y^-c/. ^^ ^-i/ ^^A^a^i , ^d^iy.^r /?tfl ^^f ^^ /JeryU', <£t-^!
~r

no later than September 6, 2019
^«^^/

</ - 7-Z^~
-^^^S^l^'^^S^ -

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District
<-<?^zi/^ er^/y^-^e.

^
Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to

ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or
proprietary information you provide to vs is -coftected, used oBc! -dsdosed •m accoi-dancs with •RPPA. Sfrouki you -hsvs sre-f qusstions about the coltection, use

or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Services, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5J9,250-492-0237. /

.?"
^.



Feedback Form
Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

*

SIMTbKAMiEN Td: 250-492-0237 / Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca

TO: Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen FILE NO.:

FROM: Name: ^^0^0^- k/^7^^- 2>/^7-

X2019.005-ZONE

(please print)

Street Address:

RE: Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No.

Upd3te<rf4tomESEcaB3tinn/lnrinntry R

^s^?
tetiens-and-Ca tb4s4»i ocluction-Facttitres-

U^ 1C /€o Cft-/f^S/2 ^o£»ucr^^ f:^/^-/ ry />-s

My comments / concerns are:

II I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the
comments listed below.

I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the

Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No. 2849.

< j^y"~\>T- /J^^e- / ) ^/1lS /L&^^a^ d.€^n^^^^J^ .^0 fi-^/^y ^t^^^^^^-J^S^-^

— /IS /^-a^^yfey ^^y-^z^^/>/e^£f^£e^
^ -7y/r^~7^

w ^/^t^^/J '^/ ^r>^^^,^ t^a^-^.i, ^

^> '^/^r^L^ /L^> .•^^'^^7>tJ7y ^^^.

^, ^^vi<^^^./^^ e/^f.^-^-^i/ ,y^^^^t.^t^_<^f A//

/y^^y^t ^L^^ ^^ ^yv^^.^^.

/?f/^/? /^-Z^L^ ^^^^ / 2 ^/^

~£(
y'7 ^<W?T^ Ylj'^v^^ CT^/

'Cf^r^-i^ /l^rt.-^e? -^^T^^f-f. f̂^i.

fsf>t^: ^£^^, y^iE-3-a^-^S^> ^ ^»<^=<£^' , ^•^-? c^^^ /^-^.-a.'' ^ -A<-~C ^^.c^^-n^ ^^fy <i^f ^,

^n^(^f1^^V7}. <y3 ^ ^^^^ ^z& ^>7^/ ^,y'^^^,/^/ ^^s^-^,^ /^s^c//^c<:^-v/

•/ , /^-^'Z/^X- /f/^ i^J' >^1 ^€0t' /' ^^, -. ^€i> ^ ^!&<^rL^'/^e' -} /2/,/', ^.^^ae^t^'^y

<ff^SC--^

A.^y^tf.ii

'/', ^y"f7rArr;
ri^f '^£^/U^ <yt /tSJ/ .

~T

^i^./x^ /^&^^^L^^^/ ^fS^ 7^,
/"

^^^yl^^^'i^-. , yS-3^S.«?yL/ 0-y^ ^C^/^» ^~T ^
.<SiC^t,

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than September 6, 2019

^^-^/^ /^r^

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to

ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or

proprietary information you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FIPPA. Should you have any questions about the collection, use

or disclosure of this Information please contact: Manager of Legislative Services, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5J9,250-492-0237.

-*^
-•-s;1.



^y^^> ^

'c^ ^/^X-^ ^••^l£/ ^-^a ^^e. t^€s^- c^^'

/^/^^/J^^^T?^' ^Z^^Z^ -<tfy^^/^£^' tfy^-^ <^^
^ ^

7y-/y^^f£^^, ,7 £LI^~~ -^<:^r~ ep- ^^^c^' ^
/- ^ './ ''^ ^-_^/ y

^^e ^e<^^f<'-^ ^^(^^<^2^-<^ 7?^ ,/^-%^?^^ ^<i;-^-<S<r-tg^-i~1^ -^-^

^G'JC^ ^^€^l-^e^. '/3'sy'

^2^7<cX/y ^Z$^7 ^<^3 ^.C^L.'-^Te^z/ ^(^^^T^ £^e^^- <^0
-- _ -^ .t/ , y'. /y_^

—^'i- /J^tay'l^i-^/' /^z^Cc^e. ey^t c^ ^i.i^e^i^E^i'^ .
/ ^ y

t£ -^fZ ^-iy7z^&€'y-6if>yu ^ ^C^GL^ ^^-e/ ^c^c-rv -^«tf-^€_

C^sy^S^y /^^/ ^</^^'c£<^'=>^/ _^-^ /r^ ^ ->^^-z</
I/ _ . ^ _ _ ^.^ ' r/ ^ ,'J 1^ .^

<^"l€. TC^TA ^ ^ /7it?-/?//^S~7~~ ^yz^p ^

/•^<^' C^z^C/eyC^ ^/cz^t-i^e^e ^C/'^o^v-i^k^1

^ cn^c^

J

^^^l^L&^O _^€<^7<9»-3>-/.-^- ^0

t^-yT^yy ^'A-X-^^' 'a^j^<^/y7S^C£~^--€<^ ^^c^

^C-<y7T^]^^!^ffl^ ^ ^2WS<^ ^-7-7 cff-,

<^^"^^ /^f-^/^.

i/c^^y .^^

^/^^ /^^^^

C">T_f<a-^ ^"^•~^_

'^^V^'l^^



RECEIVED
-<epiona' District

REGIONAL DISTRICT

•T —ii-m^rS^a--^ i

Feedback Form 2JW

Regional District ofOkanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

•-;': ;y;amn sireer

e^t'Cio-' SC V2A 5J£

SIMILK^M^EN Teh 250-492-0237 / Email: Dlanning@rdos.bc.ca

TO:

FROM:

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen FILE NO.:

Name: H'E U^ ^/ C^U^DEL.L.

X2019.005-ZONE

(please print)

RE:

Street Ad dress:

Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858

Micro Cannabis Production Facilities

My comments / concerns are:

I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

II I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the
comments listed below.

I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the

Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No.2858.

r^U^. ^y ^ /Ci^r^c.-E L^ rrn ~TH~S- f^-^o-s /,<; -r'/i/frr

^TH-^^ //ft u-E /L//?/J/ ^g- C.^i-.L^^ Sy ^ftcj^ T'r^T
~Trf^E\J rz>^/j^- ^/\r^o fLc^y.. ~r~^/^ ^rf^n^^^ ^A///I/($

C^ifi HC^E /^/2L^ fST /^d ^j-F^-^€^f\hT-.

UJ^ Z^C^f^'T /^J^
/^o^ ^y-r/^ft S7^c.u,^rr^ /z^ /:?

^fiC-i/^r-r^ T^i^-r' <Z>os^ /UoT ^-^^n-/v^ ,f h)

^s -/A^, /L/^/<^/y.g>0^ //^C57D ,
cyJ^E ft ^-^ 7-Z5-7-^ L.I-. N/ /^^^^/-^-T- 7-^/y^- f^rr}^^T)^)'^/^T~_

^' ^

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than September 6, 2019

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to

ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or

proprietary information you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FIPPA. Should you have any questions about the collection, use

or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Services, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5J9, 250-492-0237.

'^'



g"^^Cj^

REGIONAL OISTPICT

l^DQSi
back Form

ilVED
'^egiona'' District

t- -•* t^c201S

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton/ BC, V2A-5J9

SIM'ILKAMEEN Tet: 250-492-0237 / Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca

'01 Martin Streei

:snt'cton BC V2A 5jc

TO:

RE:

Regional District of Okanagan SimHkameen FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

i~-»3rr?e; ^..--t'it. U&iiM,^ H^DR^vv'

{ease pnnt)

Street Address:

Draft Zoning Amendment Byiaw No. 2858

fylisra Csnnsbjs PrQa.y-stisr; Faeinsiss

My comments / concerns are:

iI ' dp SUppO?-? the propc^sd textusl grrter(drr(@r;?s to the zorfir?g bylgv^.

I) I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning byiaws, subject to the
ccmmsnts lisiss beic'.''.'.

[3 ^ ^0 .r^r 5UppO?t the propossd t@>;ti?&-j s?r;eridm&F-tts tc the zonir'g bytews.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the

Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No. 2858.

\Q^ •^ pa^cL C/ ft-W<^< c'^. C^i^fc^Ivp r«r&,0T^"^nJL< C£rtC£rv^i (3

, ^/^(- ^-J^" i]L.bps^u\. '7lvkU^ n^ u^LL '^ti^/J^ A^^ ^ ^J:l^iv ^i,.
^iL^jd-^t^.?) ^^s t^^ ^^i.' ^A^UI,^^^.. ^^^^^M^LLS^-
^LL^Lffh ^CJiAl^t^'U. <£^ ^rC^^i^lA-^L^int.-c^?

? /- <-J -^ .'' '.' -^7'' .••' y - "^7 -'

Hib-cL _^^^ -/;AA^/i-r of ^ ^Uf^M (,< '^h c^yi^i^.

^a/^.-^- J-WL-_^
\1

'l^^.^d^sdc^-^-.-^'Hs^^ --j&fUJjL..^

/ /

~^ ^Uf^ ^(^1A^^~^

Fsedbsck Forms must be compi'sted and returned to the Regionai Dist'ict

no iater than September 6, 2019

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to

ensure compfencc wcFt fhc prp/sq.' ptmwon: of the Frwcfom of informemn vnd Prptwtion of Pr'ivvcy Act (British Wurr'ms} {"FlfW'}. A^y persons; or

proprietary information you

or c;sc;

>prietary information you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FIPPA. Should you have any questions about the collectioq, use

ohcicsurc of th's infcrmation P'KBSC contecfc Manager of tsgss'sth'c Scn"cc;., HD05, lOl w'^rt'n ?ti-g?t, Penwton, 8C V2A 5JS, 2S&-402 -0237. ^"^



3 Feedback Form™.wr.™n.;t.-,j:7i<

•J^D^S
Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

SIM'TLKAMEEN Teh 250-492-0237 / Email: Dlannine@rdos.bc.ca

TO: Regional District of Ok^jgan Similkameen FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

FROM: Name: Q^sO P?fl<
(please print)

Street Address:

RE: Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No.2858

Micro Cannabis Production Facilities

My comments / concerns are:

I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

^ I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the
comments listed below.

Q I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the

Regional District Board prior.to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No. 2858.

--- ^<y^<^/>\/? •r^u[^^^^ CT^/i/ik^ A> ny/crp Y~^^^^/^>
^^7^ i^^li^e^ --.'/ ^

// , ,,, _,3_-^ / _JL^iM \^ lUo n^f~^f/)f& ^71^ /^/>^^.. ^/^^//^.. ^^?^/c^ ,
c7^J^ acf^^ur^ Af>^. ^/^-r-Q^ f^/.^^T^-^/^-

/?6 ^ ^ ^^^0^ / - • - y ^/^L^^^ £^75
^ UlAeil^^f/^ ^ ^^iy/ o^JL c'/i^^/ff^- ^ '<//1^.
^ Q/ i om /^^/ ^ TO t£>^r~f/^ ^> / /

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than September 6, 2019

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to

ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or

proprietary information you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FIPPA. Should you have any questions about the collection, use ^
or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Sen/ices, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5J9, 250-492-0237.

--^ .-^



IKLn'Kl-iT:3t'^m

•^DC^5
s Feedback Form

Regional District ofOkanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton/ BC, V2A-5J9

OKANAGAN
SIMILKAMEEN Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca

TO: Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen

FROM: Name: A T)o^i^^4^^
FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

(please print)

Street Address:

RE: Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No. 2858
Micro Cannabis Produetjon Faciiities

My comments / concerns are:

I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the
comments 'listed beiow.

[__] I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the

Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No. 2858.

J_ /vu^^ f fvm?^ I it m ^L^ f ? ^ ^(Vc^ivdi. enA }
9 hML nwf O&QT (D^U.^
3 }y\\w^ •)yy\AJr h^i^hi^

]A^\Q^'QA/^r j^TjMr-h &4 ^zt S^M'-r^twvijU i/^u
r<ff ^i(iQ^(\i fe^^/i, ^]A/AA ip^e-d^di
\/A/yit^4^^^^{^/T^ \/^m\hh^}^^ a^.^

C7^// ^AA^I^AM ^A.twJJL h-&- ^M^-f^/u^^ ^ 1/A
-^^.. ^-

^HSM€^ ^

to^.̂
^e- ^r.<J..y. //../- ^,.W^^U^ /< ^'^^ j^U^ h^/]^ki^d^ ^^Z^^H.^ ^

^4jikjL -T^t w ^^ y^ -^^j
:eedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than September 6,2019

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been desigrf^Ep

ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any persQg^ ^a.
pTOFrfata,"y- [Rfcmatiors you provide to us ;s co.'isctsd, ussd snd disdossd ;n accordsncs wSh EiPPA. Shouid you hsvs sny qustions about the ccilactten, tee

or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislath/e Sen/ices, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BCV2A5J9,250-492-0237.



Feedback Form•;-T;i-i>"'Tif-ii;i;:r

•^-Ljrj^
Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen
101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC, V2A-5J9

OKANAGAN- ^~,~ ^'~."_^"^Z_' ,Z""~,""''"''.
SI'MILKAMEEN ^el: 250-492-0237 / Email: planning(S)rdos.bc.ca

TO: Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

FROM: Name: ^3 ^^ SA^ +C i A}^} 7 P A^_/^>^A^
(please print)

Street Address:

RE: Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No.2858
Micro Cannabis Production Faciljties

My comments / concerns are:

I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

II I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the

comments listed be low.

I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

Written submissions received from this information meeting will be considered by the

Regional District Board prior to 1st reading of Amendment Bylaw No. 2858.

\0 C /4^& (^ €<=> j0_ c. ^^_/U_^^ (^ j TH X./^^y/J, /L '^/5t

A/oD ^^l£^L ^^ A /-<l^^o (^/G^LxJ ^^.
7 ^fi-^C' Af^<^nT in ^£ ^.H£G^<T A/Vh irt/k4,^r/Fj~ /A/ c'(—i^dE

To k^e=P 7^fc A^)'/^ /^T ^£A5Dv4,'?L£ C'ev/£(^- ^A^ ^ L;^(-^
'^Tb (^A/ ^ le 6-te T-(-+€:PA.

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than September 6, 2019

Protecting your personal information is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed-

ensure compliance with the privacy provisions of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (British Columbia) ("FIPPA"). Any personal or^*""-

proprietary information you provide to us is <:oWected, used attd disclosed if; accordaftcs wi-th f!PPA. Should you have any questions about the collection, use

or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Services, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A 5J9, 250-492-0237.



Feedback Form
Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen

0 KAHAGAN- 101 Martin street' Pentirton, BC, V2A-5J9
SIMILKAMEEN Tel: 250-492-0237 / Email: planning@rdos.bc.ca

TO: Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen FILE NO.: X2019.005-ZONE

FROM: Name: CV\-e^> ^ £^i &^<^le^

(please print)

Street Ad dress:

RE: Draft Zoning Amendment Bylaw No.2858

Micro Cannabis Production Facilities

My comments / concerns are:

r~| I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

[_} I do support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws, subject to the
comments listed below.

I do not support the proposed textual amendments to the zoning bylaws.

^•VWfterrsut^sstG^re'ceh^f^

ifKe:g}o^Gi^ef;Sow(^^ "^ ^':K:^

-- 'OV/vr-'^.'-v^ •^>£^<'^e> ^^~Z-<i- 5'i^>»<^i<JL i^>e. \.Ai^<3&v/' -+U.A«^ +Vv&. 2. l^<z.^+$_^^;

fi.-Se-^'.- G+^\<z->^ l<i>^_^zl &}^Jo-^m&/^-?"'s htfi^e. 'p/'t,p2>se-'i ^ /•'y)i0i^/^£./)i~ed

i0ire,&/ /yi/.i. P^/^ei ^iz.^ 'e- i~h&- /^^>C.£> - ,71//n S' ^e.^.-i-^re.s ,

i^he,t h^Pfle.n&d w.'Ti^. LfQQ/ r&-^^^\r^e.n<^ ^t>o^ 'rs '••^^-/•e.^se^ t^e- /yij^i

_i7AZ^<"; _^_2;<s. 'ff^_^\ ~i. •-i-£> Lf he.^-i'&ri^-^ &-t> ^is^£-J ^ u'ou> Ad/^^

H.&^Sft ^^f-sj. A<^y 2-.^, ZA./9 ???

A b-j./<//^^ s^^-^^^k /6 /''z>^'/7^r<£<-/ />? 7^.<? /y^^/-. 7>?J6 ^ '? ^<s.Ci

ir^ptt/-}'^^ t ^^r,^^c.^fl,}->'s.^ tb' /yi^^t'o,/.^ t-l^e. ^vi"iL.\ t^ c'-f <?.;r^<°_j^l

50/roo^'^a, /<;</^^^-<."^.& ^SA/Q h^^ ,^ft)e^e^.±e.<) <q 6<^/^ A'&tizS^fc-
-f-rp<y\ Si^f'j ^ <£<?/") +~ re^de.^fs'^1 ~^£>/\<-^ej p/'o^e./h ef> .

Feedback Forms must be completed and returned to the Regional District

no later than September 6, 2019

Protecting your personal informabon is an obligation the Regional District of Okanagan-Similtameen takes seriously. Our practices have been designed to

ensure compliance with the privacy proviaons of the Freedom of Information and ProtecSon cf Privacy Act (British Columbia) f'FIPPA"). Any personal or
proprietary information you provide to us is collected, used and disclosed in accordance with FIPPA. Should you have any questions about the collection, use

or disclosure of this information please contact: Manager of Legislative Services, RDOS, 101 Martin Street, Penticton, BC V2A S19,250-492-0237. w-^





 
 

                                                         File No: C2020.001-CL 
Page 1 of 10 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

TO: Planning & Development Committee 
 
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
 
DATE: July 2, 2020 
 
RE: Letters of Concurrence (Rogers) – Electoral Area “C” 
 

Administrative Recommendation: 

THAT the Regional District defer the  request for a letter of concurrence to locate a 
Communication Tower at 36030 107th Street (6450 Spartan Street) pending response from 
ratepayers within a Public Notification Area of 150 metres from the subject parcel. 
 

Purpose:  To allow for a new Wireless Communication facility. 

Owners:  Town of Oliver Agent: Chad Marlatt (Cypress Land Services for Rogers)  Folio: C-05305.005 

Legal:  Lot 1, Plan KAP15192, District Lot 2450S, SDYD Civic: 36030 107th Street 

OCP:  Resource Area (RA Zoning: Resource Area (RA) 
 

Proposed Development: 
Rogers is requesting of the Regional District Board its concurrence for the proposed replacement 
of one (1) new tri pole tower structure with six panel antennas an a lightening rod to provide 
wireless communication services. 

This telecommunication tower is located at 36030 107th Street (6450 Spartan Street), located on 
adjacent to the Town of Oliver (see Attachment No. 1).   

The applicant is seeking to undertake a public consultation process following the RDOS Board 
Policy for Communication Towers / Antenna Systems Approval Process (adopted May 7, 2015), 
with a reduction to the Public Notification Area of 1 km to 150 m.  In support of this reduction to 
the Public Notification Area, the applicant has stated that: 

Rogers would like to request that the consultation radius be reduced to 5 times the tower 
height from the tower compound.  We understand that the rational for the RDOS’ large 
notification radius is because towers are typically proposed on large rural properties.  In this 
instance, the tower is proposed on the edge of town and a populated area.  ISED’s required 
notification radius is 3 times the tower height therefore Rogers feeds the 5 times tower height 
radius is a fair compromise. 

 
Statutory Requirements:  
Under Section 4.2 of Innovation, Science and Economic Development Canada (ISED) Antenna 
Tower Siting Policy, “proponents must follow Industry Canada’s Default Public Consultation 
process where the local land use authority does not have an established and documented public 
consultation process applicable to antenna siting.”  



  

 File No: C2020.001-CL 
Page 2 of 10 

The RDOS Board Policy for Communication Towers / Antenna Systems Approval Process was 
adopted on May 7, 2015 and outlines items required for the public consultation process and 
design details expected by the RDOS. The expanded public consultation in the Board Policy 
includes: 

· Public meeting 

· Written notice to properties within a notification area of 1000 m of the public meeting 

· Notice of development sign posting on-site 

· 2 notices in newspaper advertising the public meeting 
 
Site Context: 
The telecommunications tower is proposed on a 3.5 ha parcel accessed from Spartan Street, 
immediately adjacent to the Town of Oliver boundary.  The surrounding area is comprised of large 
undeveloped resource area parcels to the north, south and west.  To the east, in the Town of 
Oliver, is an established residential neighbourhood.   
 
Background: 
Under the Electoral Area “C” Official Community Plan (OCP) Bylaw No. 2452, 2008, the subject 
parcel is designated Resource Area (RA) and is the subject of an Environmentally Sensitive 
Development Permit (ESDP) Area designation and is also partially within a Watercourse 
Development Permit (WDP) Area.  

Under the Electoral Area “C” Zoning Bylaw No. 2453, 2008, the subject parcel is zoned Resource 
Area (RA) and defines ‘utility uses’ as meaning “facilities for broadcast transmission and the 
distribution and collection of electrical, telephone, T.V., cable, natural gas, sewer, water and 
transportation services servicing the general public”.  Section 7.3 (Uses Permitted in Every Zone) of 
the bylaw permits ‘utility uses’ in every zone. 

At its August 26, 2019 Closed meeting, Oliver Council resolved to lease a small portion of space at 
6450 Spartan Street for the purpose of installing a telecommunications tower and directed staff to 
undertake joint public notification with the RDOS for the proposed tower and disposition of land.  

The subject property has been assessed as “utilities” (Class 02). 
 
Analysis: 
In consideration of the request to reduce the notification area, it is noted that the purpose of the 
Board policy is to ensure that adequate public consultation is carried out by proponents with all 
property owners and residents affected by the proposed towers.   

The Board Policy also contains guidelines for the local, design and style of a proposed antenna 
system, which will be addressed after the applicant has completed the required public 
consultation.   

It is acknowledged that a one kilometer notification area does not appear to be appropriate for an 
urban setting.  Given the proximity to the Town of Oliver, a notification area of one kilometre 
would cover Oliver’s entire downtown and several surrounding residential neighbourhoods 
(Attachment 2).   



  

 File No: C2020.001-CL 
Page 3 of 10 

As such, a reduction to the notification area is not seen to obstruct the intent of the policy to 
ensure adequate public consultation of those affected.  Other advertising will occur (newspaper 
ads and notification sign) and the proposed notification area will provide direct notification to 
approximately 60 properties in the immediate neighbourhood (Attachment 3).   

Administration supports a reduction to the notification area to 150 m from the subject property, in 
recognition that the notification area was established for more rural, sparsely populated areas. 
 
Alternatives: 
.1 THAT the Board deny Cypress Land Services’ request to reduce the Public Notification Area of 

1000 metres for the Communication Tower proposal for 36030 107th Street (6450 Spartan 
Street).  

.2 THAT the Board direct Cypress Land Services to proceed with an alternative Public Notification 
Area for the Communication Tower proposal for 36030 107th Street (6450 Spartan Street) of: 

i) TBD 
 
 
Respectfully submitted  Endorsed by:    
 
_______________ _________________   
JoAnn Peachey, Planner I C. Garrish, Planning Manager  
 
 
Attachments:  No. 1 – Context Map  
 No. 2 – Notification Area – 1 km 
 No. 3 – Notification Area – 150 m     
 No. 4 – Site Plan    
 No. 5 – Site Plan (Tower Compound Area)  
 No. 6 – Elevations 
 No. 7 – Photo Simulation 

   



  

 File No: C2020.001-CL 
Page 4 of 10 

Attachment No. 1 – Context Map 
 

 

Subject 
Area 

OLIVER 



  

 File No: C2020.001-CL 
Page 5 of 10 

Attachment No. 2 – Notification Area – 1 km  
 
 
 
 
 
  1 km radius  

(APPROXIMATE) 



  

 File No: C2020.001-CL 
Page 6 of 10 

Attachment No. 3 – Notification Area – 150 m  
  



  

 File No: C2020.001-CL 
Page 7 of 10 

Attachment No. 4 – Site Plan  
 

 
 
 

Tower 
Compound Area 



  

 File No: C2020.001-CL 
Page 8 of 10 

Attachment No. 5 – Site Plan (Tower Compound Area) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 File No: C2020.001-CL 
Page 9 of 10 

Attachment No. 6 – Elevations  
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 File No: C2020.001-CL 
Page 10 of 10 

Attachment No. 7 – Photo Simulation 
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200702/Board Reports/D.1. 20200702-CML Leachate 
Management Award.Docx File No: 5330.20 
Page 1 of 1 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: July 2, 2020 
  
RE: Award Campbell Mountain Landfill leachate planning and implementation project 

Administrative Recommendation: 

1. THAT the Campbell Mountain Landfill Leachate Management Planning and Implementation 
contract be sole-sourced to Sperling Hansen Associates in the amount of $94,000 + applicable taxes;  

2. THAT up to $25,000 be approved as a contingency for this project. 
 
History: 
Campbell Mountain landfill (CML) went onto the BC Contaminated Sites Register in 2016 as a result of 
trace elements of restricted minerals showing in groundwater off the CMLF property.  Significant 
testing commenced, analysis was conducted, test wells and an effluent retention system were 
developed to collect and treat the contaminated material.   
 
The final phase of the leachate and drainage work is a continuation on the Design, Operations and 
Closure Plan (DOCP).  While the specific tasks outlined in the current scope of work were not discussed 
in detail in the DOCP, the installation of leachate collection wells, collection infrastructure and system 
analysis was included at a high level in the 2015 DOCP process.  
 
The work on CML has utilized the services of Ms. Bryer Manwell as the engineer of record for the 
Contaminated Site Regulations with the Ministry of Environment. She will continue to be our 
representative to the Province under the scope of work proposed by SHA as a subconsultant for the 
final phase of the leachate and drainage planning. Given the history of completing the previous phases 
with these consultants, and on an economic basis, it is logical to continue retaining the services of these 
consultants through the next phase of the project. They are most knowledgeable and familiar with the 
unique site conditions and challenges the RDOS is facing at CML.  A competitive procurement process 
would add significantly to the schedule and costs required to work toward regulatory compliance. 
 
Funding: 
The leachate management planning and implementation work is approved in the 2020 budget for the 
Campbell Mountain Landfill through the use of reserve funds. 
 
Alternatives: 

1. Deny the sole-source recommendation and authorize a competitive process 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
Liisa Bloomfield 
___________________________________________ 
L. Bloomfield, Manager of Engineering 

 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200702/Board Reports/D.2. 20200702 - SCADA Upgrades 
Award.Docx File No: Click here to enter text. 
Page 1 of 2 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: July 2, 2020 
  
RE: Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) Project Award 
 
Administrative Recommendation: 
 
THAT the “SCADA Migration and Communications Upgrades Project” be awarded to MPE 
Engineering in the amount of $189,690.00; and 
 
THAT $50,000 be approved as a contingency for this project. 
 
History: 

The Regional District owns or operates numerous water and waste water systems across a very 
large geographic area.  A SCADA System allows for remote supervision and alarms for our water and 
wastewater system operators. This network is imperative to providing the most efficient and 
effective response for an acceptable level of service. 
 
As the Regional District acquires systems incrementally, SCADA systems have been added in a 
piecemeal or retroactive fashion.   The lack of integration between the systems has resulted in loss 
of communications between important sites, and leaves us open to potential attacks on our 
network without the adequate firewalls and secure connections. 
 
In 2019 the Regional District contracted MPE to complete the analysis of our network and draft a 
master plan to determine the best course of action to address our issues with the network. The 
Regional District then issued an RFP for proposal to complete the detailed design and manage the 
upgrades for the systems and network. 
 
Analysis: 
Ten Proposals were received prior to the closing date, proposals were reviewed and ranked based 
on the Regional District point rating system.  The list of the Proponents, their ranking, and their 
price provided excluding GST is provided below.  
 
Proposal Ranking Summary 

Consultant Ranking before Cost 
considered 

Total Price FINAL Ranking 

MPE Engineering Ltd  1 (tied for 1st) $ 189,690 1 
Tim Allen Engineering 7 $ 145,084 2 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200702/Board Reports/D.2. 20200702 - SCADA Upgrades 
Award.Docx File No: Click here to enter text. 
Page 2 of 2 
 

ICI Engineering 5 $ 157,312 3 
Viva Automation  4 $ 205,216 4 
Turn-key Controls 3 $ 222,000 5 
Brock Solutions 1 (tied for 1st) $ 343,780 6 
Stantec 8 $ 226,805 7 
Celco Automation 6 $ 290,754 8 
Cima+ 9 $ 299,936 9 
WEL Engineering 10 $ 206,772 10 

 
All 4 members of the review team ranked MPE Engineering to have the superior proposal after all of 
the criteria, including cost, were included.  MPE Engineering has a strong team of industry experts 
that have experience completing similar projects on time and on budget. MPE also has an in-depth 
up-to-date knowledge of the Regional District SCADA components, which will be an asset for this 
project as they completed the master plan that formed the basis of the RFP for this project. MPE 
does not need to spend effort in becoming familiar with the system as they already understand all 
the background information and have a very strong understanding of the project scope and 
challenges.  
 
Funding: 
Funding for this project was approved in the 2020 budget as follows from the water and 
wastewater systems. The breakdown by system will be as follows: 

System Cost % Cost System Cost % Cost 
Naramata Water  $ 130,000 58% OK Falls Sewer  $ 13,400 9% 
West Bench Water $ 23,300 16% Willowbrook Water  $ 1,440 1% 
Faulder Water  $ 10,080 7% Sun Valley Water  $ 990 1% 
Olalla Water  $ 14,400 10% TOTAL $190k 100% 

Naramata water system also has other electrical components that were already planned for 
replacement and are now included in this project. If the contingency is needed then it will be 
applied to the specific budget required. 
 
Alternatives: 

1. Cancel the project 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
Liisa Bloomfield 
___________________________________________ 
L. Bloomfield, Manager of Engineering 

 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200702/Board Reports/E.1. Admin Report BL 2904 - Area 
D CW (Gas Tax) Reserve Expenditure.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 1 of 2 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: July 2, 2020 
  
RE: BYLAW 2904 – Area “D” Community Works (Gas Tax) Reserve Expenditure 

Bylaw 
 
Administrative Recommendation: 
 
THAT Bylaw No.2904, 2020, being a bylaw to authorize an expenditure of $95,000 from the 
Electoral Area “D” Community Works Reserve to fund work at Garnet Family Park be given first, 
second, & third readings and be adopted. 
 
Reference: 
 
Bylaw 2403, 2006 - Regional District Okanagan Similkameen Electoral Area “D” Community Works 
(Gas Tax) Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw. 
 
Bylaw 2904, 2020 Electoral Area “D” Community Works (Gas Tax) Reserve Expenditure. 
 
Background: 
 
The Garnet Family Park(Heritage Hills Park) development commenced in 2016.  Further work to 
enhance the park is planned. 
 
Specifically, the funds will be used at the park for: 
 
1) construction of a public washroom facility, and 
2) matching FortisBC donations for park development, and 
3) matching community donations for park benches and tables. 
4) other park development work. 
 
Analysis: 
 
This project meets the criteria as set out for the Community Works Gas Tax Program since it 
provides parks & recreation infrastructure. 
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200702/Board Reports/E.1. Admin Report BL 2904 - Area 
D CW (Gas Tax) Reserve Expenditure.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 2 of 2 
 

After deducting the expenditures already committed in 2020,  the balance in the Area H Community 
Works (Gas Tax) Reserve Fund is $543,150.45  
 
Alternatives: 
 
Status Quo – Park improvements do not occur. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
“John Kurvink, Manager of Finance/CFO” 
____________________________________ 
J. Kurvink, Finance Manager 

 
 



Page 1 of 1 
Bylaw No. 2902 

Area H Community Works (Gas Tax) Expenditure Bylaw 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 

BYLAW NO. 2904, 2020 
 

 
A bylaw to authorize the expenditure of monies from the Electoral Area ‘D’ Community Works 
(Gas Tax) Reserve Fund to fund further work at Garnet Family Park (Heritage Hills Park) 
 
WHEREAS Section 377 of the Local Government Act, and Section 189 of the Community 
Charter authorises the Board, by bylaw adopted by at least 2/3 of its members, to provide for 
the expenditure of any money in a reserve fund and interest earned on it; 
 
AND WHEREAS the ‘Electoral Area ‘D’ Community Works (Gas Tax) Reserve Fund’ has 
sufficient monies available for community capital projects; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open 
meeting assembled enacts as follows: 
 
1 Citation 
 
1.1 This Bylaw shall be cited as the ‘‘Electoral Area ‘D’ Community Works (Gas Tax)  
 Reserve Fund Expenditure Bylaw No. 2904, 2020” 
 
2. The expenditure of $95,000 from the Electoral Area ‘D’ Community Works (Gas Tax) 
Reserve Fund is hereby authorized to fund further work at Garnet Family Park (Heritage Hills 
Park) 
 
 
READ A FIRST, SECOND, AND THIRD TIME this ___ day of ___, 2020 
 
 
ADOPTED this ___ day of ___, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
RDOS Board Chair     Corporate Officer 
 
 
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200702/Board Reports/E.2. Admin Report BL 2906 - Area 
H CW (Gas Tax) Reserve Expenditure.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 1 of 2 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: July 2, 2020 
  
RE: BYLAW 2906 – Area “H” Community Works (Gas Tax) Reserve Expenditure 

Bylaw 
 
Administrative Recommendation: 
 
THAT Bylaw No.2906, 2020, being a bylaw to authorize an expenditure of $85,000 from the 
Electoral Area “H” Community Works Reserve to provide a contribution to the Town of Princeton 
for the expansion of the Liquid Waste Receiving Facility be given first, second, & third readings 
and be adopted. 
 
Reference: 
 
Bylaw 2407, 2006 - Regional District Okanagan Similkameen Electoral Area “H” Community Works 
(Gas Tax) Reserve Fund Establishment Bylaw. 
 
Bylaw 2906, 2020 Electoral Area “H” Community Works (Gas Tax) Reserve Expenditure. 
 
Background: 
 
The current liquid waste which receives septage from Area H residents is reaching capacity.  These 
funds will be used to construct a third liquid waste basin. 
 
Analysis: 
 
This project meets the criteria as set out for the Community Works Gas Tax Program since it 
provides liquid waste infrastructure. 
 
After deducting the expenditures already committed in 2020,  the balance in the Area H Community 
Works (Gas Tax) Reserve Fund is $518,350.54.  
 
Alternatives: 
 
Status Quo – Expansion does not go forward. 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200702/Board Reports/E.2. Admin Report BL 2906 - Area 
H CW (Gas Tax) Reserve Expenditure.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 

Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
“John Kurvink, Manager of Finance/CFO” 
____________________________________ 
J. Kurvink, Finance Manager 

 
 



Page 1 of 1 
Bylaw No. 2902 

Area H Community Works (Gas Tax) Expenditure Bylaw 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 

BYLAW NO. 2906, 2020 
 

 
A bylaw to authorize the expenditure of monies from the Electoral Area ‘H’ Community Works 
(Gas Tax) Reserve Fund for the expansion of the Princeton Liquid Waste Receiving Facility 
 
WHEREAS Section 377 of the Local Government Act, and Section 189 of the Community 
Charter authorises the Board, by bylaw adopted by at least 2/3 of its members, to provide for 
the expenditure of any money in a reserve fund and interest earned on it; 
 
AND WHEREAS the ‘Electoral Area ‘H’ Community Works (Gas Tax) Reserve Fund’ has 
sufficient monies available for community capital projects; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open 
meeting assembled enacts as follows: 
 
1 Citation 
 
1.1 This Bylaw shall be cited as the ‘‘Electoral Area ‘H’ Community Works (Gas Tax)  
 Reserve Fund Expenditure Bylaw No. 2906, 2020” 
 
2. The expenditure of $85,000 from the Electoral Area ‘H’ Community Works (Gas Tax) 
Reserve Fund is hereby authorized towards the expansion of Princeton Liquid Waste Receiving 
Facility. 
 
 
 
READ A FIRST, SECOND, AND THIRD TIME this ___ day of ___, 2020 
 
 
ADOPTED this ___ day of ___, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
RDOS Board Chair     Corporate Officer 
 
 
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200702/Board Reports/E.3. Admin Report BL 2907 - Area 
D CW (Gas Tax) Reserve Expenditure.Docx File No: Click here to enter 
text. 
Page 1 of 1 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: July 2, 2020 
  
RE: BYLAW 2907 – Area “D” Community Works (Gas Tax) Reserve Expenditure 

Bylaw 

Administrative Recommendation: 
 
THAT Bylaw No.2907, 2020, being a bylaw to authorize an expenditure of $95,000 from the 
Electoral Area “D” Community Works Reserve to provide a contribution to the Okanagan Falls 
Irrigation District to fund the design and construction of a public washroom facility at Centennial 
Park in Okanagan Falls be given first, second, & third readings and be adopted. 
 
Reference: 

Bylaw 2403, 2006 - Area “D” Community Works Reserve Fund Bylaw. 
 
Background: 

Centennial Park is owned and operated by the Okanagan Falls Irrigation District and is used for 
recreation, community and cultural events throughout the summer, but does not have public 
washrooms.  These funds will be used to fund design and construction of a new public washroom 
facility at Centennial Park in OK Falls. 
  
Analysis: 

This project meets the criteria as set out for the Community Works Gas Tax Program since it 
provides parks & recreation infrastructure. 
 
After deducting the expenditures already committed in 2020,  the balance in the Area H Community 
Works (Gas Tax) Reserve Fund is $448,150.45  
 
Alternatives: 

Status Quo – Park improvements do not occur. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
“John Kurvink, Manager of Finance/CFO” 
_______________________________ 

 



Page 1 of 1 
Bylaw No. 2902 

Area H Community Works (Gas Tax) Expenditure Bylaw 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
 

BYLAW NO. 2907, 2020 
 

 
A bylaw to authorize the expenditure of monies from the Electoral Area ‘D’ Community Works 
(Gas Tax) Reserve Fund to fund design and construction of a new public washroom facility at 
Centennial Park in OK Falls. 
 
WHEREAS Section 377 of the Local Government Act, and Section 189 of the Community 
Charter authorises the Board, by bylaw adopted by at least 2/3 of its members, to provide for 
the expenditure of any money in a reserve fund and interest earned on it; 
 
AND WHEREAS the ‘Electoral Area ‘D’ Community Works (Gas Tax) Reserve Fund’ has 
sufficient monies available for community capital projects; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen in open 
meeting assembled enacts as follows: 
 
1 Citation 
 
1.1 This Bylaw shall be cited as the ‘‘Electoral Area ‘D’ Community Works (Gas Tax)  
 Reserve Fund Expenditure Bylaw No. 2907, 2020” 
 
2. The expenditure of $95,000 from the Electoral Area ‘D’ Community Works (Gas Tax) 
Reserve Fund is hereby authorized to fund design and construction of a new public washroom 
facility at Centennial Park in OK Falls. 
 
 
READ A FIRST, SECOND, AND THIRD TIME this ___ day of ___, 2020 
 
 
ADOPTED this ___ day of ___, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
RDOS Board Chair     Corporate Officer 
 
 
 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200702/Board Reports/F.1. BL1239.08 OK Falls Sewer 
Rpt - Adopt.Docx   
Page 1 of 1 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: July 2, 2020 
  
RE: Okanagan Falls Sanitary Sewer Service Petition 
 
Administrative Recommendation: 
 

THAT Bylaw No. 1239.08, 2020 Okanagan Falls Sanitary Sewer Service Area Extension Bylaw be 
adopted. 
 
Purpose: 
To bring a parcel into the Okanagan Falls Sanitary Sewer Service Area 
 
Reference: 
Bylaw No. 1239, 1991  
 
Background: 
The owner of 1543 Maple Street, Okanagan Falls has petitioned the Regional District to amend the 
Okanagan Falls Sanitary Sewer Service Area to include Lot 2, Plan KAP14822, DL551, SDYD.  The 
parcel is adjacent to the existing Service Area boundary. 
 
Analysis: 
Under Regional District Establishing Bylaw Approval Exemption Regulation 113/2007, the Board 
may adopt a bylaw without approval of the Inspector of Municipalities if a sufficient petition and 
consent from the Electoral Area Director is received.  The regulation requires that a local 
government must allow one meeting between third reading and adoption. 
 

The Manager of Engineering and Manager of Public Works are supportive of the inclusion of the 
parcel.  The Corporate Officer has certified the petition as sufficient and valid.  Bylaw No. 1239.08 
received three readings on June 6, 2020 and may now be adopted. 
 
Alternatives: 

1. Rescind three readings and abandon the bylaw. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 

“Gillian Cramm” 
____________________________________ 
G. Cramm, Legislative Services Coordinator 

Endorsed by: 
 

“Christy Malden” 
____________________________________ 
C. Malden, Manager of Legislative Services 

 



Page 1 of 2 
Okanagan Falls Sanitary Sewer Area Extension Bylaw No. 1239.08, 2020 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF OKANAGAN-SIMILKAMEEN 
BYLAW NO. 1239.08, 2020 

 
 

A bylaw to amend the Okanagan Falls Specified Area Sanitary Sewer System Local Service 
Establishment Bylaw No.1239, 1991. 

 
WHEREAS the owner of the property described in this bylaw have petitioned the Board of the Regional 
District to extend the boundaries of the Okanagan Falls Sanitary Sewer Service Area to include the 
property;  
 
AND WHEREAS the Regional District of Okanagan-Similkameen wishes to proceed under the Local 
Government Act to amend the boundaries of the service area of the Okanagan Falls Sanitary Sewer Service 
Area; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Regional District has agreed to act on that request in accordance with sections 349 
and 350 of the Local Government Act; 
  
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of the Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen, in open meeting 
assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. CITATION 
 
1.1. This bylaw may be cited as the “Okanagan Falls Sanitary Sewer Service Area Extension Bylaw No. 

1239.08, 2020.” 
 
2. SERVICE AREA EXTENSION 
 
2.1. The Okanagan Falls Specified Area Sanitary Sewer System Local Service Establishment Bylaw No. 

1239, 1991 is amended by adding the property legally described as: 
 

Lot 2, Plan KAP14822, DL551, SDYD 
 

shown shaded on Schedule "A" which is attached to and forms part of this Bylaw. 
 
READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME this 4th day of June, 2020.  
 
ELECTORAL AREA DIRECTOR CONSENT OBTAINED this 2nd day of June, 2020. 
 
ADOPTED this ___ day of __, 20__. 
 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Board Chair Corporate Officer 
 
FILED  with  the  Inspector  of  Municipalities this ___ day of ___20__. 
  



Page 2 of 2 
Okanagan Falls Sanitary Sewer Area Extension Bylaw No. 1239.08, 2020 

\ 

SCHEDULE A

 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200702/Board Reports/F.2. Ministerial Order M192.Docx
 File No: Click here to enter text. 
Page 1 of 2 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 
 

  
TO: Board of Directors 
  
FROM: B. Newell, Chief Administrative Officer 
  
DATE: July 2, 2020 
  
RE: Ministerial Order M192/ Public Access to Meetings 

Administrative Recommendation: 
1. THAT meetings of the Board of Directors for the Regional District of Okanagan 

Similkameen be closed to the public for the duration of the State of Provincial 
Emergency due to the inability to meet physical distancing requirements in the Board 
Room in accordance with, or recommendations under, the Public Health Act; and, 
 

2. THAT the Regional District meet the requirements of S. 226 of the Local Government 
Act for public participation by inviting the public to attend electronically. 

 
Purpose: 
To meet the requirements of Ministerial Order M192 issued under the Emergency Program Act. 

Reference: 
1. M192 
2. S. 226, Local Government Act 

 
Background: 
Order M192 was issued June 17, 2020 under the Emergency Program Act, thereby replacing 
MO139, to set new guidelines for public presence at local government meetings and timing 
requirements for bylaw adoption.  All other previous provisions under MO139, such as conducting 
public hearings electronically, allowing for Boards to meet electronically remain in effect under Order 
M192.  M192 provides the following: 
Open meetings - regional districts 
4  ( 1)  A board established under the Local Government Act must use best efforts to allow 

members of the public to attend an open meeting of the board, board committee or body in 
a manner that is consistent with any applicable requirements or recommendations made 
under the Public Health Act. 

 
 (2) A board, board committee or body is not required to allow members of the public to attend 

a meeting if, despite the best efforts of the board, board committee or body, the attendance 
of members of the public cannot be accommodated at a meeting that would otherwise be 
held in accordance with the applicable requirements or recommendations under the Public 
Health Act. 

 



 

Https://Portal.Rdos.Bc.Ca/Departments/Officeofthecao/Boardreports/2020/20200702/Board Reports/F.2. Ministerial Order M192.Docx
 File No: Click here to enter text. 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 (3)  If a board, board committee or body does not allow members of the public to attend a 
meeting, as contemplated in subsection (2) of this section,  

(a) the board must state the following, by resolution:  
(i)  the basis for holding the meeting without members of the public in attendance; 
(ii)  the means by which the board, board committee or body is ensuring openness, 

transparency, accessibility and accountability in respect of the meeting, and 
(b)  for the purposes of Division 3 [Open Meetings] of Part 4 [Public Participation and Council 

Accountability] of the Community Charter as that Division applies to a regional district 
under section 226 of the Local Government Act, the meeting is not to be considered 
closed to the public. 

 
 (4)  The board, board committee or body may pass a resolution under subsection (3) (a) in 

reference to a specific meeting or, if the same circumstances apply, more than one 
meeting.  

 
Analysis: 
Order M192 requires local governments to undertake “best efforts” to meet the legislative 
requirements for open meetings so the public can continue to participate and understand local 
government decision-making in a way that is meaningful for them. 
Local governments that are unable to meet the PHO recommendations and requirements and hold 
open meetings where the public can attend in person are now required to adopt a resolution to 
provide a rationale for the continued need to meet without the public present. They must also 
describe what local measures are being taken to meet the principles of openness, transparency and 
accessibility. The resolution may be in reference to a specific meeting or, if the same circumstances 
apply, more than one meeting. 
 
The physical parameters of the Board Room at 101 Martin Street do not permit the physical 
attendance of our 19 Board Members and staff at a meeting, let alone opening to the public.  While 
Administration is currently evaluating alternatives for meeting space, we’re not there yet and M192 
requires the Board to pass a resolution identifying their intentions and how the Regional District can 
meet public access requirements. 
 
The public does have full access to Board Meetings electronically. 
 

 
 


	Schedule of Meetings
	Public Hearing - Apex Mountain Zone Update
	Public Hearing - Cannabis
	Protective Services Committee
	B.1 E911 Financial Overview

	Corporate Services Committee
	B.1 Stimulus Projects List
	C. UBCM  Report

	RDOSBoard
	A. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	A.1.a. 20200618MINCorporateServices
	A.1.b. 20200618MINEnvironment
	A.1.c. 20200618MINBD

	B. DELEGATIONS
	C. DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – Rural Land Use Matters
	C.1. PL1 A2019.011-TUP ( Board Report - Law)
	C.1.a. PL1 A2019.011-TUP (Permit - Law)
	C.1.b. PL1 A2019.011-TUP (Representations - Law)

	C.2. PL2 A2019.025-ZONE (Board Report-1st2nd-Lual Orchards Ltd)
	C.2.a. PL2 A2019.025-ZONE (Amendment Bylaw No. 2451.30)
	C.2.b. PL2 A2019.025-ZONE (Representations - Lual)

	C.3 PL3 D2018.059-ZONE (Report - 3rdAdopt - Apex Zone Review)
	C.3.a. PL3 D2018.059-ZONE (Amndment Bylaw No. 2457.26)
	C.3.b. PL3 D2018.059-ZONE (Amndment Bylaw No. 2683.03)
	C.3.c. PL3 D2018.059-ZONE (Representations - Apex Mountain Zone)

	C.4 PL4 X2019.005-ZONE (Report - 3rdAdopt - Micro Cannabis)
	C.4.a. PL4 X2019.005-ZONE (Amendment Bylaw No. 2858)
	C.4.b. PL4 X2019.005-ZONE (Representations - Bylaw 2858 Micro Cannabis)

	C.5  C2020.001-CL Letters of Concurrence - Rogers

	D. PUBLIC WORKS
	D.1. 20200702-CML Leachate Management Award
	D.2. 20200702 - SCADA Upgrades Award

	E. FINANCE
	E.1. Admin Report BL 2904 - Area D CW (Gas Tax) Reserve Expenditure
	E.1.a. BL 2904 Area D Community Works (Gas Tax) Expenditure Bylaw

	E.2. Admin Report BL 2906 - Area H CW (Gas Tax) Reserve Expenditure
	E.2.a. BL 2906 Area H Community Works (Gas Tax) Expenditure Bylaw - Liquid Waste Receiving Facility

	E.3. Admin Report BL 2907 - Area D CW (Gas Tax) Reserve Expenditure
	E.3.a. BL 2907 Area D Community Works (Gas Tax) Expenditure Bylaw


	F. LEGISLATIVE SERVICES
	F.1. BL1239.08 OK Falls Sewer Rpt - Adopt
	F.1.a. BL1239.08 Ok Falls Sewer -Bylaw to Adopt

	F.2. Ministerial Order M192

	G. CAO REPORTS
	H. OTHER BUSINESS
	I. ADJOURNMENT




